AGENDA
SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING
May 2, 2022
at 5:00 PM

To watch this meeting live click or copy the link: https://tinyurl.com/SPU-YouTube-Live

1. Call to Order at 5:00pm in the SPU Service Center, 255 Sarazin Street
la) Roll Call

2. Communications

3. Consent Agenda

3a) Approval of April 18, 2022 Minutes (GD)

3b) Approval of May 2, 2022 Agenda (KM)

3c) May 2, 2022 Warrant List (KW)

3d) 2022 Water Conservation Report (LS)

3e) Magellan Encroachment Agreement (JA)

3f)  Accounts Receivable Aging Report — Collections Update (KW)
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4. Liaison Report (JB)

5. Public Comment Period. The public comment period provides an opportunity for the public
to address the Commission on items that are not on the agenda. Comments should not exceed
five minutes. The SPU President may adjust that time limit based upon the number of persons
seeking to comment. This comment period may not be used to make personal attacks, to air
personality grievances, or for political endorsements or campaigns. The public comments are
intended for informational purposes only; Commissioners will not enter into a dialogue with
commenters, and questions from Commissioners will be for clarification only.

6. General Manager Report
6a) General Manager Report — Verbal (GD)

7. Reports: Water Items
7a) Water System Operations Report — Verbal (LS)
7b) Res#2022-11 West End Lower Bluff Equivalent Lateral Water Main (JA)
7c) Res#2022-12 West End Lower Bluff Trunk Water Main Oversizing (JA)
7d) Res#2022-13 Maras Street, 13" Avenue, Stagecoach Road, and Hansen Avenue
Equivalent Lateral Water Main (JA)

8. Reports: Electric Iltems
8a) Electric System Operations Report — Verbal (BC)



10.

11.

12.

13.

Reports: Human Resources

Reports: General
10a) Marketing/Key Accounts Report — Verbal (SW)
10b) 2021 Audited Financials and Presentation (KW)

Items for Future Agendas

Tentative Dates for Upcoming Meetings**
- May 16, 2022
- June 6, 2022
- June 20, 2022

Adjournment



Proposed As Consent item

MINUTES OF THE
SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
April 18, 2022
Regular Meeting

1. Call to Order. Vice President Krieg called the April 18, 2022 meeting of the Shakopee
Public Utilities Commission to order at 5:00 PM. Vice President Krieg, Commissioner Brennan,
Commissioner Fox, and Commissioner Letourneau were present.

2. Approval of Consent Agenda. Commissioner Brennan asked to pull item (3f) from the
Consent Agenda. Commissioner Letourneau asked to pull item (3g). Commissioner Brennan
moved approval of all other items on the Consent Agenda: (3a) March 29, 2022 Joint Meeting
Minutes; (3b) April 4, 2022 Minutes; (3¢) April 18,2022 Agenda; (3d) April 5,2022 Warrant List,
Account Credit Request/Deposit Refunds; (3e) April 18, 2022 Warrant List. Commissioner Fox
seconded the motion. Ayes: Brennan, Fox, Krieg, and Letourneau. Nays: None. Motion carried.

For item (3f), Commissioner Brennan asked about pumping amounts exceeding the billing
numbers. General Manager Drent explained that factors include a 4-5% line loss, the filling of
Tank #8, the number of days in the month, and billing after the close of the month. Water
Superintendent Schemel added that construction meters are issued at this time of year and SPU
does not get them back until November or December, so they are not billed until then.
Commissioner Brennan moved approval of item (3f) Water Dashboard, seconded by

Commissioner Letourneau. Ayes: Brennan, Fox, Krieg, and Letourneau. Nays: None. Motion
carried.

For item (3g), Commissioner Letourneau asked about the exception items in the bid
response concerning a potential delay. Mr. Drent explained that the project is on track and
quantified the potential increase. Commissioner Letourneau moved to approve item (3g) West
Shakopee Substation 115kV Circuit Breaker, seconded by Commissioner Fox. Ayes: Brennan,
Fox, Krieg, and Letourneau. Nays: None. Motion carried.

gl Liaison Report. Commissioner Brennan noted that City Council approved the final plat
for Whispering Waters.

4. Public Comment Period. No public comments were offered.
5. General Manager Report. Mr. Drent noted the provisions in the SPU Governance

Handbook concerning the appointments to MMPA. Mr. Drent also noted that the City Council
voted to increase the monthly compensation for SPU Commissioners from $400 to $500, for
Commission President from $500 to $600, and for MMPA Alternate to $100 (Mr. Drent noted that
he will not receive any additional compensation as MMPA Representative). He explained that
SPU pays this compensation, and that the compensation was last increased in September 2013.
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Mr. Drent noted that Commissioners are eligible for PERA. Mr. Drent also highlighted pending
projects, including residential electric vehicle rates, long-term planning, Dean Lake Boulevard
Extension, employee health care savings, and employee handbook presentation to staff. For the
NISC conversion, he noted that the first data pull went well. Mr. Drent also noted an initial
meeting with school district representatives concerning solar power options.

6. Water Report. Mr. Schemel reported that the Water Department has completed the valve
inspections before resurfacing and special projects. He noted that as the weather improves, the
flushing program will begin.

7. West End Lower Bluff Utility Improvements Bid Award. Joseph Adams, Director of
Planning and Engineering, reported that the City opened bids for this project on April 5, 2022. He
noted that the project includes a lift station, sanitary sewer force main, and a 12-inch trunk
watermain, and that Bolt & Menke serves as the Project Manager. Mr. Adams explained that
SPU’s portion of this project is expected to be $942,614.39, which is under budget. Commissioner
Fox moved to concur with the bid award recommendation for the City Council to award the
construction contract, including the 12-inch water main, to Northern Lines Contracting.
Commissioner Letourneau seconded the motion. Ayes: Brennan, Fox, Krieg, and Letourneau.
Nays: None. Motion carried.

8. Electric Report. Brad Carlson, Electric Superintendent, reported that one outage occurred
since the last Commission meeting. He also noted pending electric projects, including the second
half of the Levee Drive duct bank, reviewing the LTC (Load Tap Changer) at Dean Lake,
energizing the Canterbury distribution center, and service at River Bluff Apartments. Mr. Carlson
noted that electric crews are looking at transformers in the service territory in Prior Lake to be
swapped with MVEC, given the differences in voltage.

9 2022 Reliability and Outage Report & Certificate. Mr. Carlson reported that SPU received
the Certificate of Excellent in Reliability from the American Public Power Association — one of
only 209 utilities nationwide. He noted that SPU has received this Certificate every year since
2017. Mr. Carlson presented the reliability information for SPU for 2021.

10. Human Resources. Mr. Drent presented the SPU Drug and Alcohol testing policy for
licensed commercial driver’s license (CDL) employees. Mr. Drent noted that SPU has historically
participated in the MMUA testing program, and desired to formally adopt this policy. He noted
that the policy provides that if a CDL licensed employee gets two driving while impaired offenses,
the employee will be terminated. Commissioner Letourneau moved to approve the Drug and
Alcohol Testing Policy as presented; Commissioner Fox seconded the motion. Ayes: Brennan,
Fox, Krieg, and Letourneau. Nays: None. Motion carried.




11. Marketing/Customer Service Report. Mr. Drent noted that Ms. Walsh has processed two
large rebates of over 250,000 kwh, resulting in rebates of $27,000. He reported that the final bid
package for the AMI project was approved. He noted that SPU staff is meeting with City staff to
consider potential community outreach options. Mr. Drent stated that the ribbon-cutting event for
the SPU drive-up window went well. He presented a video of the drive-up window construction.

12, First Quarter 2022 Financials. Kelley Willemssen, Director of Finance and
Administration, presented the First Quarter 2022 financials. She explained that GASBY requires
an analysis of “book™ losses, but because SPU did not sell these holdings, no loss was actually
realized. Ms. Willemssen also explained the timing difference between one quarter versus an
annual budget. Commissioner Letourneau moved to approve the First Quarter 2022 financials.

Commissioner Fox seconded the motion. Ayes: Brennan, Fox, Krieg, and Letourneau. Nays:
None. Motion carried.

13.  Adjourn. Motion by Commissioner Brennan, seconded by Commissioner Fox, to adjourn

to the May 2, 2022 meeting. Ayes: Brennan, Fox, Krieg, and Letourneau. Nays: None. Motion
carried.

Greg Drent, Commission Secretary
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at 5:00 PM

To watch this meeting live click or copy the link: https://tinyurl.com/SPU-YouTube-Live

1. Call to Order at 5:00pm in the SPU Service Center, 255 Sarazin Street
1a) Roll Call

2. Communications

3. Consent Agenda

3a) Approval of April 18, 2022 Minutes (GD)

3b) Approval of May 2, 2022 Agenda (KM)

3c) May 2, 2022 Warrant List (KW)
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4, Liaison Report (JB)

5. Public Comment Period. The public comment period provides an opportunity for the public
to address the Commission on items that are not on the agenda. Comments should not exceed
five minutes. The SPU President may adjust that time limit based upon the number of persons
seeking to comment. This comment period may not be used to make personal attacks, to air
personality grievances, or for political endorsements or campaigns. The public comments are
intended for informational purposes only; Commissioners will not enter into a dialogue with
commenters, and questions from Commissioners will be for clarification only.

6. General Manager Report
6a) General Manager Report — Verbal (GD)

7. Reports: Water Items
7a) Water System Operations Report — Verbal (LS)
7b) Res#2022-11 West End Lower Bluff Equivalent Lateral Water Main (JA)
7c) Res#2022-12 West End Lower Bluff Trunk Water Main Oversizing (JA)
7d) Res#2022-13 Maras Street, 13" Avenue, Stagecoach Road, and Hansen Avenue
Equivalent Lateral Water Main (JA)

8. Reports: Electric Items
8a) Electric System Operations Report — Verbal (BC)



10.

1.

12.

13.

Reports: Human Resources

Reports: General
10a) Marketing/Key Accounts Report — Verbal (SW)
10b) 2021 Audited Financials and Presentation (KW)

Items for Future Agendas

Tentative Dates for Upcoming Meetings**
- May 16, 2022
- June 6, 2022
- June 20, 2022

Adjournment
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
WARRANT LISTING

May 2, 2022

By direction of the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission, the Secretary does hereby
authorize the following warrants drawn upon the Treasury of Shakopee Public Utilities

Commission:

ADVANTAGE COLLECTION PROFESSIONALS

ALLSTREAM BUSINESS US, INC
AMARIL UNIFORM CO.

AMERICAN ENGINEERING TESTING INC
ANDREA AMANDA RAMNAUTH

APPLE FORD OF SHAKOPEE

ARROW ACE HARDWARE

BARTUSEK, RON

BERNDTSON, ROBERT

BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY INC
BREWER, TIMOTHY

CALIAN CORP

CDW LLC

CEMSTONE PRODUCTS CO.
CENTERPOINT ENERGY

CHOICE ELECTRIC INC

CITY OF SHAKOPEE

CITY OF SHAKOPEE

COMCAST CABLE COMMUNICATIONS, INC.
CORE & MAIN LP

CULVER COMPANY

DAHLEN SIGN COMPANY

DAKOTA SUPPLY GROUP

DELTA DENTAL PLAN OF MN

DOYLE BRUCE

FASTENAL IND & CONST SUPPLIES
FERGUSON US HOLDINGS, INC.
FURTHER

GOLDADE, TANNER

GRAINGER

GRAYBAR ELECTRIC COMPANY INC
HACH COMPANY

HANSEN, JANE

HAWKINS INC

HD SUPPLY FACILITIES MAINTENANCE LTD
HEALTHPARTNERS

HERCULES INDUSTRIES INC
HERMAN'S LANDSCAPE SUPPLIES INC
HIGH POINT NETWORKS, LLC
INDELCO PLASTICS CORP

IRBY TOOL & SAFETY

JOSEPH, STEPHEN

KLM ENGINEERING INC

KWIK TRIP INC.

MATHESON TRI-GAS, INC

MCGRANN SHEA CARNIVAL

MENKE, CINDY

MIDWEST SAFETY COUNSELORS, INC.
MINN VALLEY TESTING LABS INC
MINNESOTA LIFE

NAPA AUTO PARTS

$45.79
$2,476.07
$4,688.20
$320.00
$4,051.43
$78.09
$51.50
$728.89
$215.87
$106,564.01
$125.00
$345.82
$3,877.77
$3,430.00
$2,575.18
$4,790.95
$249,000.00
$1,031.08
$2.25
$3,984.79
$220.33
$13,430.00
$671.10
$5,394.21
$500.00
$78.61
$803.15
$504.40
$350.00
$884.17
$633.47
$423.50
$50.00
$12,727.00
$645.39
$85,046.04
$1,502.52
$1,316.00
$2,662.90
$137.10
$3,819.94
$75.00
$1,300.00
$3,952.00
$312.97
$5,842.50
$121.26
$320.59
$436.00
$1,261.20
$15.43
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
WARRANT LISTING

May 2, 2022

By direction of the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission, the Secretary does hereby
authorize the following warrants drawn upon the Treasury of Shakopee Public Utilities

Commission:

NEAD, RICH

NEVILLE, GERRY

ORACLE AMERICA INC.

Principal Financial Group

PALYA, TIMOTHY

PAYMENTUS CORPORATION
PROJECT ENERGY SAVERS LLC
ROSE, WILLIAM

SAMBATEK

SCHANDELMEIER, SEAN & KRISTINE
SCHEMEL, LON

SCHILZ ORNAMENTAL IRON INC
SCHOSSOW, JAMIE

SCOTT COUNTY GOVT. CENTER WEST
SCOTT COUNTY PHYSICAL DEVELOPMENT
STOCKER, JORDAN

SWAM, STEVE

TRIPLETT, GREG

TYCO FIRE & SECURITY (US) MGMT INC.
UNITED SYSTEMS & SOFTWARE, INC.
VIRGINIA TRANSFORMER CORP.
WESCO DISTRIBUTION INC

WILSON, MATTHEW

WSB & ASSOCIATES, INC.

‘}{w&u I M{Mn%w

Presented for apgroval by: Director of Finance & Administration

Approved by General Manager

Approved by Commission President

$350.00
$144.50
$34,124.43
$3,894.15
$155.00
$31,220.50
$263.00
$473.37
$4,047.00
$500.00
$220.01
$6,006.73
$500.00
$26,180.00
$162.00
$19.00
$500.00
$196.57
$256.00
$9,900.00
$187,242.40
$56,612.20
$500.00
$14,124.00

$911,410.33



SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
WARRANT LISTING

May 2, 2022

By direction of the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission, the Secretary does hereby
authorize the following warrants drawn upon the Treasury of Shakopee Public Utilities

Commission:

ADVANTAGE COLLECTION PROFESSIONALS
ALLSTREAM BUSINESS US, INC

AMARIL UNIFORM CO.

AMERICAN ENGINEERING TESTING INC
ANDREA AMANDA RAMNAUTH

APPLE FORD OF SHAKOPEE

ARROW ACE HARDWARE

BARTUSEK, RON

BERNDTSON, ROBERT

BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY INC

BREWER, TIMOTHY

CALIAN CORP

CDWLLC

CEMSTONE PRODUCTS CO.
CENTERPOINT ENERGY
CHOICE ELECTRIC INC

CITY OF SHAKOPEE

CITY OF SHAKOPEE

COMCAST CABLE COMMUNICATIONS, INC.
CORE & MAIN LP

CULVER COMPANY

DAHLEN SIGN COMPANY

DAKOTA SUPPLY GROUP

DELTA DENTAL PLAN OF MN
DOYLE BRUCE

FASTENAL IND & CONST SUPPLIES
FERGUSON US HOLDINGS, INC.
FURTHER

GOLDADE, TANNER

GRAINGER

GRAYBAR ELECTRIC COMPANY INC
HACH COMPANY

HANSEN, JANE

HAWKINS INC

HD SUPPLY FACILITIES MAINTENANCE LTD
HEALTHPARTNERS

HERCULES INDUSTRIES INC
HERMAN'S LANDSCAPE SUPPLIES INC
HIGH POINT NETWORKS, LLC
INDELCO PLASTICS CORP

IRBY TOOL & SAFETY

JOSEPH, STEPHEN

KLM ENGINEERING INC
KWIK TRIP INC.

MATHESON TRI-GAS, INC
MCGRANN SHEA CARNIVAL

MENKE, CINDY

MIDWEST SAFETY COUNSELORS, INC.
MINN VALLEY TESTING LABS INC
MINNESOTA LIFE

NAPA AUTO PARTS

NEAD, RICH

$45.79 Collection service for Feb.
$2,476.07 Shak Sub, Pike Lake, S.Sub, and SPU
$4,688.20 Clothing for Water and Electric dept's
$320.00 WO#2483 Rock Coring West Shak sub site
$4,051.43 May Cleaning service
$78.09 Water dept. oil change
$51.50 Main Breakroom sink
$728.89 Reimb. for Northeast Dist. Op school
$215.87 120 Miles reimb.
$106,564.01 WO#2587 - $5007.97-Meters, Cable, Arresters
and Elbows
$125.00 2022 Res. Energy Star Appliance Rebate
$345.82 License-HPE Aruba Renewal
$3,877.77 Ergotron LX Arm
$3,430.00 Concrete barriers-stackable
$2,575.18 3/8-4/6/22 Gas usage at 255 Sarazin & 10th Ave.
$4,790.95 Pumphouse #6 and Pumphouse #9 replace light
with LED fixture, install GFI Breakers, replace
soffit ligths
$249,000.00 May PILOT Transfer Fee
$1,031.08 May Storm drainage/SPU properties
$2.25 Cable bill for lunchrooms
$3,984.79 WO#2576 - Sensus T2 Meters
$220.33 Super Saft Stk
$13,430.00 WO#2470 - Single sided illuminated sign cabinet
$671.10 LUG 336 MCM COMPRESSION
$5,394.21 April Dental Premiums
$500.00 2022 Res. Cooling & Heating
$78.61 Wide Coarse Wheel
$803.15 Comb Dirill, Kitchen Faucet, Conductive Strip
$504.40 April Adm. Fee & Reimb. For dental and
dependent care
$350.00 2022 Res. Cooling & Heating
$884.17 6CHV1 Frost Proof Yard Hydrant, Solar battery
$633.47 6 elbows & pvc pipe

$423.50 Colorimeter Flat Rate Repair Fee
$50.00 2022 Res. Energy Star Appliance Rebate
$12,727.00 100PPD hydro regulator & Chlorine Cylinder
$645.39 Colorimeter Hach
$85,046.04 May Premiums (April charge month)
$1,502.52 LOCK series 700 with 7/8 Brass shackle
$1,316.00 WASHED RED ROCK
$2,662.90 1 year support renewal
$137.10 COUPLING & Bushing,
$3,819.94 GLOVE TESTING, stringing block, sheave gate,
bolt cutter, tool bucket
$75.00 2022 Res. Energy Star Appliance Rebate
$1,300.00 WO#2615 - Visual Inspection Tank #6
$3,952.00 2022 LED Interior Lightings
$312.97 4 cylinders of Nitrogen
$5,842.50
WO#2545 - Land Exchange Agreement thru
3/31/22 $577.50, Municipal & Regulatory Matters
$121.26 Handbook luncheon reimb.
$320.59 #3MH10A Peltor Optime Earmuffs
$436.00 Nitrate & Nitrite, Coliform
$1,261.20 April Life Ins. premiums
$15.43 Battery Cable
$350.00 2022 Res. Cooling & Heating



SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
WARRANT LISTING

May 2, 2022

By direction of the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission, the Secretary does hereby
authorize the following warrants drawn upon the Treasury of Shakopee Public Utilities

Commission:

NEVILLE, GERRY

ORACLE AMERICA INC.

Principal Financial Group

PALYA, TIMOTHY

PAYMENTUS CORPORATION
PROJECT ENERGY SAVERS LLC
ROSE, WILLIAM

SAMBATEK

SCHANDELMEIER, SEAN & KRISTINE
SCHEMEL, LON
SCHILZ ORNAMENTAL IRON INC

SCHOSSOW, JAMIE

SCOTT COUNTY GOVT. CENTER WEST
SCOTT COUNTY PHYSICAL DEVELOPMENT
STOCKER, JORDAN

SWAM, STEVE

TRIPLETT, GREG

TYCO FIRE & SECURITY (US) MGMT INC.
UNITED SYSTEMS & SOFTWARE, INC.
VIRGINIA TRANSFORMER CORP.

WESCO DISTRIBUTION INC

WILSON, MATTHEW
WSB & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Presented for approval by: Director of Finance & Administration

Approved by General Manager

Approved by Commission President

$144.50 116 Miles reimb.
$34,124.43 1st Qtr Printing & mailing/cloud servic
$3,894.15 May L.T.D. premiums
$155.00 2022 Res. Appliance Recycling
$31,220.50 March Transfer Fee
$263.00 Stickers and decals
$473.37 Reimb. for NE Water Op. School
$4,047.00 WO#2041 - $426.00 Windermere Booster
Station/Pump Hse - #W02259 - $3621.00-
Elevated Water Tank 8
$500.00 2022 Res. Cooling & Heating
$220.01 Reimb. for 2 way radios
$6,006.73 WO#2470 - Steel cover plates for garage
expansion
$500.00 2022 Res. Cooling & Heating
$26,180.00 2022 LED Interior Lighting-New Addition
$162.00 Installing new pole - Corner 79 & 150th
$19.00 License renewal difference
$500.00 2022 Res. Cooling & Heating
$196.57 217 Miles reimb,
$256.00 Alarm & Detection for April
$9,900.00 Remote encoder with cable
$187,242.40 WO#2483 - Virginia Transformer Corp. West
Shak Sub

$56,612.20 CABLE, Transconnector, Duck seal, hammer drill

kit, wire, Insulated cutter, tree trimming kit,
sidlestops, couplings
$500.00 2022 Res. Cooling & Heating
$14,124.00 WO#2581 - Pumphse #23, Service for March

$911,410.33
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¢SPU

Shakopee Public Utilities

TO: Greg Drent, General Manager W

FROM: Lon R. Schemel, Water Superintendent

SUBJECT: 2022 Water Conservation Report

DATE: April 27, 2022

I/
P fnse,

PO Box 470 - 255 Sarazin Street
Shakopee, Minnesota 55379

Main 952.445-1988 - Fax 952.445-7767
www.shakopeeutilities.com

/7
L

Since 2017, water purveyors have been required to submit Water Conservation
Reports to the Minnesota Department of Natural Resources. These reports
summarize a utilities conservation effort for the year and provides the MN DNR
with the required metrics needed for them to manage our groundwater resource.

Due to 2021 having drought conditions, our numbers for most categories are not
within the water conservation goals on page 3. Our water conservation results as

compared to the 2021 report:

2021 Report 2022 Report*
Unaccounted Water Loss 7.1% 4.8%
Residential Gallons per 68 76
Capita
Annual % Reduction 1.36 -27.16
Nonresidential
Trend in total per capita -15.3 -11.5
demand
Total Peaking Factor 2.05 2.57**

*For the previous year’s usage

**Max day / Average day



m1 DEPARTMENT OF
NATURAL RESOURCES

Shakopee Public Utilities Commission Summary of Water Conservation

Report

Additional Details at www.espwater.org
2022 Report based on 2021 Water Use

Water Conservation Goals

Unaccounted Water Loss 4.8 %
Residential GPCD 76
Annual % Reduction-Nonresidential -27.16
Trend in total per capita demand -11.51831
Total Peaking Factor 2.57

Water Accounting

Total water to Treatment

2,080,182,000 gallons

Total water to Distribution

2,080,182,000 gallons

# of Residential connections

10,884

# of Non-Res. connections

1,010

Residential vs. Non-Res. Use

1,184.9 million gal. vs. 795.8 million gal.

Date of Highest Use

6/14/2021

Water Conservation - Direct

Water Supply System Infrastructure
Efficiency (leaks, meters, etc.)

* Meter testing:
20,129,000 gal -- $18,370
e Storage Mixing:

gal -- $23,000
Date of last Audit/Percent done % audit
Direct Conservation Single Family (SF) ¢ SF Toilet Retrofits:
and Multi-Family (MF) and Commercial, Quantity: 16

Industrial, Institutional (Cll) Efforts

Gallons saved: 96,000

¢ SF Clothes Washer Rebates:
Quantity: 65
Gallons saved: 325,000

e SF ET Irrigation Controllers:
Quantity: 44
Gallons saved: 396,000

Reuse or other Customer conservation
projects

None listed

Water Conservation Indirect




Ordinances

« Critical/Emergency Water Deficiency Ordinance

* [rrigation restrictions Regulations

* Soil preparation requirements (x” of topsoil)

¢ Tree ratio requirement

« Allow native plants and Low water use turf/plants
» Wellhead protection ordinance and zoning

Education and Outreach

e Consumer Confidence Reports -- 1

* Facility tours -- 1

e Marketing rebate programs (e.g., indoor fixtures &
appliances and outdoor practices) -- 2

» Information kiosk at utility and public buildings -- 4
* Website —- 2

Collaboration

e Collaborated with MDH on wellhead protection project

s Collaborate with Metcouncil on Smart Irrigation

Rate structure

e Increasing Block




General Comments and Recommendations for additional conservation efforts:

1.

WATER CONSERVATION GOALS: Compare your water supply system results to the statewide
water conservation goals that are set in the Water Supply Plans:

a. UNACCOUNTED FOR WATER LOSS <10%
b. RESIDENTIAL GALLONS PER CAPITA DEMAND (GPCD) DAILY <75
C. ANNUAL % REDUCTION IN NONRESIDENTIAL USE >1.5%
d. TREND IN TOTAL PER CAPITA DEMAND >=1.0
e. TOTAL PEAKING FACTOR <2.6

Each water supplier should try to achieve the statewide water conservation goals by the time
their next Water Supply Plan is due (2026-2028).

2.

WATER Loss: For most water suppliers, working on reducing water loss should be your top
conservation objective. Cities should first make their own water supply system as efficient
as possible. In addition to leaks, water can be “lost” through unauthorized consumption
(theft), administrative errors, data handling errors, and metering inaccuracies or failure.
LEAK REPAIR: Budgeting for and keeping on top of aging pipes and infrastructure will be
important in the coming years to reduce water loss. Also check fire hydrants frequently,
many cities are finding these to be part of their water loss problem.

METERS: A water meter program should include selection, installation, testing and

maintenance. Over time meters lose accuracy and inaccurate meters contribute to loss of

revenue. Accurate meters are also key to getting a handle on water loss. Focus first on large
meter installations.

AuDIT: Water audits are the first step for controlling water loss. AWWA offers free Water

Audit Software. The second step is intervention and implementing solutions, and the third

step is evaluation and further improvements if needed. Metering and better water

accounting are key to improving the city’s water loss percentage.

PEAK WATER DAY: Generally this number indicates if the city has high summer water use.

Conservation education should focus on improving landscape irrigation efficiency on public

and private property. The UMN Turfgrass Science website has excellent irrigation resources.

If your peak water day was for hydrant flushing, you might evaluate if this amount could be

reduced without sacrificing best practices. Some cities are significantly cutting back with

hydrant flushing and not impacting water quality.

RESIDENTIAL & NON-RESIDENTIAL: Compare the volume of Residential and non-residential

water user. Is one significantly more than the other or are they quite close in water use?

Focusing on your big water use accounts with education programs or conservation

partnerships may make sense.

NON-RESIDENTIAL EDUCATION AND OUTREACH IDEAS:

a. Non-residential use is always an opportunity for water conservation — economically
Commercial, Industrial and Institutional users want to be as efficient as possible. The
city should look at the 2-3 largest non-residential water users and meet with them to
see if there are things they can do to conserve water.

b. Cities often work with the Cll categories that are easiest to implement:
government/municipal buildings and facilities; large landscape areas; schools and/or
colleges; office buildings; restaurants. Research shows that the degree of success for
water conservation are: 1. Schools/colleges, 2. Commercial and apartments, 3. Large

3



landscape areas, 4. Lodging, 5. Public pools/water parks. Target your efforts here for
optimal success.

If any of the Cll facilities have outdoor lawn irrigation this is an easy and quick way to
reduce water use by installing smart meters, doing an irrigation audit to look for leaks
and broken heads, or simply turning off the irrigation controllers and only turning them
on when there has been a lack of rainfall.

9. RESIDENTIAL EDUCATION AND OUTREACH IDEAS:

d.

The city may want to offer free toilet leak detection tablets to customers since this is the
most common leak and easy to fix. Contact the MN DNR Information Center for a free
supply of toilet leak detection info cards and dye tablets.

You may want to try promoting this home water conservation app that only takes a few
minutes and is fun and informative http://nrwa.agkwa.com (try it yourself!). In addition
to adults, you can work with the schools, kids may influence their parents to conserve
water.

Other new water campaigns the city may want to participate in include: the US EPA
WaterSense Program. Membership is free and allows you access to great resources. Also
Vaiue of Water- US Water Alliance has a Value of Water Campaign
http://uswateralliance.org/initiatives/value-of-water with a toolkit that has PDFs of ads,
billboards, bill stuffers, bus shelter ads, banners, and social media. The focus is positive,
emphasizing that water is essential.

10. ORDINANCES: City Councils may want to strengthen their water conservation ordinances.
League of MN Cities is a great source for sample ordinances.

11. RATE STRUCTURE: Cities should regularly evaluate the water rate structure. MN Rural Water
Association provides this service (free for a quick review; small fee for a full bookkeeping
audit).

12. FUTURE WEATHER: Northern cities are already experiencing changing seasons and weather
patterns. Some of these will impact water supply and demand. Climate science tells us three

key trends will likely continue through mid-century:

1.
2.
3.

Extreme rainfall is happening more often.

Minnesota’s climate is becoming warmer and wetter.

Winter is warming 13 times faster than summer and there are fewer days of extreme
cold.

These changes will likely impact public water supplies in several ways:

a.

Rivers & Streams: Rivers will see altered high and low flows and an increase in
contamination due to flooding. Whatever the historic flood level has been in the past,
anticipate it to be higher. Are water treatment facilities, water towers, and pumps flood
proof/resilient? Are there industries upstream that may contaminate drinking water
supplies during a flood? Are communications in place to notify the city of possible
contamination and emergency flood preparations in place? If the city is not a member of
MnWARN they may want to consider this voluntary option. Warmer winters may mean
more ice, which often requires more salt treatment. Chloride contamination is
becoming a concern in many areas of the state and may require additional water
treatment.

Lakes: Longer thermal stratification on lakes means that seasonal mixing may be
eliminated in shallow water, resulting in fish kills. This may not affect the city directly.
Thin ice may pose safety hazards to citizens and staff.



Possible City Infrastructure Impact: direct damage from heavy rain, increased
mold/moisture damage, safety and accessibility on ice or trails, damage to culverts and
bridges.

Invasive species have new advantages. Are zebra mussels a threat at your water or
wastewater treatment facilities? If not, they may be in the future. Forest insect pests
may migrate further north killing vast forested areas and increasing fire hazards.
Warmer winter temperatures: The good news is this may mean fewer frozen water
lines.

Forests: Boreal species will face increasing hydrothermal stress. The heat stress is more
than trees can tolerate and forest communities will change across the landscape and
higher temperatures means more drying of vegetation. If geographically appropriate, is
the water system prepared for a possible increase in forest fires?
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Proposed As Consent ltem Je

PO Box 470 - 255 Sarazin Street
Shakopee, Minnesota 55379
Main 952.445-1988 - Fax 952.445-7767

Shakopee Public Utilities www.shakopeeutilities.com

TO: Greg Drent, Interim General Manager M

FROM: Joseph D. Adams, Planning & Engineering Directo
SUBJECT: Magellan Encroachment Agreement

DATE: April 29, 2022

ISSUE

An encroachment agreement between multiple parties, including SPU, is required for the East
End project.

BACKGROUND

City Project 2021-001 for Maras Street, 13" Avenue, (Stagecoach Road) and Hansen Avenue
includes water main installation across the Magellan pipeline easement.

DISCUSSION

Magellan owns and operates a pipeline inside their 100-foot-wide easement across the Maras
Street roadway.

Magellan requires all parties to enter into an encroachment agreement for the improvements
lying within their easement. SPU will own and operate the public water main after its initial
construction across the pipeline easement, and so will also be a party to the agreements.

The Commission’s attorney and staff have reviewed the proposed encroachment agreement
language and agree that it will be sufficient to ensure SPU’s and the public’s interests concerning

the water main.

REQUESTED ACTION

Staff requests the Commission approve the encroachment agreement as submitted and authorize

its execution.




(Drafted by & when filed return to: Magellan Pipelinc Company, L.P., P. O. Box 22186, OTC-8 (S. Guthrie), Tulsa, Oklahoma 74121-2186,
918/574-7350.)

ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT

This Encroachment Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into by and between Magellan
Pipeline Company, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership, whose address is P.O. Box 22186, Tulsa,
Oklahoma, 74121-2186, (hereinafter called "Magellan"), and City of Shakopee, whose address is
485 Gorman Street, Shakopee, Minnesota 55379, its successors, assigns and grantees (hereinafter
called “City”) and Shakopee Public Utilities Commission, a Minncsota municipal utility, whose
mailing address is 255 Sarazin Street, Shakopee, Minnesota 55379, its successors, assigns and
grantees (hereinafter called “SPUC™).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, City represents and warrants that City owns the right to construct an electrical
conduit, sanitary sewer, waterline and street reconstruction across/on all the certain land
(hereinafter “Subject Land”), described on attached Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof: and

WHEREAS, Magellan is the owner of certain pipelines, pipeline facilities and appurtenances
(hereinafter referrcd to as the "Magellan Facilities") and easement rights therefor, (hereinafter
referred to as the "Easement", whether or not rights were granted in one or more documents or
acquired by operation of law). For purposes of this Agreement only, “Magellan’s Easement
Tract” shall be considered to be any area within Fifty (50) feet of any Magellan Facilities, unless
a different right of way tract width is specifically described in the Easement, in which case such
specified width shall define Magellan’s Easement Tract. The land referenced in the Easement
includes a portion of the Southeast Quarter (SE'4) of Section 12, Township 115 North, Range 22
West, Scott County, Minnesota, pursuant to those certain instruments recorded in the records of
said county and state and described as follows:
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1) A Right of Way Agreement executed by Homer I. Munson and Helen B. Munson,
husband and wife, on the 19th day of June, 1954, in favor of Great Lakes Pipe Line
Company (Magellan’s predecessor in title), its successors and assigns, and filed
for record in the office of the Register of Deeds of Scott County, Minnesota on the
24th day of July, 1954, in Book 130 of Deeds, Page 439; and,

2) A Right of Way Agreement executed by Thomas J. Horarka and Florence E.
Horarka, husband and wife, and Anna Stemmer, widow, in favor of Great Lakes
Pipe Line Company (Magellan’s predecessor in title), its successors and assigns,
on the 17th day of June, 1954, and filed for record in the office of the Register of
Deeds of Scott County, Minnesota on the 24th day of July, 1954, in Book 130 of
Deeds, Page 437; and,

3) Partial Release of Right of Way dated December 31, 1973 and recorded in the office
of Register of Deeds, Scott County, MN as Document # 139252 and Book 130,
Page 439, from Williams Brothers Pipe Line Company (Magellan’s predecessor in
title) to Vera M. Stewart, Allen V. Stewart and Farm and City Associates, Inc.,
releasing a portion of the rights granted in the Right of Way Agreement and
Amendments listed above; and

4) Partial Release of Right of Way dated March 11, 1958 and recorded in the office of
Register of Deeds, Scott County, MN, in Book N Page 207, from Great Lakes Pipe
Line (Magellan’s predecessor in title) to Ed and Barbara Drury, husband and wife
and joint tenants, releasing a portion of the rights granted in the Right of Way
Agreement and Amendments listed above; and

WHEREAS, for the purposes of this Agreement an “Encroachment” is defined as any use of the
land within Magellan’s Easement Tract by somcone other than Magellan which could interfere
with Magellan’s Easement rights or could create safety concemns related to Magellan’s Facilities
as more fully described in Magellan’s General Encroachment Requirements as set forth in
attached Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein by reference. Magellan does not permit or
authorize any Encroachments unless specifically approved in a written agreement
identifying all “Approved Encroachments”; and

WHEREAS, City desires to obtain Magellan’s consent for one or more Encroachments on
Magellan’s Easement Tract;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and agreements herein and other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Magellan,
subject to the following terms and provisions, hereby consents to the Encroachments listed below
as “Approved Encroachments” described and limited pursuant to the following specified plan
drawings, which were furnished by City to Magellan (“Plan Drawings”) and attached hereto as
Exhibit “C”:
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1) Shakopee City Project No. 21-001, WSB Project No. 016155-000, Utility Extension-Maras
Street, 13™ Avenue East, & Hansen Avenue, Project Plan Sheets 20, 27, 30, 33, 34, 48, 51,
52, 61, dated 1/18/2022 and revised 3/02/2022.

TERMS AND PROVISIONS

. Approved Encroachments. The Approved Encroachments, as further identified, described
and limited in the Plan Drawings as set forth in Exhibit “C” are limited to the following:

a) 2-Inch Electrical Conduit (Maras Street).

| Maras Street — Street Lighting Plan | Sheet 61 of 76

The Project proposes to construct a 2-Inch electrical conduit that will cross the Magellan
Facilities and Magellan Easement. The electrical conduit will be installed by open trench
and will cross over the Magellan Facility with 2 feet of clearance.

Magellan finds the proposed 2-Inch electrical conduit acceptable on the condition it maintains
a minimum separation of 2 feet and a Magellan Representative is onsite during construction

activities to verify the required scparation distance is achieved.

b) Maras Street Reconstruction.

Typical Sections | Sheet 20 of 75

Maras Street Removal Plans | Sheet 27 of 75

| Maras Street — Street & Storm Sewer Plans | Sheet 51 of 76

i Maras Street — Street & Storm Sewer Plans | Sheet 52 of 76

The Project proposes to reconstruct Maras Street as a 36- Foot- wide (face of curb to face of
curb) street with curb and gutter crossing the Magellan Facilities and Magellan Easement.
The pavement section consists of 5-inch asphalt concrete; over 10- inch aggregate base; over
prepared subgrade. The curb and gutter will have 4- inch perforated drain pipe installed as
needed to facilitate drainage. There will also be a 5-foot wide concrete sidewalk on the west
side of the road. The sidewalk section will generally consist of 4-inches concrete; over 4-
inches aggregate base; over approved subgrade. The sidewalk will be 8-inches thick where the
new commercial driveway is installed in the Magellan Easement on the west side of the road.

An existing tree will be removed from the Magellan Easement in the vicinity of the new
driveway. A Magellan Representative shall be onsite during the tree removal to ensure that
the pipeline is not impacted or affected.

The existing depth of cover over the Magellan Facilities is approximately 3.7 feet, which will
remain approximately the same after roadway reconstruction.

Auny roadway signs shall be installed at least 5 feet away from the Magellan Facilities.
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While the existing and proposed cover over the Magellan Facilities is less than the required 4
feet, because it is an existing road Magellan finds the proposed street reconstruction acceptable
on the condition that the existing cover is not reduced and a Magellan Representative is
onsite during construction activities to verify the existing depth of cover is maintained.

¢) 8-Inch Sanitary Sewer (Maras Street).

| Maras Street — Sanitary Sewer & Watermain | Sheet 33 of 76
Plans
Maras Street — Sanitary Sewer & Watermain | Sheet 34 of 76
Plans
Maras Street — Sanitary Sewer & Watermain | SHEET A
Plans

The Project proposes to construct a 8-Inch SDR 26 PVC sanitary sewer that will cross under
the Magellan Facilities with approximately 20 feet of wall-to-wall separation.

Magellan finds the proposed 8-Inch sanitary sewer is acceptable on the condition it maintains
a minimum wall-to-wall separation of 2 feet and a Magellan Representative is onsite during
construction activities. The proposed double trench design as shown on Sheet A is approved
subject to the following conditions:
1. If 20 feet of pipc span is exposed, additional support mitigations may be required by
Magellan. The on-site Magellan Representative should be consulted.

2. Ifa girth weld is exposed, it will need to be supported within 5. The on-site Magellan
Representative should be consulted.

3. The Magellan Facilities should be cxposed for as short of time as possible. The day before
exposing the pipeline, the Contractor should work up to the edge of the excavation
location that will expose the Magellan Facilities so the next day they will have a full
day to complete the sanitary sewer installation and backfill the Magellan Facilities.

4. The Magellan Representative will be notified and invited to attend the project
preconstruction meetings.

d) 12-Inch Waterline (Maras Street).
Maras Street — Sanitary Sewer & Watermain | Sheet 30 of 76 |
|

Plans |

Maras Street — Sanitary Sewer & Watermain | Sheet 33 of 76

Plans - |

Maras Street — Sanitary Sewer & Watermain | Sheet 34 of 76 '
| Plans ' |

The SPUC proposes to construct a 12-Inch CL 52 DIP watermain that will cross under the
Magellan Facilities with approximately 4 feet of wall-to-wall separation. The 12-Inch
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watermain will be zinc coated and will have an enhanced V-Bio encasement throughout the
Magellan Easement and extending 20 feet each side of the Magellan Easement

Magellan finds the proposed 12- Inch watermain and zinc coating acceptable on the condition
it maintains a minimum wall-to-wall separation of 2 feet and a Magellan Representative is

onsite during construction activities.

e) 13" Avenue East Street Reconstruction.

Typical Sections Sheet 20 of 75
13" Avenue East — Street & Storm Sewer | Sheet 48 of 76
Plans .

The Project proposes to reconstruct 13™ Avenue East as a 44-Foot wide (face of curb to face
of curb) street with curb and gutter crossing the Magellan Facilities and Easement at the
intersection of Stagecoach Road. The pavement section consists of 5-inch asphalt concrete;
over 10-inch aggregate base; over prepared subgrade. The existing curb and gutter will be
utilized on the north side of the street and the curb and gutter on the south side will have 4-
inch perforated drain pipe installed as needed to facilitate drainage.

The existing depth of cover over the Magellan Facility is not indicated in the plans; however,
based on the plan profile sheet, the existing depth of cover will be maintained.

Any roadway signs shall be installed at least 5 feet away from the Magellan Facilities.

Magellan finds the proposed street reconstruction acceptable on the condition that the existing
cover is not reduced and a Magellan Representative is onsite during construction activities to

verify the existing depth of cover is maintained.

f) Heavy Equipment Crossing Requirements:
Although exact construction equipment is not known at this time, pipeline stress
calculations have been performed based on an assumed maximum loaded vehicle weight
0f 80,000 1bs. The stress calculations further assumed that the gross loaded vehicle
weight was evenly distributed between two (2) axles resulting in a maximum wheel load
0f 20,000 1bs. Based upon these assumptions, equipment meeting the aforesaid criteria
may safely cross the Magellan Facilities; however, a Magellan field representative
will necd to be present to verify the pipeline depth of cover prior to allowing
equipment to cross. A minimum cover of at least 3.5 feet shall be maintained for all

equipment crossings over the Magellan Facilities.

Tracked equipment and equipment exceeding the maximum wheel load specified
above will not be allowed to cross the Magellan Facilities without further evaluation
of the pipeline stresses. If equipment exceeding the maximum wheel load specified above
will need to cross the pipeline, detailed information will need to be received in order to
perform pipe stress calculations. The following information will need to be received to
perform a more thorough analysis of wheeled vehicles: loaded vehicle weight, number of

5

Encroachment Agrcement EA-F Xing — 3-28-05 — Tracts 7311, 7312, Scott County, MN - Agent HCP - Project 20-657
revised 4/21/2022



axles on the front and rear, and weight distribution between the front and rear axles. For
equipment on tracks, the following information is needed: loaded vehicle weight, length
of track in contact with the ground, and track width.

g) Maximum Unsupported Span Length:
Certain precautions will need to be implemented to ensure the integrity of the Magellan
Facilities. Magellan’s standard practice is to conduct non-destructive evaluations and/or
weld on reinforcing sleeves on all girth welds that will be fully exposed when the native
supporting soil under the pipeline will be removed for a length greater than or equal to the
respective pipeline’s safe maximum allowable unsupported span length. The maximum
unsupported active pipeline span is 40-feet.

If digging within 2 feet of the Magellan Facilities hand digging is required as cited in
Provision #4 herein.

The City and its contractor will need to pay careful attention to the unsupported pipe length
of the Magellan Facilities. If more than the safe maximum unsupported span length for
the pipeline has been exposed, Magellan will require non-destructive evaluations of the
girth welds and will make repairs as necessary.

h) Girth Weld Precautions:
All exposed girth welds shall be supported (supports to be placed on either side of the girth
weld not to exceed 5 feet) via sandbags or equivalent settlement resistant supports prior to

backfilling.

No Other Encroachments. Except for the Approved Encroachments as defined in the
Agreement, City shall not create, erect, place or construct any other Encroachment on, above
or below the surface of the ground on Magellan’s Easement Tract, or change the grade or
elevation of the ground surface within Magellan’s Easement Tract or at any time plant or
allow any trees thereon or cause or permit any of these to be done by others, without the express

prior written permission of Magellan.

Magellan On-Site Representative. Exclusive of Saturday, Sunday, and legal holidays, City
shall notify Magellan a minimum of 48 hours in advance of any Encroachment activities on
Magellan’s Easement Tract so that Magellan may arrange to have a representative present.
At Magellan's option, Magellan's representative may be on site during all Encroachment
activities over or within ten feet (10') of the Magellan Facilities to confirm that no damage
occurs to the Magellan Facilities. The presence of Magellan's representative or any verbal
instructions given by such representative shall not relieve City of any liability under the
Easement or this Agreement, and will not change the terms of the Easement or this
Agreement, which may only be changed by written agreement by authorized representatives
of City and Magellan. If pipeline, coating, cathodic protection and/or any other repair of
Magellan Facilities is required by Magellan or if the safety of the Magellan Facilities is
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jeopardized, in Magellan’s sole judgment, City shall stop all construction activities on
Magellan’s Easement Tract until said repairs are completed or until any unsafe construction
practices are resolved to the satisfaction of Magellan’s on-site representative. Written
notification of such construction activity shall be made to MAGELLAN PIPELINE CITY,
Coordinator of Operations & Maintenance, Heath Biegler, Coordinator of Operations &
Maintenance, 2451 W County Road C, Saint Paul, MN 55113, Cell: (612) 723-0107, or
such other representative of Magellan, which Magellan may from time to time designate.

Protection of Magellan Facilities. City shall protect the Magellan Facilities if excavating
and backfilling become necessary within Magellan’s Easement Tract. If excavating within
2 feet of any Magellan pipeline or when otherwise deemed necessary by Magellan’s on-site
representative, City shall perform any necessary digging or excavation operations by hand
digging. City shall reimburse Magellan for all costs of having a representative of Magellan
on-site during construction activities related to the Approved Encroachments. City agrees
that if it is determined or if an event arisecs requiring alternate current mitigation measures, it

will be at City’s expense.

Breach. If either City or Magellan breaches this Agreement and the non-breaching party
commences litigation to enforce any provisions of this Agreement, the reasonable cost of
attorneys' fees and expenses will be payable to the non-breaching party by the breaching party
upon demand, for all claims upon which the non-breaching party prevails.

. Insurance. City shall procure or cause its contractors and subcontractors to procure and
maintain in force throughout the entire term of this Agreement insurance coverage described
below with insurance companies acceptable to Magellan for work performed related to the
construction of the Approved Encroachments. All costs and deductible amounts will be for
the sole account of the City or its contractors and subcontractors. Prior to commencing any
activities related to the construction of the Approved Encroachments, the City must deliver
to Magellan certificate(s) of insurance naming Magellan Midstream Partners, L.P. and its
Affiliates as an additional insured. Non-renewal or cancellation of policies must be effective
only after Magellan receives written notice from the insurance company thirty (30) days in
advance of such non-renewal or cancellation. The limits set forth below are minimum limits
and will not be construed to limit the City’s liability:

(a) Workers' Compensation insurance complying with the laws of the Statc or States having
jurisdiction over each cmployee and Employer's Liability insurance with limits of

$1,000,000.

(b) Commercial or Comprehensive General Liability insurance on an occurrence form with a
combined single limit of $2,000,000 each occurrence and project specific annual
aggregates of $2,000,000. Coverage must include premises/operations, independent
contractors, blanket contractual liability, and products/completed operations coverage,
broad form property damage, personal injury, and sudden and accidental pollution; such
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coverage must be maintained for two (2) years following completion of work activities
related to the construction of the Approved Encroachments. Magellan, its affiliated
companies, and its and their respective directors, officers, partners, members, shareholders,
employees, agents and contractors shall be included as additional insureds.

The Sudden and Accidental Pollution can be a separate, stand-alone policy, but must still
meet the $2,000,000 minimum limit requirement. If the coverage is written on a claims
made policy form, the coverage must be maintained for two (2) years following completion
of the work activities related to the Approved Encroachments.

(c) In each of the above policies, the City or its contractors and subcontractors agree to waive
and will require its insurers to waive any nghts of subrogation or recovery either may have
against Magellan and its affiliated companies.

(d) Regardless of the insurance requirements above, the insolvency, bankruptcy, or failure of
any such insurancc company providing insurance for the City or its contractors and
subcontractors, or the failure of any such insurance company to pay claims that occur, such
requirements, insolvency, bankruptcy or failure will not be held to waive any of the
provisions hereof.

(c) In the event of a loss or claim arising out of or in connection with the construction of the
Approved Encroachments, the City agrees, upon request of Magellan, to submit a
certified copy of its insurance policies for inspection by Magellan.

(f) The City shall require all of its contractors and subcontractors for work related to the
construction of the Approved Encroachments to provide adequate insurance covcrage,
all to be endorsed with the Waiver of Subrogation wording referenced in Section (¢) above;
any deficiency in the coverage, policy limits, or endorsements of said contractors and
subcontractors, shall be the sole responsibility of the City.

Indemnification. City will indemnify, save, and hold harmless Magellan, its affiliated
compantes, directors, officers, partners, employees, agents and contractors from any and all
environmental and non-environmental liabilitics, losses, costs, damages, expenses, fees
(including reasonable attorneys’ fees), fines, penalties, claims, demands, causes of action,
proceedings (including administrative proceedings), judgments, decrees and orders resulting
from City’s breach of this Agreement or caused by or as a result of the construction, use,
maintenance, existence or removal of the Approved Encroachments and Other
Encroachments located on the Magellan Easement Tract. The presence of Magellan’s
representative or any instructions given by such representative will not relieve City of any
liability under this Agreement, except to the extent that such liability results from Magellan’s
or its representative’s gross negligence or willful misconduct.
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8. Damage or Loss. City covenants that:

9.

10.

(a) If at any time, in the sole opinion of Magellan, it becomes necessary for Magellan, to

cross, occupy, utilize, move or remove all or portions of the Approved Encroachments
placed on Magellan’s Easement Tract or constructed pursuant to this Agreement, for any
purpose, including but not limited to surveying, constructing new facilities, maintaining,
inspecting, operating, protecting, repairing, replacing, removing or changing the size of a
pipeline(s) and appurtenances on Magellan’s Easement Tract and such activities by
Magellan result in damage to or destruction of the Approved Encroachments, then repair,
replacement or restoration of such Approved Encroachments shall be at the sole cost and

responsibility of City.

(b) If at any time, any encroachments belonging to or permitted by City which are not

authorized by this or another written agreement (“Other Encroachments”) are found to
be on Magellan’s Easement Tract, Magellan may at any time request City to remove
such Other Encroachments, and if City refuses or fails to do so within a reasonable time,
Magellan may remove them from Magellan’s Easement Tract to a location off of
Magellan’s Easement Tract at City’s expense, unless they are allowed to remain by a
written agreement between Magellan and City. Should such removal activities by
Magellan result in damage to or destruction of the Other Encroachments, then repair,
replacement or restoration of such Other Encroachments shall be at the solc cost and
responsibility of City, and such Other Encroachments may not be repaired, replaced or
rebuilt on Magellan’s Easement Tract without a written agreement between Magellan

and City.

City agrees that if it is determined or if an event arises requiring alternate current

mitigation measures, it will be at City’s expense.

(d) If during the exercise of the rights granted by the Easement or by this Agreement, the

Approved Encroachments and Other Encroachments, if any, are damaged, destroyed
or suffer loss of value, City agrees to release Magellan, its affiliates, and its and their
respective directors, officers, members, partners, shareholders, employees, agents and
contractors from and against any and all liabilities, and damages or losses which may arise
as a result of the damage to or loss of use of the Approved Encroachments and Other
Encroachments, if any, caused by Magellan, its cmployees, agents and contractors.

Magellan Rights. Magellan and City and SPUC agree that the existence of the Approved
Encroachments or this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of Magellan’s rights under
the Easement. Magellan hereby reserves and City and SPUC hereby grant and confirm all
of Magellan’s rights, title and estate as set forth in the Easement.

The terms and conditions of this Agreement will constitute covenants running with the land
and be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their successors, assigns and
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grantees. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one instrument. This
Agreement shall become effective upon its complete execution by the parties hereto.

11. The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that SPUC’s role and responsibilities under this
Agreement are limited to the watermain described in Section 1(d) as an Approved
Encroachment (the “Watermain”). After installation of the Watermain as an Approved
Encroachment, SPUC shall be the party that owns, operates, maintains, and repairs the
Watermain and SPUC shall then be the party responsible for the obligations under this
Agreement with respect to the Watermain. SPUC shall have no obligations or responsibilities
with respect to any other Approved Encroachments.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands on the dates expressed below.

MAGELLAN PIPELINE COMPANY, L.P.
By Its General Partner, Magellan Pipeline GP, LLC
By Its Undersigned Authorized Signatory:

By:

Name:

Title: Authorized Signatory

Date: . 2022
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CITY OF SHAKOPEE, MN

By:

Name:

Title:

Date: , 2022

By:

Name:

Title:

Date: , 2022

SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
A Minnesota municipal utility

By:

Name:

Title:

Date: , 2022
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STATE OF OKLAHOMA )
) SS

COUNTY OF TULSA )

Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the county and state aforesaid, on this

__dayof_ , 2022 personally appeared , 1o
me personally known to be the Authorized Signatory for MAGELLAN PIPELINE GP, LLC a
Delaware limited liability company, who being duly swom did acknowledge to me that she
executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of said limited liability company as the free and
voluntary act and deed, for the uses, purposes and consideration therein set forth.

Witness my hand and official seal.

Notary Public
My commission expires:

{REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK}
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STATE OF MINNESOTA )
) SS
)

COUNTY OF SCOTT

Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the County aforesaid, on this day
of , 2022, personally appeared to mc known
personally to be the for the CITY OF SHAKOPEE, MN who

being duly sworn did acknowledge to me that he/she executed the foregoing instrument on behalf
of said cntity as the free and voluntary act and deed of said entity, for the uses, purposes and

consideration therein set forth.

Witness my hand and official seal.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:
STATE OF MINNESOTA )
) SS
COUNTY OF SCOTT )
Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the County aforesaid, on this day
of . 2022, personally appeared to me known

personally to be the for the CITY OF SHAKOPEE, MN who
being duly sworn did acknowledge to me that he/she executed the foregoing instrument on behalf
of said entity as the free and voluntary act and deed of said entity, for the uses, purposes and

consideration therein set forth.

Witness my hand and official seal.

Notary Public
My Commission Expircs:
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STATE OF MINNESOTA )
) SS
COUNTY OF SCOTT )
Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the County aforesaid, on this day
of , 2022, personally appeared to me

known personally to be the of SHAKOPEE PUBLIC

UTILITIES COMMISSION, a Minnesota municipal utility, who being duly swom did
acknowledge to me that he/she executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of said entity as the
free and voluntary act and deed of said entity, for thc uscs, purposes and consideration therein set

forth.

Witness my hand and official seal.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:

{REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK}
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EXHIBIT “A”

SUBJECT LAND

West Half of the Southeast Quarter (W2SE¥) and the East Half of
the Southeast Quarter (E2SEY%) of Section 12, Township 115
North, Range 22 West, Scott County, Minnesota (13 Avenue East
and Maras Street, City of Shakopee, MN).

{REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK}
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EXHIBIT “B”

GENERAL ENCROACHMENT REQUIREMENTS

{REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK}
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EXHIBIT “B” TO ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT, 1 of4

MAGELLAN PIPELINE
COMPANY, L.P.

General Encroachment
Requirements

- These requirements
define the minimum standards of’
practice for encroachments by a
landowner (inciuding any developer.
husiness entity, ulility company or
individual working for, or on behal !
of, or with permission of landowner)
(herein referred to colleclively as
“Owner”) to pipelinc corridors and
rights of way (“Magcllan’s
Easement Tiact”™) owned or operated
by Magellan Pipeline Company, L P.
(“Magellan™). Upon writlen 1equest
by Owner to Magellan, a copy of
these minimum requirements shall be
provided to any developer, business
entity, utility company o individual
working on behalf of Owner or with
the permission of Owner within
Magcllan's Eascment Tract Specific
circurnstances may requira additional
precautions or more stringeot
methods in arder (o protect the
inlegrily of Magcllan's pipelines and

Magellan's Esserent Tract, Foe
ather activities af the Owner an the
Magcllan Eascmenlt Tracl, the
Magellan field represenlative shall
detenmine whether Magcllan's
continuous presence ov periodic

B. MAGELLAN RIGHT OF WAY
PRACTICE

1. Pervonal Property and Fixtores
To Be Kept O of Magellans
Easemcpt Tract: In order to keep

Magellan rights of way clear for

monitoring of cner
activities will be required and shall
inform the Owner, A Mageilan
representative wil! be made available
upon 48 hours notice (exclusive of

kends and holidays) to d i
the jocation and approximate depth
of uny Magellan pipelines, No
excavation shall be e cd

aperations, maintenance, inspeclion
and cmergency access, personal
property and fixtures shall not be
placed, stored or maintained on
Magellan's Easement Tract Personal
property and fixtures include, but are
not limited to, storaye sheds,

biles, trailers, mobile homes,

without prior written approval from
Magellan and verification by
Magellan of the location and
approximate depth of its pipelines,

3. Magcllun’s Facilitivs.
Magcllan’s {acilities include, bul arc
not limited to, Easement, nghts of
way, pipelines, meter and valve siles,
abaveground piping manifelds and
cathodic protection syslcms.

4, L -

The landowner and tenant, if any,

musl notify Magellan at sny and

every time when the land use will be
hanged for land on or adjacent to

facifities. Magellan’s E Tract A

for purposes of these General Magcllan’s Easement Tract

Ei hment Requi shall be Examples af such land use changes
are:

considered Lo be any arca within fifty
(50) feet of any Magellan pipeline or
other Magellan-owned or operated
facility unless a different vight of way
width is specilied by one or more
recorded right of way or easement
documents (herein colleelively called
“Easernent”. whether one or more),
ir. which casc such specified width
shall define Magellan's Easernent
Tracl

1. Encroachment Definition. Ao

“encroachmenl” is any use of the
land within Magellan’s Easement
Tract which could interfere with
Meagellan’s Easement rights ar which
could create safely concerns for
Magellan pipelines and/ar facilities
localed on Magellan's Easement
Tract Encraachments include, but
are ot limiled to: siruerures, fixtures,
personal propenty, landscaping,
forcign utilities, foreign pipelines,
roadways, railroads, waterway
crossings, water impoundmenls,
walls, beavy equipment and heavy
loads on Magellan’s Easement Tract,
and aiso any excavation, digging,
drilling, tunncling and addition,
removal ar disturbance of soil or
subsoil within Magellan’s Eascment
Tract

2. Magcllan Representative
Required On-Site. Mage!lan
pipeline systems operate at high
pressurcs, and for safely reasons,
Magellan requires its company
represeniatives (e be on-sile while
Owner is excavating or perfurming
other aclivitics which could cndanger
the Magellan pipelines or othe
[acilitics on

» Change [rom pasture Lo cultivation
= Change in depth of tilling (e g
plowing deeper or deep-breaking Lhe
land)

» Change in that teraces will be cut
or re-cut

+ Change from agricullural usc to
residential, commercial or indusirial
use

» Change from residential to
commercial or [rom commercial Lo
industrial.

5. Gaverneenia) Regulations and

I idelingy. Owner must
comply with all applicable laws and
regulalions, as well as Magellan’s
policies as expressed hercin, Owner
is also hereby referred (o the
Common Giound Alliance Best
Praclices which can be found on the

web site:
dalli cum

abovc-ground swimming pools,
business equipment, product
invenlory, scrap meta!, boulders,
large rocks, debris, junk and piles of
malenals,

2. Encroachmenty Subject to Being

Tract. Subjecr Lo the lerms of ils
Easement (inchuding right of way
agreemenl[s] and ether written
agreements) , Magellan may keep
Magelian's Fasemenl Tract clear of
items thai may hinder the exercise of
Magellan’s rights o construc,
operate, inspect, maintain, repair and
access ils pipelines and olher
facilities, Clearing of the Mageilan’s
Easement Tract shall include, but nat
be limited to the following: remaval
of lrees, brush, crops, other
vegelation and non-permitied
encroachments located on or
overhanging all or part of any
Magellan’s Eascment Tract. Trees or
olher vegetation overhanging
Magellun's Easement Tracl may be
side-timmed.

C. ENCROACHMENT PLANNING

1, Plan Review Required by
Magellan, For any cncroachment,
Magellan must be provided project
plans to review and approve, prior to
the encragchment oceurring, for
purposcs of damage prevention.

2. Submission of Complete Plznx

QOwner must submit complete plans

to Magclian for review. Incomplete

plans could delay Magellan’s
gineering impacl study and

WWW.C

{See "“Program Information™ / “Best
Practices”) and which is available
from Commaon Ground Alliance in
booklet form for casy refercnce Best
Practices addresses the most common
issues for damage prevention for an
encraaching party, including, among
others: Planning and Design; One-
Call Center; Locating and Marking;
Excavation; and Mapping,

In the even uf a conflict berween
laws and rcgulations, Magellzn’s
policies and the Common Ground
Alliance Best Practices, Lhe following
priority shall govern encroachments
on Magellan’s Eascment Tract: IsL--
laws and regulations; 2nd -~
Magellan policies; snd 3rd —
Common Ground Alliance Best
Praclices

insufficient information could resull
in inercased costs, Plans must
include:

« A plan view of the praject with the
pipeline(s) location included

* An illusiration in prefile of the
existing surface elevations, the
proposed surface elevations and Lhe
clevation of the Magellan pipeline(s)
« A comprehensive ulilily /structure
/grading plan depicting the
refationship ta the pipeline(s).

= A proper legal description of the
project location.

= Complele landscaping plans

« Complele plans for backfilling and
compaction of backfill material.

3. Plans Must Show Magcllae™s
Easement Tract, Pipelines and
Facilitics,  All construction plans
(prints) showing lands where all or
any part of Magellan’s Easement
Tracl, any Magellan pipeline or

raeility is lecated must contan the

Cicared from Mogellan’y Easement

following:

= Lucation and depth of all Mageilan
pipclines and (acililies

« The width of Magejlan’s Easement
Tract

+ A standard warning statement

disnlaved

{y disp
the following language:

WARNING
HIGH-PRESSURE PIPELINE(S)
Excavarion and/or Constyuction
Prohibited Without compliance with
State One-Call AND Withour Written
Fermission From MAGELLAN
PIPELINE COMPANY, L. P.

4. Written Encroachment

reLme mired. A written,
fully exccuted Encroachment
Agreement must be in place between
Magellan and Owner before Owner
comimences work on any
encroachmenl,

5. Costs. Unless otherwisc agreed in
writing, all costs lo Magellan that
reaull [rom any encroashmant should
be paid by Owner. Such cosis shal!
include, but not be limited Lo:
modification, replacement, lowering,
and prolection of pipclines, including
engineering evaluation and design,
feld 1abor and real cstale research
and documment preparation and
handling,

&. Pipeline Int; Inspection.
Prior to the installation of any
structure, parking lot, roadway or
other facility which might interfere
with or hinder Magellan®s inspection
of any pipeline or facility, Magellan
will perform an integrily review of its
pipeline and any other assets which
may be affected by the proposed
structure, parking lot, roadway or
other encroaching (acilily in order (o
determine that Magelian's assels
comply wilh integrily requirements
and ta allow Magellan 1o make any
nceded changes prior 10 construclion
of any encroachments

7. Soil On Magellan's Eascment
Tract — Removing snd Addiog, No

soil shall be removed from or added
Lo Magellan's Easemeni Tract
wilheut written authorization from
Magellan, Any soil added must be
clean (without contaminants, trash or
debris) fill dirt and must be limited in
ampunt so that the

resilting cover {verlical distmee
from the surface of the land (o the top
of Mapellan's pipeline) is not greater
than eight fect (87).

8. Erosion Contrel Malcrials.
Lrosion-centrol materials may be
allowed on Magellan's Easement
Tracl for temporary periods of
constructiun and restoration

9. Proof of Title to Property.

Magellan may require Owner to
provide prool of current ownership of
the land where the proposed
encroachment is to be locuted. Such
prool may he in the form of a Title
Commitment, Tille Policy, or a copy
of a recorded Warranty Deed

10, Suhdivision Plat. Magellan
requires a copy of the Subdivision
Play, if applicable 1f the plat has been
recorded, Magellan requires a copy
indicating the book and the page ol
Lhe recording

11. Lacatiop and Appy enitnsls
Depth of Pipclines, A Magelien
representalive is normally available
with 48 hours notice (exclusive of
weckends and holidays) to determine
the location and approximale depth
of the pipelinc(s). Determining actual
depths of pipelines may requite pot-
holing or hand-digping by, and at the
expense of Owner in the presence af
an authorized Magellan
represeniative, Ne excavation on
Magellan’s Easement Tracl shall rake
place withoul approval by Magellan

12. Vertical Separation Between
Mageltan line or F: and
an Encroaching Obfrcl or
Strocture. Vertical separalion is
defined in this document as the
vertical distance between Lhe
outermost part of a Magellan
pipeling, facility or appurtenance (far
examplc, the outside of the pipe [for
uncased pipe] or the oulside of the
pipe casing [for cased pipe]) and the
outermos! par. of the cncroaching
object {for example, the outside of
the encroaching pipeline or the
outside of its conduit)

13. Coosiruclion Equipment
Information. Owner shall provide Lo
Magellan information as to the rype,
size, and weight of construclion
equipmenl Lhat will be used over or
in the vicinity of the pipeline(s).

D. ENCROACHMENT DESIGN
REQUIREMENTS &
STANI

1. Risk of and Damgge,
Owner shall bear the risk of loss,
damage and/or destruction Lo any
structure, fence, landscaping ar
improvement placed within the
boundaries of Mageilan's Easement
Tract and shall hold Magellan
harmless
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EXHIBIT “B” TO ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT, 2o0f4

for damages, destruction aof
structures and for any conscquentia)
damages which may arise out of
Magellan or its desi ising
Magellan’s Easement rights or which
may arise oul of accessing
Magellan’s Easement Tract, pipelines
or facilitics

2. Bulldingy, Structures and

Fences.

a, Buildings and Structures. No
buildings, houses, barns, garages,
patios, playhouses, sheds, scplic
systems or drain fields,
swimming pools (above~graund
or below-ground), reinforced
conerele slabs or other similar
structures will be permitied on
the Magellan's Eascment Tract

. Septic System not permitted.

No septic-system, inciuding any

lateral tines will be permilled on

Magellan’s Basement Tract.

Retaining Walls, Relaining walls

arc not permitted on Magellan's

Easement Tracl

. Feoces, No fence shall be
conslructed or mainiained on
Magellan’s Easement Tiact
without 2 wrillen sgreement,

. Requirements (or Fences. If
llan's E

o

o

B

®

Magellan's Eascment Tract
b. General Landscaping
Requiremenis The following aie the
geaeral rules for landscaping on
Magellan’s Easement Tract:
1)Written Approval. Landscaping
proposed to be done on Magellan's
Easement Tract must be approved
by Magellan in a wrilten
encroachment agreement. Among
other lerms, the encroachment
agreemenl will release Magellan
from any liability for damages to
the landscaping fom the exercisc
of Magellan’s Easemnent rights
2) Trecs Not Permitted. Trees
arc nol permmitted on Magellan's
Eascment Tract
3) Shrubs. Shrubs exceeding 3
feet in height and/or obstructing
the view of any Mage(lan pipcling
marker posts are not permitted on
Magellan's Fasernent Tracl.
4) Irrigation Systems, Ficld
Drain Lines, and Sldewalks.
Trrigation systems, ficld drain lines
and sidewalks that are (o cross a
Magellan pipelinc must cross such
pipcline al an angle as close to 90
degrees as possible, but in no event
al an ongle iosa than 45 dogrooa
and must comply with other

fencing on Magg s

Tract is avthorized by a written

agreement wilth Magcllan, the

fencing must comply with the
following:

1) Not Paralle! to Pipcline. No
fence shall be aliowed (o be
constructed parallel closer
than 10 fecl o any Magellan
pipeline, within the
boundaries of Magellan's
Easement Tract

2) Fence Posts Location. No

fence posts will be allowed 10

be within five (5) fect of any

Magellan pipeline or facility

Gates Requlred. Magcllan

may require any fence

conslrucled within the
boundaries of Magellan’s

Easemenl Tract (o have gales

of such size and suitability as

3

-

plicable provisions of this
document

c. No Water Bodies an Magellan’s
Easement Tract. Retention of water,
including but not limiled to,
Livestock ponds, lakes, retention
ponds, or wetlands may nal be
constructed or formed an Magellan’s
Easemen! Tract
d. Surface Grade and Elevation
Changes. Surfacc grade or elevation
changes must be reviewed and
approved in writing by Magellan,

4, Forcign Plpeline & Utilis
Crosslogs.

No foreign pipelines or
utility lines of any type shall be
allowed lo be constructed parallel to
any Magcllan pipeline within the

1n the foilowing manncr:

1) Thc lape must be placed directly
over (parallel lo) and at leasl 15
inches above the foreign line for
the entire distance that it
occupies Magellan's Easement
Tract. Additionally, the tape
must be placed direclly over
(parallel to) and at least 15
inches above each Magellan
pipeline that is crossed for a
minimum distance which is Lhe
greater of:

(a) a minimum distance of 20
feet on cach side of the
Magellan pipeline, or

(b) acrass Lhe entire width of
Magellan's Eascment Tiact

The placement of waming tape

on each side of Meagellan

pipeline(s) will not be required
for ulility cables thal are
inslalled using the directional
drilf o1 jacking method

d. Crossings By Metal Pipelines or

Conduits. Metallic pipe crossing

Magellan pipeline(s) may require

Magellan to perform a cathodic

prolection inlerference survey. ([

interference with Magellan’s
cathodic prolcclion sysicm is
delected and remediation is
necessary, Qwner agrees to
caoperate with Magellan and to
wmake necessary adjustments in

Owner’s interfering metallic pipe or

other remediation to correct such

interference prablem insure that the

Magellan cathodic pratection

system is operating properly

e. Crossing Requlrements.

Electrieal, fiber optic, local service

communication, long distancc

carricr telephone, and utility cables
should cross Magellan pipcline(s)
with a mririmum of 24-inches of
vertical seporafion, All such lincs
must be covered with a Concrele

Slab for the full width of the

Easement Tract, if requested by

Magellan. If such lines have an

d ic nculral, a test

P

boundaries of Magellan's E
Tract

is Y Or co! ient for
Magellan to access its
pipelines and/or facilitics for
its aperations, includi

a, Mi Angle for
Pipeline/Utility Crossing. Any
foreign pipelinc or utility thal is
p d to cross a Magellan

inspections, al cach point
where the fenee crosses a
Magellan pipeline or facility
boundary. Magellan shall be
allowed Lo pul 2 Magellan
lock en such gales, which wiil
allow access lo Magellan's
Easement Tract and/o:
lacilities through such gales

4) Angle of Fence Crossing. It
is preferred (hat fence
crossings be as close to 90
degrees as possible,

3
Changes and Water.

a. Landscaping Definition.
Landscaping shall include,
but not be limited to, uees,
shrubs, underground
irrigation or sprinkler
systems, sidewalks or ather
paths, retaining wails, terraces
or other land gradc changes,
within

point from the ground wire shall be
installed by the pawer company

1. Crossing Requirements For
Lines Going Over a Magcllan
Pipeline. In the event the eleclrical,
fiber optic, local service
communication, Tong dis

pipeling must cross the Mag
pipeling at an angle as close 10 90
degrees as possible, bul in no evenl at
an angle less than 45 degrees.

h. Vertical Separation
Requirements for Crossing. Foreign
pipeline(s), utililies (excepl high-
voltage lines - see below) or flow
lines should cross Magellan
pipeline(s) with at least 24 inches of
vertical separalion, Special written
authorization must be given in the
evenl verlical separalion is Tess than
that specified in these General
Encroachment Requirements, The
preferred methad for a foreign
pipcline or ulility o cross a Magellan
pipcline is 1o eross defow the
Magellan pipeline,

c. Waraing Tape Required. When
any forvign pipeline or utility line is
proposed to cross a Magellan
pipeling, Owner must place §" wide
McMaster-Cair No 8288T12 or
equal wilhin Magellan's Easement
Tract

carrier tclephane, and utility cables
cable crosses over a Magellan
pipeline, such line shall be encased
in red concrete across the full
width of Magellan’s Easement
Tract, unless a vaniance is granted
by Magelian, as set forth below

% Written Authorization for
Variance. Owner mus! have writien
authorization from Magellan for any
variance from the vertical
scparation requirements listed above
and/or for any variance fram the
requirement for

cncasement of high-voltage

clectrical lines in red concrete.

h. Utility Polcs and Guy Anchors.
Ulility poles and guy anchors
shall not be placed on Magellan's
Easement Tract without a written
agreement. With a wrilten
agrecment, poles and anchors
may be placed no closer than 20
feeel 1o any Magellan pipeline.
Poles shall not be allowed to tun
paralle) Lo a Magellan pipeline
within the Magellan Easement
Tracl,

i. Dircctional Drilling / Boring.

1) Prior o commencing any
horizontal dircclional drilling,
Owner shall submil plans
showing pracedure and
material descriptions for
Magellan’s appruval. The
plans and description shall
include, bul nol be limiled to
the followmg:

«  Profilc and plan showing
location of entry and exit
poinls

- Work space required to
perform Lhe work

= Mud conlainment and
dispusal siles

Owner shall positively locate

and stake the location off

Magellan’s existing pipelines

and other underground

facililies, inclnding expasing
any facililies localed within

10 feet af the designed drilled

path. Prior lo commencing

drilling operations, Owner
shall modily drilling praclices
and down-hole assemblies ta

prevent damage (o

Magellan's existing pipelines

and other facilities, Owner

shall be responsible [or losses
and repairs occasioned by
damage all Magellan
pipelincs and other facilitics
resuiling from drilling or
boring eperalions.

At all times, Owner shall

provide and maintain

instrumentation to document
and accuralcly |ocaic the pilot
hole and the drill bit, to
measure drill-string axial and
torsional oads, and to
measure drifling Muid
discharge rate and pressure.

Al Magellan’s request, Owner

shall promptly provide

Magellan with reasonable

access to information and

readings provided by these:
instruments, including copics
ofany wrillen documentation.

4) Pilot Hole
»  The pilot hole shall be

drilled along the path
shown in the plan and
profile drawings No pilot
hole shall be made that
will result in any of the
encroaching utility being
installed 1n violation of

2

3

« Elevation of +0 feet and =15
feet
* Alignment of +/-20 fect as
long as i1 does nol come lo
within 10 feet of Magellan’s
pipeline
~ Initial penetration of ground
surface at cxacl location shown
in the plan and profile
drawings
« Final penetration of the
ground surface within +/-10
feet of Lhe alignment and
within 430 fect and 0 [eet of
the leagth shown in the plan
and profile drawings
« Curves shall be drilled at a
radius equal (o or grealer than
that specified in the plan and
profile drawings The drilled
radius will be caleulaled over
any 3 joints (range 2 type di!ll
pipe) segment using lhe
following formula:
Rdrifled = (Lrillcd/Aavg) x
180/1
Where: Rdrilled -drilfed radivs
over Ldrilled
Ldnilled = length drilled; no
less than 75 feet and no greater
(lart 100 el
Aavp = total change in angle
over Ldnlied
« At the completion of the pilot-
hole drilling, Owner shall provide
to Mage!lan a rabulation of
herizontal and vertical coordinales,
referenced to Lhe dnlied entry
poinl, which accurately deseribe
the location of the pilot hole.
5) Drilllng Flulds
~The compositicn of drilling (luids
proposed {or use shall comply with
all applicable laws and regulations.
= Owner is responsible for
abtaining, transporting and storing
any water required for drilling
fuids.
« Disposal of drilling Muids and
drill cuttings shall be Qwnrer's
responsibilily and shall b
conducted in compliance with
applicabie laws and regutations,
Trilling fluid shall nar be disposed
af by placing (luids on or under
lhe surface of Magellan's
Easement Tract
« Owner shall employ hest efforts
10 maintain full annular circolation
of dnllmg fluids. Drlling fluid
returns at localions other lhan
entry and exit points shall be
minimized. If annular cisculation
is lost, Owmer shall take steps to
restore circulalion. |f inadverient
surface returns of drilling fluids
oceur, hey shall be immedialely
caontained with hand-placed
barriers (e g, hay bales, sand bags,
silt fences, etc.) and collected
using pumps as practical  If the
amount of sirface retum is not
greal enough 1o allow practical
collectian, the affected area will be
diluled with fresh waler and the
flaid wil! be allowed 1o dry and

laws and regulations or of
Magellan’s requitements
described herein
However, safety for any
adjacent utilities and/or
structures is of utmost
importance. Therefore,
the listing of separation
distances or tolcrances
herein dacs not relieve
Owner from responsibility
for safe operations or for
damage Lo adjaceol
utilities and strucrures

« Il wlcrances are nol
specified in the plan and
profile drawiags, the pilot
hole shall have the
following tolerances:

dissipate naturally. TF
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EXHIBIT “B” TO ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT, 3 of 4

the amount of surfacs return exceeds that
which can be contained with hand-placed
barriers, smail collection sumps (less than 5
cubic yards) may be used unless permils or
ather regulations prohibit the use of collection
sumps. If the amounl of surface rewmn
exceeds that which can be contained and
collected using barriers or small sumps, or if
the retumn of drilling fluids occws in the body
of waler proper, drilling operations will be
suspended untit surface retum volumes can be
controlled.

6) As-Built Drawing OQwner shal! provide to
Magellan an as-built plan and profile drawing
of the drilled crossing showing the localion of
the new crossing as well as the location of
Magellan’s pipeline

5. Roatway, Dsiveway, Rallroad and Equipment
Crossings. No roadway, driveway, railroad or
equipment crossings of any (ype shall be allowed
to be canstructed paralle! Lo any Magellan
pipcline within (he boundarics of Magellan's
Easement Tract.

a. Pipcline Integrity Inspection A pipeline
integrily review shall be performed by Magellan
as described in provisicn 6™ under “C.
Encrpachment Planning (above),

b. Load Bearing and Stress Limit
Requirements. Prior (o any road, driveway, rail
bed er equipment crossing construction,
Magellan's enginecr must determine whether the
proposed compacted cover meels load-bearing
requirements and provides adequale protection (o
limil stress on Magellan's pipeline or other
facilitics and must advise Owner of any
additional requirements necessary to provide
adequate protection,

¢. No Crossing Over Pipcline Bend. Paved
surfaces or rai] beds shall nol be allowed Lo cross
a pipeline bend (poiat of inflection),

d. Minimum Angle of Crossing. Crossings
should be as close 10 90 degrees to Magellan
pipeline(s) as possible, bul not less than 30
degrees

e. Pipeline Casing Issues. Magellan prefers that
cased roadway and railroad crossings no [onger
be instatled. [T the carrier pipe under roadways
and railroads requires adjustment or relocation,
then instead of usiug casing, the carrier pipe wiil
consist of exira strength material or heavier wall
thickacss to accommadatc the additional
longitudinal stress due to extemal loads. If a road
ar railroad crossing currently uses casing and the
road or railroad is being widened and no other
adjustment or relocation of the carrier pipeis
required, then Magellan may elect to extend the
casing pipe on the existing crossing(s) to
accommaodate additional road surface. If casing is
used, it must not end under the roadway surface
or track structure, but must cxtend across the
cntire length of the roadway or railroed right of
way

f. Railroad Crassing Requirements Railroads
shall be installed with a

minimum compacted cover over the samier pipe, as
measured from the base of the rail 1o the: 1op of the
pipe, as tollows (see Figures | and 3).

Minimum
Location of Eompoeted Caver
Pipcline QverTop ol
Fipeline
Under track structure
proper (Brlow 6.0 feel
bollom of rail)
Under all other
surfaces within the 3.0 feet
rght of way ar from
the bottom of ditches

g. Roadway and Driveway Crossings.
Roadways and driveways, shall be installed with
a minimum compzcled cover over Lhe carricr
pipe, as measured from the top of Lhe roadway
surface (o the lop of Lhe pipe, as follows (see
Figures Z and 4):

Location of Pipeline | Minimum
Compacted Cover
Over Top of
Pipdline

Unler roadway

surface proper 4.0 feer

(Below surface of

pavement)

Under all other

surfaces within the 3.0 feet

right of way or {rom

|_the bottom of ditehas

h. Crossing Pipelines Transporting Highly
Valatile Liquids. For Magellan pipelines
transporting highly volatile liquids, minimum
cover for a crossing ata diaipage ditch must be 4.0
fect.
i. When Additional Depth Required. Depth
grealer than the minimum depihs slated above may
be required for a pipeline due to the cambined
slress of internal pipeline pressure and exiemal
loading pressure. Magellan will analyze each
proposcd crossing bascd on information provided
by Owrier 10 delermme any additional depth that
may be required for the pipeline for safe operation.
j- Temporary Roads and Equipmend Crossings.
Any such road or crossing must mect the following
requirements:
» Musl be located al a site approved by a
Magellan field representative.
» Must provide adequale protection for
Magellan’s pipeline and ather facilities, as
delermined by the appropriate Magellan
engineer, so that the compacted cover meets
load-bearing requirements and provides
adequate protection (o limit stress on the
pipeline or ather facilities.

+ Owner shall place Six-inch wide plastic
warning tape, MicMuster-Care No. 8288T12 or
equal, ovel cach pipeline for the width of the
{emporary read or equipmenl crossing, plus an
addilional 20 fees past cach oulside adge of such
lemporary road or cquipment crossiog

k. Owner Required ta Protect Magellan
Fipelines. Magellan may require Qwner Lo put in
place additional cover and/or stabilization
{limbers, steel plale, crushed rack, concrele slab,
elc ) at any approved equipment crossing in order
to prolect Magellan pipclines, laking into account
possible cffects of weather, pipeline depth, and
type of vehicles proposed to cross the pipelines
Magellan will analyze cach proposcd crossing
based un informalion provided by Owner to
determing any additional depth or prolection that
may be requited for sale pipeline operation

I. Heavy Equipment - Definitien and
Reguirements. Heavy equipment shall be defined
as vehicles having a gross weight in excess of
80,000 pounds Heavy cquipment shall be
prohibiled from working direcily on top of the
active pipeline. For vehicles having a gross
weight of 80,000 pounds or less, the pipcling must
have a minimum of 4 feet of cover, Magellan
raust analyze the additional longitudinal stress
due to external toads if the vehicles have a gross
weight in evcess of 80,000 pounds in order to
determine required pipeline depth for safe

operalion,
6. Parkipg Loty and Qther Pavement,

a, Parking Lot and Pavement Requirements.
All parking lots and other pavement installed on
Magellan’s Easement Tract shall consist of a
flexible surface such as asphalt No reinforced
conercie will be allowed.

h. Pipeline Depth Under Packing Lat. The
depth of Magellan’s pipelines under a parking lot
must meet or exceed compacled cover
requirements listed in the previous “Roadway,
Driveway, Railroad, and Equipment Crossings”
scclion ahove

7. Waterway Crossings.

a, Pipeline Depth Requirements, [T Owner
proposes Lo cross a Magellan pipeline with a
walerway (river, stream, creek, irrigation canal, or
drainage ditch), such crossing must result in
Magellan’s pipetines meeling or exceetling the
minimum depth below the bottom of the
walerway for compliance with then current
pipeline construction standards and federal, state,
and local regulations.
b. Requircments for Waterway Crossings:
1) Minimum Angle or Crossing. Crossings
shouid be as close to 90 degrecs to Magellan
pipeline(s) as possible, but not less than 45

degroes

1) Vertical Separation Requirements for
‘Waterway Crossing. Pipelinet (o be crossed
musl have a minimum verlical scparation of
five (5) fest, as measured from the bottom of
the walerway W the oulcrmost parl of a
Magellan pipeline, facility or appurienance

3) Adding Weight to Pipeline for Negative
Buoyancy. Owner shall bear the cost off
Mage(lan adding sufficient weight or
mechanical devices to any Mage{lan pipeline
crossed by a waterway in order to create
negative buoyancy for such pipeline

8. Blasting,

a. Magellan Wrilten Appraval
Required — Plan Ta Be Submitted.
Magellan musi approve any propased
blasting aperalions that could affect its
pipelines or facilities Should blasting be
necessary, a comprehensive plan must be
submilted (o Magellan for review and
wriltcn approval.

b. Safety Considerations — Damage
Prevendon Plan. For safely and
preservation of Magellan assets, all
blasting shal! be in accorduncs with
federal, state, and lucal governing
agencies and the Magellan's "Damage
Prevention Plan for Blasting Near
Company Facilities™. A copy ol szid plan
will be made available upon request

¥. EXCAVATION NEAR MAGELLAN
PIPELINES.

1. STATE “ONE-CALL” REQUIRED. No
excavation oy activity listed in "4 GENERAL
- | Encygachment Definivon” above shall be
performed by Owner in the vicinity of
Magellan's facililies or within Magellan's
Easement Tract until proper telephone
nolificalion has been made Lo the appropriate
“One Call” system and a Magellan
represchtalive is on-sile (o monilor excavalion
activilies. All of the states in which Magellan
conducts pipelinc eperations have “One Call™
laws, which require 48-72-hours notification
prior o any excavation related activities.
Afler making a One-Call, the stale One-Call
agency will notify Magellan lo mark
accurately, in a reasonable and limely
manner, the localion of the Magellan's
pipeline facilities in the vicinity of the
proposed encroachmenl,

2. ONECALL NOTIFICATION. 7he
Sallawing list is provided for comvenience, but
is not warrunted by Magelion 10 be complete
ar accuirate (telephone numbers were copied

Jroni each staie’s web site on 1/5/2004).
Owner is required to acquire and call the
apprupriate One-Call number(s) for its
location of acGvity.
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EXHIBIT “B” TO ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT, 4 of4

Carrent “ONE-CALL" numbers and information can
be found on each state’s “ONE-CALL" website:
Arkansas - www.arkonecall com/ - 800 4¥2-8998
Calorade - www.unceZ.org/ - 800 922-1987
Illinois - www.illinois | call com/ - 800 892-0123
Towa - www.iowaonecall.com/ - 800 292-8989
Kansas - www kansasonecall com/ - B00 344-7233
Minnesota -www.popherstatconecall org/ -

- 800 252-1166
Missourl - www mo! call com/ - 800 344-7483
Nebraska - www ne-diggers com/ - 800 331-5666

North Dakota -www ndonccatl.com/ - 800 795-0555
Oklahoma - www.callokie cony/ - B0O 522-6543
South Dakata -www.sdonccall.com/index.asp

- §00 781-7474
Texas - www texasonecall com/ - 800 2454545
Wisconsin - www,diggersholline com/ - 800 242-851 |

Alternatively, the National One-Call number — (888)
258-0808 - may be used to register a proposed
excavation and to subsequently notily underground
utility epcratars with assets in the vicinity.

3. Excavation Plan Appreval. Owner shail submit to
Magellan for its approval plans for any propased
excavation on the Magellan Easement Tract No
cxcavation on Magellan’s Easement Tracl shall be
commenced until Owner has securad Magellan's writen
approval of the plans  The excavalion wark shall be in
compliance with al! applicable laws and regulations
Owner is alse referred 1o the Common Ground Alliance
Best Praclices (refeienced in this document),

4. Mageilan Represcniative Qo-Site far Excavalion.

A Magellan representative mus( be on-gitc when an
excavation is occwring on Magellan's Easement Tract
(see provision “2" under “A. Gengral” beginning on
page 1)

5. Removal of Side-Culting Tecth from Equipment.

Side-cuning tecth shall be removed from buckets of
excavaling equipment.

6. Parallel Excavatlog Required. When, in preparation
for grassing any Magellan pipeline with any alher
pipeline or with electric line, communication line,
raadway or any other slructure or facility, Owner nceds
to locate a Magellan pipeline by use of mechanical
means, Owner must perform such lacating activity by
excavating parallel 1o the Magellan pipeline with such
mechanical means, bul

shall cease using the mechanical means when it reaches = point within two feet of
the Magcllan prpeline {see nexf provision)

7. Expesing Pipeline by Hand. Excavaling wilhin 2 (ecl of any Magellan
pipeline shall be done by hand-digging until the pipeline is exposed and its
{ocation is accurately knawn. Then, Owner must pesition the excavalien
equipment so that from the point of operations the equipment will not reach
within 2 feet of any Magellan pipeline,

RAILROAD AND HIGHWAY CROSSINGS
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Proposed As Consent ltem 31:

PO Box 470 - 255 Sarazin Street
Shakopee, Minnesota 55379
Main 952.445-1988 - Fax 952.445-7767

Shakopee Public Utilities www.shakopeeutilities.com

DATE: April 26, 2022

TO: Greg Drent, General Managew

FROM: Kelley Willemssen, Director of Finance and Administration ,égo—
Subject: Accounts Receivable Aging Report — Collections Update
Overview:

In addition to the monthly financial reports, we will begin reporting updates on the status of accounts
receivables and collection activities. Below is a summary of each area. The graphs included reflect
comparisons from March 2021 to March 2022 for receivable balances over 31 days outstanding.

Accounts Receivable Update

As of 3/31/2022, the outstanding receivable total for electric and water equaled $4,722,801.82.

e 90.7% of outstanding receivables was between 1-30 days
e 5.2% of outstanding receivables was between 31-60 days
e 1.7% of outstanding receivables was between 61-120 days
e 2.4% of outstanding receivables was over 120 days

Collection Activity Update
1. 138 disconnects for the month of March 2022 - $41,806.51

Payment Plan Activity
1. 252 accounts in repayment plans as of March 2022 - $221,038.14

a. Number of accounts between $30 - $200 (2-month plans) — 64
b. Number of accounts between $201 - $500 (6-month plans) —39
c. Number of accounts between $501 and greater (12-month plans) — 149

Requested Action
No action is required. This is an informational item.




DOLLARS

= 2021 Electric AR $ 31-60 days
= 2022 Electric AR $ 31-60 days
% Better/(Worse)

SPU ELECTRIC AGED RECEIVABLES $ 31 - 60 DAYS

= 2021 Electric AR $ 31-60 days = 2022 Electric AR $ 31-60 days

Jan
$248,413
$259,013

4.3%

Feb
$582,771
$317,615

45.5%

Mar
$216,346
$219,866

-1.6%




DOLLARS

#2021 Water AR § 31-60 days
w2022 Water AR $ 31-60 days
% Better/(Worse)

SPU WATER AGED RECEIVABLES $ 31 - 60 DAYS

= 2021 Water AR $ 31-60 days #2022 Water AR $ 31-60 days

Jan
$35,560
$28,146

20 8%

Feb
$38,920
$31,629

18.7%

Mar
$36,130
$26,151

27.6%




DOLLARS

#2021 Electric AR $ 61 - 120 days
© 2022 Electric AR $ 61 - 120 days
% Better/(Worse)

SPU ELECTRIC AGED RECEIVABLES $ 61-120 DAYS

2021 Electric AR $ 61 - 120 days #2022 Electric AR § 61 - 120 days

Jan
$154,708
$81,611
47.2%

Feb
$147,217
$77,409
47.4%

Mar
$144,263
$66,605
53.8%




DOLLARS

» 2021 Water AR $ 61 - 120 days
+ 2022 Water AR $ 61 - 120 days
% Better/(Worse)

SPU WATER AGED RECEIVABLES $ 61-120 DAYS

= 2021 Water AR $ 61- 120 days #2022 Water AR $ 61 - 120 days

Jan
$37,454
$27,294

27.3%

Feb
$27,890
$17,850

36.0%

Mar
$24,315
$12,675

47.9%




SPU ELECTRIC AGED RECEIVABLES $ OVER 120 DAYS

= 2021 Electric AR § Over 120 Days = 2022 Eleciric AR $ Over 120 Days

0
[:4
<
)
>
(o]
=]
Jan Feb
82021 Electric AR § Over 120 Daye $317,574 $207,057 $209,580
2022 Electric AR § Over 120 Days $02,845 $04,.977 $86.,462
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Shakopee Public Utilities www.shakopeeutilities.com

TO: Greg Drent, General Manager M _
FROM: Joseph D. Adams, Planning & Engineering Director
SUBJECT:  West End Lower Bluff Trunk Water Main Extension

DATE: April 29, 2022

ISSUE

The City of Shakopee requested, and the Utilities Commission agreed to initially fund extending
a municipal trunk water main west from Windermere Addition south of Highway 169 to serve
the newly annexed and developing areas on the west end of Shakopee.

BACKGROUND

It was previously decided by the Utilities Commission to extend a 12-inch trunk water main in
collaboration with the city’s own project to install a sanitary sewer force main and lift station to
serve the west end of Shakopee. The city plans to establish a Lateral Sanitary Sewer Connection
Charge that along with their Trunk Sanitary Sewer Charge and Sanitary Sewer Connection fees
will fully reimburse the city for the cost of the sanitary sewer improvements. Per established
Utilities Commission policies, the trunk water main over sizing will be funded out of the Trunk
Water Fund and the equivalent lateral water main cost will also be initially funded out of the
Trunk Water Fund with the plan to recover the lateral water main equivalency costs when the
properties being crossed connect to the water main for service when they are developed. The
Commission has in place a policy for this situation as described in the attached Resolution #815
A Resolution Authorizing and Establishing a Fee for the Equivalent Lateral Water Main Portion
of a Trunk Water Main Project.

A contract for the utility project was recently awarded and based on the unit pricing in the
contract the construction cost of the 12-inch trunk water main is $905,364.39. Lateral water
main equivalent construction costs for an 8-inch water main are estimated to be $650,600.79 and
trunk water main over sizing construction costs are estimated to be $254,763.60. There will be
additional costs for the engineering design services and inspection. SPU contracted with the
city’s consulting engineer Bolton and Menk for engineering design services for the 12-inch trunk
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water main. This project is currently listed in the 2022 Capital Projects budget in the amount of
$1,700,000.

The water main will be installed parallel to the city’s sanitary sewer force main within the
Highway 169 right of way immediately adjacent to two undeveloped parcels allowing for ease of
future connection. One parcel is currently owned by the R and J Breeggemann Partnership and
the other is now owned by the city of Shakopee. Those parcels do not have current plans to
connect to municipal services. The Breeggemann parcel is most likely to develop in the near
future, while the city parcel is planned for passive park purposes.

DISCUSSION

Based on the policy resolution, staff has prepared Resolution #2022-11 A Resolution Approving
a Water Main Construction Project and Determining its Lateral Water Main Equivalency
Described as: West End Lower Bluff Trunk Water Main Extension.

In preparing the above resolution staff proposes to spread the lateral water main equivalency cost
over both parcels being crossed by the water main following the practice of including all of the
area within those parcels to the next anticipated parallel water main. To do that staff took into
account that there would be no parallel water main expected on the city parcel so its entire area
was included while on the Breeggemann parcel future development will undoubtably include
addition water mains for service and fire protection, however we cannot know exactly where the

future water mains will be located.

So, staff decided to take the following approach in determining the benefitted area on the
Breeggemann parcel. Given the city’s planned zoning for the parcel, the minimum pipe diameter
required will be 8-inch and the coverage area of an 8-inch water main from the design criteria in
the SPU Water Policy Manual is to a dimension of 800 feet parallel to the water main. Since the
parcels are located within the 1% High Elevation Service District and the established boundary of
that district is the Highway 169 right of way, we included 800 feet (N-S) of area on the
Breeggeman parcel south of the Highway 169 right of way for the east west portion of the
watermain and 800 feet (W-E) east of the County Road 69 (old Brickyard Road) right of way for
the north south portion of the water main. Obviously, there will be some overlap, but we only

count any overlap area once.

As proposed the total area that the lateral water main equivalent connection charge would be
applied against is 72.01 acres with the split being 48.41 acres and 23.60 acres for the
Breeggemann and city parcels respectively. We then calculated the per acres fee by dividing the
estimated lateral water main equivalency cost of $650,600.79 by the total area of 72.01 acres
which equals $9,034.87 per acre.
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It is important to note that when the project is complete and final costs are known, a new
resolution will be presented, and the figures above adjusted. The resolutions will be recorded on
the deeds to the parcels so the present and any future prospective owner will be aware of the fee.

REQUESTED ACTION

Staff requests the Commission adopt Resolution #2022-11 as presented.




RESOLUTION #815

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND ESTABLISHING A FEE
FOR THE EQUIVALENT LATERAL WATER MAIN PORTION
OF A TRUNK WATER MAIN PROJECT

WHEREAS, Minn. Stat. Chapter 444 gives the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission
discretion in determining and calculating appropriate charges and fees to be collected for providing
water service to its customers;

WHEREAS, Minn. Stat, § 444.075, subd. 3 states that fees and charges may be imposed to
pay for the construction, reconstruction, repair, enlargement, maintenance, operation, and use of
water service facilities; and

WHEREAS, Minn. Stat. § 444.075, subd. 3 states that charges imposed for providing water
service must be just and equitable and must relate to the use of and the availability of water service

facilities and for connections with them; and

WHEREAS, the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission has established a trunk water policy
establishing a trunk water main area assessment charge for the construction of municipal trunk
water mains that are (over)sized in excess of the lateral water mains required to serve nearby

property; and

WHEREAS, the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission has established a lateral water main
design criteria policy establishing requirements for minimum size and number of lateral water
mains required to serve nearby property based on zoning, flow requirements and size of the area
being served; and

WHEREAS, the cost of installing and constructing lateral water mains are oftentimes paid
by developers or other parties requesting such service or through the Chapter 429 special
assessment process; and

WHEREAS, the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission has concluded that in certain cases,
the process established in Minn. Stat. Chapter 444 should be utilized to pay for the equivalent lateral
water main construction costs associated with specific water main installations; and

WHEREAS, the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission desires to establish 2 policy to
ensure that the fees for providing such lateral water main are just and equitable.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission as
follows:

1. Pursuant to Minn. Stat. Chapter 444, there is hereby established a fee for the
equivalent lateral water main portion of a trunk water main project.

2. The fee authorized by this Resolution shall be applicable in situations where the
equivalent lateral water main portion of the trunk water main costs is not being paid
by a developer or other person requesting the construction and installation of lateral
water main for the purpose of receiving water service or in situations where the
Commission concludes that collecting the costs through the Chapter 429 special
assessment procedure project should not utilized.

3. The lateral water main fee established by this Resolution shall be calculated at the
time that the Commission approves the water main project based on the actual costs
for constructing the water main, with consideration of the equivalent lateral water
main portion of any oversized trunk water main. The fee shall be indexed on an
annual basis and be calculated on an area basis based on the amount of property that
will ultimately be served by the lateral water main. The fee shall be paid at the time
of connection to the water system, and is in addition to any and all other applicable
standard requirements to receive water service.

Passed in regular session of the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission, this 1% day of

August, 2005.
; J) B!
Commis_? President: J @n Engler
ATTEST: - '

Vo 20 (A Lo fr
Commission Secretary: Kent Archerd




WEST END LOWER BLUFF TRUNK WATERMAIN EXTENSION
SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

BMI # 0C1.125796

DATE: 4/26/2022

SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES

ITEM  MN/DOT TOTAL TRUNK WATERMAIN FUND LATERAL WATERMAIN EQUIVALENT
NO. SPEC NO. ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY QUANTITY AMOUNT QUANTITY AMOUNT
1 2021.501 | MOBILIZATION LUMP SUM 1 $32,000.00 $32,000.00 1 532,000.00
2 2104.502 | REMOVE MANHOLE (SAN) EACH $850.00
3 2104.502 | SALVAGE HYDRANT & VALVE EACH 1 $615.00 $615.00 1 $615.00
4 2104503 | REMOVE SEWER PIPE (SANITARY) LINFT $50.00
5 2104.518 |REMOVE BITUMINOUS WALK SQFT 65 $10.00 $650.00 65 $650.00
6 2106.507 | EXCAVATION - COMMON (P) cuYD $25.00
7 2211.509 |AGGREGATE BASE CLASS 5 TON 792 $32.00 $25,344.00 792 $25,344.00
8 2360.509 | TYPE SP 9.5 WEARING COURSE MIX (2.C) TON $305.00
9 2360.604 | TYPE SP 9.5 WEARING COURSE MIX (2.C) 1.5" THICK (2 LIFTS) sayp 14 $80,00 $1,120.00 14 $1,120.00
10| 2451607 |ROCK EXCAVATION IN TRENCH CU YD 19 $125.00 §2,375.00 19 $2,375.00
11 2503.602 |CONNECT TO EXISTING SANITARY SEWER EACH $40,000.00
12| 2503.603 |12 FORCEMAIN HDPE PIPE SEWER LIN FT $95.00
13__|_2508.603_|21" PVC PS115 PIPE SEWER LIN FT $300.00
14 | 2503603 |21" PVC PS115 PIPE SEWER JACK & BORE (W/ STEEL CASING) LIN FT $1,260.00
15 2503603 | 12" WATERMAIN DUCTILE IRON CL 52 JACK & BORE (W/ STEEL CASING) LIN FT 130 $900.00 $117.000.00 130 $117.000.00
16| 2504602 |CONNECT TO EXISTING WATERMAIN EACH 1 $18,000.00 $18,000.00 1 $18,000.00
17| 2504602 [INSTALL HYDRANT AND VALVE EACH 1 $1.500.00 $1.500.00 1 $1.500.00
18 2504.602 _|6" GATE VALVE & BOX EACH 5 $2,500.00 $12.500.00 5 $12.500.00
2504 602 |e" GATE VALVE AND BOX EACH 9 $4.750.00 $42.750.00 9 $42.750,00
19 2504602 | 12" GATE VALVE & BOX (OVERSIZED) EACH 9 $350.00 $3.150.00 9 $3,150.00
20 HYDRANT EACH 4 $6.000.00 $24.000.00 4 $24.000.00
21 2504.603 _|6" WATERMAIN DUCTILE IRON CL 52 LIN FT 47 $65.00 $3.055.00 a7 $3,055.00
22 | 2504.603 |12 WATERMAIN DUCTILE IRON CL 52 LIN FT 5.199 $11.00 $57.189.00 5199 $57.189.00
2505603 | 12" WATERMAIN DUCTILE IRON CL 53 LIN FT 61 $91.00 $5.551.00 61 $5.551.00
2504.603 | 8" WATERMAIN DUCTILE IRON CL 52 LIN FT 5189 $80.00 5$415.920.00 5199 $415.920.00
23 2504.603 | 12" WATERMAIN DUCTILE IRON CL 52 (ZINC COATED) LINFT 85 $60.00 §5.100.00 85 $5.100.00
2504.603 | 8" WATERMAIN DUCTILE IRON CL 52 LINFT 85 $80.00 §6.800.00 85 $6.800.00
24 | 2504608 |DUCTILE IRON FITTINGS (SANITARY) POUND $25.00
25 | 2504.608 |DUCTILE IRON FITTINGS (WATERMAIN) POUND 996 $18.00 $17,928.00 996 §17.928.00
DUCTILE IRON FITTINGS (WATERMAIN) (OVERSIZED) POUND 804 $18.00 $14,472.00 804 $14.472.00
26 | 2506.601 |LIFT STATION LUMP SUM $475,000.00
27 | 2506.601 |LIFT STATION CONTROLS LUMP SUM $160,000.00
28 | 2506.602 |CONSTRUCT 96" DIA AIR RELEASE MANHOLE EACH $80,000.00
29 | 2506.602 |CONSTRUCT 96" DIA MAINTAINENCE MANHOLE EACH $85.000.00
30 2506603 |CONSTRUCT 48" DIA SAN MANHOLE LINFT $550.00
31 2506.603 | CONSTRUCT 84" DIA SAN MANHOLE LINFT $1,900.00
32 2521518 |6" CONCRETE WALK SQFT $21.00
33 2563.601 | TRAFFIC CONTROL LUMP SUM 1 $4.800.00 $4.800.00 1 $4.800.00
34 | 2564.602 |STRUCTURE MARKER SIGN EACH 5 $125.00 $625.00 5 $625.00
35 | 2571.524 |DECIDUOUS TREE 1.5" CAL B&B TREE 19 §725.00 $13.775.00 19 $13.775.00
36 | 2573501 |STABLIZIED CONSTRUCTION EXIT LUMP SUM 1 $1.900.00 $950.00 1 $950.00
37 | 2573502 |STORM DRAIN INLET PROTECTION EACH 5 $355.00 $1.775.00 5 $1.775.00
38 | 2573503 |SILT FENCE. TYPE MS LIN FT 3415 $1.80 $6.147.00 3415 $6.147.00
39 | 2573.503 |SEDIMENT CONTROL LOG TYPE WOOD FIBER LINFT 130 $4.00 $520.00 130 §520.00
40 | 2574.507 |COMMON TOPSOIL BORROW (LV) cu YD 50 $36.00 $1,800.00 50 $1.800.00
41 2574508 |FERTILIZER TYPE 3 POUND 411 $1.00 $411.00 411 $411.00
42 | 2575504 |ROLLED EROSION PREVENTION PRODUCT CAT 20 sQ YD 6.505 §1.50 §9,757.50 6505 $9.757.50
43 | 2575505 |SEEDING ACRE 2 5160.00 $328.80 2 $328.80
44| 2575508 |SEED MIXTURE 25-141 POUND 122 $7.00 $854.00 122 $854.00
45 | 2575508 |HYDRAULIC BONDED FIBER MATRIX POUND 7.193 $1.50 $10,769.50 7193 $10.789.50
46 2575523 |WATER MGAL 60 $45.00 $2.700.00 60 $2.700.00
SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION $862.251.80 $242.632.00 $619.619.80
TOTAL ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COST: $862,251.80 $242,632.00 $619,619.80
SOFT COSTS: $43,112.59 $12,131.60 $30,980.99
TOTAL ESTIMATED PROJECT COST: $905,364.39 $254.763.60 $650.600.79

NOTE:
ASSUMED QUANTITY AT 50% SPLIT WITH CITY OF SHAKOPEE
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Shakopee City Council
April 19, 2022

FROM: Darin Manning, Engineering Project Coordinator
TO: Mayor and Council Members

Subject:
West End Lower Bluff Utility Improvements Project

Policy/Action Requested:
Adopt Resolution R2022-060 accepting bids and awarding a contract in the amount of $2,695,452.60 to Northern

Lines Contracting for the West End Lower Bluff Utility Improvements Project Sewer-24-001.

Recommendation:
Adopt Resolution R2022-060.

Discussion:
The 2022 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) contains the West End Lower Bluff Utility Improvements Project Sewer-

24-001. On March 1, 2022, the City Council approved the plans and specifications and authorized bidding of the
project.

In accordance with Minnesota Statute Section 471.345 Uniform Municipal Contracting Law, bids were solicited and
opened on April 5, 2022. Seven bids were received and Northern Lines Contracting, from Bloomington, Minnesota,

is the lowest bidder in the amount of $2,695,452.60 (see the attached resolution for the bid tabulation summary). The
most recent engineers estimate for construction cost is $2,817,000. Northern Lines Contracting, has the capacity and

experience for the project and is deemed a responsible bidder.

Budget Impact:
Based on the low bid amount, the total estimated project cost for the project is $3,421,452.60. It is important to note

that the total project budget shown in the 2022 CIP (see attached CIP summary sheet) did not include costs for the
watermain improvements ($1,300,000) but has been added to the over budget. The below table summarizes the cost
and funding sources for the project with an updated CIP budget estimate that includes SPU's watermain portion.

CIP Budget Estimate Based
Estimate On Bid Award
COSTS
Construction Cost $ 2,180,000.00 $2.695,452.60
Contingency $ 320,000.00 $ 136,000.00
Subtotal $ 2,500,000.00 $2,831,452.60
Eng/Admin/Legal $ 590,000.00 $ 590,000.00

Total Estimated Project Cost

$ 3,090,000.00

$3.421,452.60

FUNDING

Sanitary Sewer Fund $ 1,790,000.00 $2.305,200.80
Shakopee Public Utilities $ 1,300,000.00 $1,116,251.80
Total Funding $ 3,090,000.00 $3.421,452.60

The amended total project budget of $3,421,452.60 includes a $136,000 contingency amount that would cover any
unexpected change orders, quantity adjustments and other miscellaneous expenses encountered as part of the project.
The increased project cost is a result of adding a County Road 69 sanitary sewer and casing crossing, the installation
of a dual sanitary sewer force main, and current material shortages and inflationary conditions. The County Road 69
sanitary sewer crossing was added to the project to include that work under a city led project (vs. future developer

https://shakopeemn.novusagenda.com/agendapublic/CoverSheet.aspx?ltemID=7359&MeetingiD=568 1/2
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project), which will ease the readiness for future connections and extension of the sewer. The dual sanitary sewer
force main was added to the project to allow for redundancy and flexibility during operations and maintenance.

The project is to be funded out of the Sanitary Sewer Fund and SPU Water Trunk Fund in the short term. The long
term sanitary sewer funding will be fully generated and paid by property owners/developers within the service area
through the Trunk Sanitary Sewer Charge, Lateral Sanitary Sewer Connection Charge and Sanitary Sewer
Connection fees once the land is developed and/or connected to the sewer. The sanitary sewer costs are 100 percent
recoverable from the area it will serve (e.g. future development area) and no costs are absorbed by other property
OWners.

ATTACHMENTS:

] Resolution R2022-060
o CIP Sheet

https://shakopeemn.novusagenda.com/agendapublic/CoverSheet.aspx?ltemlD=7359&MeetinglD=568 2/2



RESOLUTION #2022-11

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A WATER MAIN CONSTRUCTION PROJECT, AND
DETERMINING ITS LATERAL WATER MAIN EQUIVALENCY,
DESCRIBED AS:

WEST END LOWER BLUFF TRUNK WATER MAIN EXTENSION

WHEREAS, the Shakopee City Council and the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission
have agreed to construct certain public improvements in the Highway 169 and Country Road 69
right of way, and

WHEREAS, the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission desires to install a 12-inch water
main concurrent with the city improvements to further coordination of all of the improvements
and to avoid the inevitable complications that would result from installing the water main at a
future date, and

WHEREAS, there are cost savings to have the water main construction be a part of the
improvements, and

WHEREAS, the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission has previously adopted policies
to ensure the eventual recovery of lateral water main equivalent costs of trunk water mains and
the funding of trunk water main over sizing costs, and

WHEREAS, the estimated cost of the 12-inch water main construction is $905,364.39,
and

WHEREAS, the estimated cost of a lateral water main equivalent to an 8-inch water
main, the minimum size required to serve the east to west and north to south flow requirement of
the adjoining properties per the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission’s adopted water main
design criteria, is $650,600.79, and

WHEREAS, the area of the land being traversed by the extension of the 12-inch water
main, which is identified on Attachment A to this resolution, and that is determined to be
receiving the benefit of the lateral water main equivalent is 72.01 acres, and

WHEREAS, the estimated cost of the trunk water main over sizing from the 8-inch
lateral water main to the 12-inch trunk water main is $254,763.60.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the West End Lower Bluff Trunk Water
Mian Extension project is hereby approved.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the lateral water main equivalent cost shall be
recovered under the provisions of Resolution #815 with the fee described charged to the
properties fronting the 12-inch water main extension when those properties request water service
and meet all other standard requirements to receive water service, and the fee estimated to be
$9,034.87 per acre shall be set after project completion when final costs are known.



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the trunk water main over sizing cost shall be
funded per the trunk water policy.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all things necessary to carry out the terms and
purpose of this Resolution are hereby authorized and performed.

Passed in regular session of the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission, this 2nd day of
May, 2022.

Commission President: Kathi Mocol

ATTEST:

Commission Secretary: Greg Drent



Attachment A to Resolution #2022-11
Sheet 1 of 2

Preliminary Lateral Water Main Equivalent Charge for West End Lower Bluff Water Main

Extension
P.I.D Owner Acreage Proposed Lateral Water Main Charges
279140201 City of Shakopee 23.60 $213,222.87
279140290 R & J Breeggemann Partnership 48.41 $437,377.92
Total Acres 72.01 $650,600.79

$650,600.79 Total Later Water Main
$9,0347.87 per acre
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RESOLUTION #2022-12

A RESOLUTION APPROVING OF THE ESTIMATED COST OF
PIPE OVERSIZING ON THE WATER MAIN PROJECT:

WEST END LOWER BLUFF TRUNK WATER MAIN EXTENSION

WHEREAS, the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission has been notified of a City utility
improvements project including water main, and

WHEREAS, the pipe sizes required for that project have been approved as shown on the
engineering drawing by Bolton and Menk, Inc. and

WHEREAS, a part, or all, of the project contains pipe sizes larger than would be required
under the current Standard Water Main Design Criteria as adopted by the Shakopee Public
Utilities Commission, and

WHEREAS, the policy of the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission calls for the
payment of those costs to install oversize pipe above the standard size, and

WHEREAS, the pipes considered oversized are listed on an attachment to this
Resolution.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the amount of the oversizing to be paid by
the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission is approved in the amount of approximately
$254,763.60, and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the payment of the actual amount for said oversizing
will be approved by the Utilities Commission when final costs for the water main project are
known.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all things necessary to carry out the terms and
purpose of this Resolution are hereby authorized and performed.

Passed in regular session of the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission, this 2nd day of
May, 2022.

Commission President: Kathi Mocol

ATTEST:

Commission Secretary: Greg Drent

/c
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West End Lower Bluff Trunk Watermain Extension
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(SPU

Shakopee Public Utilities

TO: Greg Drent, General Manager W
FROM: Joseph D. Adams, Planning & Engineering Directo /
v

SUBJECT: City Project No. 2021-001 Maras Street, 13% Avenue, Stagecoach Road and
Hansen Avenue

DATE: March 17,2022

ISSUE

The Utilities Commission previously was advised that the City Council awarded the contract,
including water main extension, for the subject project at their March 15, 2022, Council meeting.

BACKGROUND

Attached is Resolution #815 A Resolution Authorizing and Establishing a Fee for the Equivalent
Lateral Water Main Portion of a Trunk Water Main Project.

The subject project will include the installation of a 12-inch diameter water main that will serve
the industrial zoned area east of Stagecoach Road and south of 13™ Avenue.

DISCUSSION

Attached is a map of the project area, the city’s March 15, 2022, staff memo to the City Council
with a summary of costs breakdown by funding source and the updated draft Lateral Connection

Fees for the project.

SPU costs will total $1,710,812.7 under the contract including city fees for engineering and
contract administration. SPU will also have internal costs to absorb for inspecting the water
main construction. The 2022 Capital Projects budget for this project is $1,700,000 plus $25,000
for the interconnection with Savage and there is another $25,000 in the 2022 Capital Projects
budget for projects to be determined if needed.

Given the city’s zoning for the project area is primarily industrial combined with the dimensions
of the entire benefitted area, the lateral water main pipe diameter required is 12-inch per the
water main design criteria established in the SPU Water Policy Manual. Thus, there is no trunk

@
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water main oversizing in this project. 100% of the 12-inch water main cost is recoverable from
the Lateral Water Main Equivalent Connection Charge.

The updated Lateral Water Main Connection fee based on the construction contract costs 1s
proposed at $16,551.97 per acre.

Based on the policy resolution, staff has prepared Resolution #2022-13 A Resolution Approving
a Water Main Construction Project and Determining its Lateral Water Main Equivalency
Described as: Maras Street, 13" Avenue, Stagecoach Road and Hansen Avenue Water Main

Extension.

When the project is complete and final costs are known this figure will be updated and another
resolution presented.

REQUESTED ACTION

Staff requests the Commission adopt Resolution #2022-13 as presented.




RESOLUTION #815

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND ESTABLISHING A FEE
FOR THE EQUIVALENT LATERAL WATER MAIN PORTION
OF A TRUNK WATER MAIN PROJECT

WHEREAS, Minn. Stat. Chapter 444 gives the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission
discretion in determining and calculating appropriate charges and fees to be collected for providing
water service to its customers;

WHEREAS, Minn. Stat. § 444.075, subd. 3 states that fees and charges may be imposed to
pay for the construction, reconstruction, repair, enlargement, maintenance, operation, and use of

water service facilities; and

WHEREAS, Minn. Stat. § 444.075, subd. 3 states that charges imposed for providing water
service must be just and equitable and must relate to the use of and the availability of water service

facilities and for connections with them; and

WHEREAS, the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission has established a trunk water policy
establishing a trunk water main area assessment charge for the construction of municipal trunk
water mains that are (over)sized in excess of the lateral water mains required to serve nearby

propetty; and

WHEREAS, the Shakopee Public Utilities Comruission has established a lateral water main
design criteria policy establishing requirements for minimum size and number of lateral water
mains required to serve nearby property based on zoning, flow requirements and size of the area
being served; and

WHEREAS, the cost of installing and constructing lateral water mains are oftentimes paid
by developers or other parties requesting such service or through the Chapter 429 special
assessment process; and

WHEREAS, the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission has concluded that in certain cases,
the process established in Minn. Stat. Chapter 444 should be utilized to pay for the equivalent lateral
water main construction costs associated with specific water main installations; and

WHEREAS, the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission desires to establish a policy to
ensure that the fees for providing such lateral water main are just and equitable.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission as
follows:

1. Pursuant to Minn. Stat. Chapter 444, there is hereby established a fee for the
equivalent lateral water main portion of a trunk water main project.

2. The fee authorized by this Resolution shall be applicable in situations where the
equivalent lateral water main portion of the trunk water main costs is not being paid
by a developer or other person requesting the construction and installation of lateral
water main for the purpose of receiving water service or in situations where the
Commission concludes that collecting the costs through the Chapter 429 special
assessment procedure project should not utilized.

3. The lateral water main fee established by this Resolution shall be calculated at the
time that the Commission approves the water main project based on the actual costs
for constructing the water main, with consideration of the equivalent lateral water
main portion of any oversized trunk water main. The fee shall be indexed on an
annual basis and be calculated on an area basis based on the amount of property that
will ultimately be served by the lateral water main. The fee shall be paid at the time
of connection to the water system, and is in addition to any and all other applicable
standard requirements to receive water service.

Passed in regular session of the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission, this 1% day of

August, 2005,
- 1 -
k‘,ﬁ/& \7,\.-«.'.\&2'\_,
Commissidn President: Jéhn Engler
ATTEST: -~ . | \/
Vo 0 e Vi~
Commission Secretary: Kent Archerd
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Shakopee City Council
March 15, 2022

FROM: Darin Manning, Project Coordinator
TO: Mayor and Council Members

Subject:
Maras Street, 13th Avenue and Hansen Avenue Ultility Extension Project Bid Award.

Policy/Action Requested:
Adopt Resolution R2022-037 accepting bids and awarding a contract in the amount of $4,617,231.96 to Northwest

Asphalt, Inc., for the Maras Street, 13th Avenue and Hansen Avenue Utility Extension Project, Sewer-21-001.

Recommendation:
Adopt Resolution R2022-037.

Discussion:
The city's Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) contains the Maras Street, 13th Avenue and Hansen Avenue Utility

Extension Project Sewer-21-001. On January 18, 2022, the City Council approved the plans and specifications and
authorized bidding of the project.

In accordance with Minnesota Statute Section 471.345 Uniform Municipal Contracting Law, bids were solicited and
opened on March 4, 2022. Six bids were received and Northwest Asphalt, from Shakopee, Minnesota, is the lowest
bidder in the amount of $4,828,161.36 (see the attached resolution for the bid tabulation summary). Northwest
Asphalt has the capacity and experience for the project and is deemed a responsible bidder. The engineer's estimate

amounted to $5,012,000.

Also of note, the quantity of the bid proposal item number 79, Construct 84” Diameter Sanitary Sewer Manhole, has
been adjusted from 17.0 linear feet to 10.3 linear feet. The adjusted quantity results in a revised contract amount of
$4,617,231.96. Northwest Asphalt has acknowledged this discrepancy and has indicated their upfront agreement with
this change to be included as part of the official contract.

Budget Impact:

Based on the low bid amount, the total estimated project cost for the Maras Street, 13th Avenue and Hansen Avenue
Utility Extension Project is $5,749,231.96. This total project amount includes streetlighting improvements that will
be coordinated directly with Shakopee Public Utilities. The below table summarizes the costs and funding sources
for the project.

2022 CIP Budget Estimate Based
Estimate On Bid Award

COSTS
Construction Cost $4.,113,000.00 $4,617,231.96
Street Lighting $64,000.00 $64,000.00
Contingency $370,000.00 $144,000.0C
Subtotal $4,547,000.00) $4,825,231.96|
Eng/Admin/Legal $924,000.00 $924,000.00
Total Estimated Project Cost $5,471,000.00| $5,749,231.96
FUNDING
Special Assessments $896,100.00) $778,885.43
Capital Improvement Fund $2.,090,900.00, $1,817,399.35

https://shakopeemn.novusagenda.com/agendapublic/CoverSheet.aspx?ltemlD=7288&MeetinglD=566
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Sanitary Sewer Fund $754,000.00 $1,193,229.97
Storm Drainage Fund $71,000.00 $248,904.50
Shakopee Public Utilities $1,659,000.00 $1,710,812.71
Total Funding $5,471,000.00 $5,749,231.96|

The amended total project budget of $5,749,231.96 is over the CIP budget by 5.1% and includes a $144,000
contingency amount that would cover any unexpected change orders, quantity adjustments and other miscellaneous
expenses encountered as part of the project. The project is to be funded by the Capital Improvement Fund, Special
Assessments, Sanitary Sewer Fund, Storm Drainage Fund, and by the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission.

Construction costs related to storm sewer and sanitary sewer improvements came in over the originally estimated
amounts as a result of having to lower the depth of the proposed sanitary sewer system during final design to ensure
it will provide adequate depth for the entire sewer service area. This increase results in an increase of the proposed
estimated Lateral Connection Fee amounts that will be required to be paid by property owners at the time of
connection. The updated Lateral Connection Fees based on bid award are attached. Also note that the final fee
amounts will be up updated and finalized upon project completion and will be based on final actual project amounts.

Also of note, the proposed special assessment amount for street improvements that was included with the feasibility
study was $10,329.90 per developable acreage; however, it is now estimated to be reduced to $9,738.33 based on the
updated bid award amounts (this amount will also be finalized at the completion of the project and will be based on

final actual project amounts).

Included in the resolution is funding language that would allow the city to reimburse project costs from future bond
proceeds. This language allows for greater flexibility in funding current and future projects, should the city desire or
need this in the future. The additional language allows the city a period of up to three years to issue and reimburse
itself with bond proceeds. The language does not change the requirements or administrative process for issuing debt.
All debt issuance will still require separate approval by the City Council.

ATTACHMENTS:

o Resolution R2022-037
) CIP Sheet

D Updated Lateral Connection Fees

https://shakopeemn.novusagenda.com/agendapubIic/CoverSheet.aspx?ltemID=7288&MeetingID=566 2/2
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TO: Mayor & City Council
Bill Reynolds, City Administrator

FROM: Darin Manning, Project Coordinator

SUBJECT:  Financing and Connection Timing Options for the
Maras Street, 13 Avenue, and Hansen Avenue Utility Extension Project

DATE: January 18, 2022 |Updated March 9, 2022 based on the bid award amounts. |

This memorandum summarizes proposed funding and connection timing options for the Maras Street, 13®
Avenue and Hansen Avenue Utility Extension Project. While City Code 52.08 establishes the standard
conditions for hook-up pertaining to routine utility extension projects (e.g. within three years), the
extensive cost to hook-up, the variability of property types, and the varying age and investment of some
properties in their existing septic systems and wells have prompted optional considerations for this
project. The below options have been coordinated with and approved by Shakopee Public Utilities
Commission.

A “Lateral Sanitary Sewer Connection Charge” and a similar water fee will be established for this project,
consistent with past practice and other similar fees that exist in the city’s fee schedule for project specific
areas. These fees are used for projects that provide sanitary sewer and water service to an area that is not
currently developed or a developed area where the properties will not be required to connect immediately

to the utility.

Funding Options:

Property owners may pay the full fees at the time of connection or request the city to specially assess the
fees over a ten-year period. Typically, an annual cost escalation is included in the connection fees;
however, a three-year grace period would apply to the fees for this project to aid and promote volunteer
connections. The typical annual cost escalation will be applied thereafter. See attachment A for the draft
language that will be included in the city’s fee schedule for this project.

Connection Timing Options:

Property owners will be required to connect to the utilities if one of the following occur:
1. Property is redeveloped (lateral fee’s must be paid when final plat is recorded)
2. Sale of property
3. Failure of system
4. Voluntary connection

Property owners may connect to the sewer and water systems concurrently or non-concurrently. If a
property owner experiences failure of one of their systems, they may decide to connect to both utilities
concurrently due to economy of scale. If they chose this option, the connection fee for the system that
didn’t fail could be deferred for a period of three years. No annual cost escalation would be applied to the
system that didn’t fail for that three-year period.

Property owners may also decide to connect non-concurrently. This option allows for property owners
with newer systems to obtain the maximum return on their investment. If property owners choose this
option, the non-failing system would be required to be connected within 15-years. If sanitary sewer is
connected without water, a flat rate will be developed and used to charge for sewer service.

COMMUNITY PRIDE SINCE 1857
City of Shakopee | 485 Gorman St., Shakopee MN 55379 | Phone: 952-233-9300 | Fax: 952-233-3801 | www.ShakopeeMN.gov



ATTACHMENT A

Draft Lateral Connection Fee Language in the City Fee Schedule (Sanitary Sewer):
A. Maras Street, Hansen Avenue, and 13% Avenue Sanitary Sewer Lateral Connection
L0131 4T R PSPPI $5:097/Developable Acre
This charge applies to all properties and developments connecting to the sanitary sewer
extending along Maras Street between 13® Avenue and Hansen Avenue, Hansen Avenue
between Maras Street and Stagecoach Road and 13% Avenue between Stagecoach Road
and the City of Savage boundary.

The charge is to be collected at the time of connection to the public sanitary sewer, sale
of the property, or the recording of a final plat for a future development utilizing the
sanitary sewer, whichever is earlier.

55,835.18

This charge applies to all properties and developments connecting to the sanitary sewer
extending along the east side of Stagecoach Road between 13th Avenue and Hansen

Avenue.

B. Stagecoach Road Sanitary Sewer Lateral Connection Charge. ...$4;:625/ Deveio%ablez’Acre

The charge is to be collected at the time of connection to the public sanitary sewer, sale
of the property, or the recording of a final plat for a future development utilizing the
sanitary sewer, whichever is earlier.

2. Draft Lateral Connection Fee Language in the SPUC Fee Schedule (Water):
A. Maras Street, Hansen Avenue, Stagecoach Road, and 13 Avenue Watermain Lateral
Connection Charge. .......c..ovuviiieiiieniiriiierneinienennen, $14:083/Developable Acre
This charge applies to all properties and developments conneciing to the watermain
extending along Maras Street between 13™ Avenue and Hansen Avenue, Hansen Avenue
between Maras Street and Stagecoach Road, east side of Stagecoach Road between 13th
Avenue and Hansen Avenue and 13% Avenue between Stagecoach Road and the City of

Savage boundary.

The charge is to be collected at the time of connection to the public watermain, sale of the
property, or the recording of a final plat for a future development utilizing the watermain,
whichever is earlier.

COMMUNITY PRIDE SINCE 1857

City of Shakopee | 485 Gorman St., Shakopee MN 55379 | Phone: 952-233-9300 | Fax: 952-233-3801 | www.ShakopeeMN.gov



RESOLUTION #2022-13

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A WATER MAIN CONSTRUCTION PROJECT, AND
DETERMINING ITS LATERAL WATER MAIN EQUIVALENCY,
DESCRIBED AS:

MARAS STREET, 13™ AVENUE, STAGECOACH ROAD, AND HANSEN AVENUE
WATER MAIN EXTENSION

WHEREAS, the Shakopee City Council and the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission
have agreed to construct certain public improvements to Maras Street, 13" Avenue, Stagecoach
Road and Hansen Avenue rights of way, and

WHEREAS, the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission desires to install a 12-inch water
main concurrent with the other improvements to further coordination of all of the improvements
and to avoid the inevitable complications that would result from installing the water main at a
future date, and

WHEREAS, there are cost savings to have the water main construction be a part of the
improvements, and

WHEREAS, the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission has previously adopted policies
to ensure the eventual recovery of lateral water main equivalent costs of trunk water mains and
the funding of trunk water main over sizing costs, and

WHEREAS, the estimated cost of the 12-inch water main construction is $1,710,812.71,
and

WHEREAS, the minimum size required to serve the east to west and north to south flow
requirement of the adjoining properties per the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission’s adopted
water main design criteria, is a 12-inch water main.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Maras Street, 13™ Avenue,
Stagecoach Road, and Hansen Avenue water main project is hereby approved.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the lateral water main equivalent cost shall be
recovered under the provisions of Resolution #815 and special conditions adopted by the City of
Shakopee for their improvements with the fee described charged to the properties fronting the
12-inch water main extension when those properties request water service and meet all other
standard requirements to receive water service, and the fee estimated to be $16,551.98 per acre
shall be set after project completion when final costs are known.



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all things necessary to carry out the terms and purpose of
this Resolution are hereby authorized and performed.

Passed in regular session of the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission, this 2nd day of
May, 2022.

Commission President: Kathi Mocol

ATTEST:

Commission Secretary: Greg Drent
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PO Box 470 - 255 Sarazin Street
Shakopee, Minnesota 55379
Main 952.445-1988 - Fax 952.445-7767

Shakopee Public Utilities www.shakopeeutilities.com
DATE: April 29, 2022
TO: Greg Drent, General Managerw
FROM: Kelley Willemssen, Director of Finance & Administration /égu—
SUBIJECT: 2021 Audited Financials and Presentation
Background:

Audit work kicked off with Clifton Larsen Allen, LLP (CLA) at the end of January. Preliminary audit details
were collected by SPU staff and forwarded to CLA throughout February for their review. Auditors were
onsite for fieldwork during the week of February 21st.

Their time onsite was spent assessing internal controls, compliance, transaction testing, reviewing
records, and performing other procedures necessary to accomplish the objectives of the audit. There
were no issues or concerns throughout this process, and the fieldwork went smoothly.

The fieldwork exit meeting was completed on March 18th, where CLA staff reviewed the audit process
and communicated to SPU that there weren't any findings or issues to report.

Attached are the 2021-year-end Financial Statements for review. Chris Knopik and Lance Lauinger from
CLA will be presenting results at the commission meeting.

Requested Action

The commission is requested to accept the Financial Statements for year-ended December 31, 2021
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Board of Commissioners
Shakopee Public Utilities Commission
Shakopee, Minnesota

We have audited the financial statements of each major fund of a Shakopee Public Utilities Commission
(the Commission) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, and have issued our report thereon
dated April 27, 2022. We have previously communicated to you information about our responsibilities
under auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing
Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit in our
engagement letter dated December 7, 2021. Professional standards also require that we communicate
to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant audit findings or issues
Qualitative aspects of accounting practices
Accounting policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the Commission are described in Note 1 to the financial statements.

No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during
2021.

We noted no transactions entered into by the entity during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in
the proper period.

Accounting estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance
to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:

¢ Management’s estimate of the depreciation expense is based on the estimated of useful lives of
the underlying Commission plant assets.

e The collectability of accounts receivable is based on historical experience and management’s
knowledge of current trends.

e Management’s estimate of the liability for compensated absences is based on amounts earned
by employees and past data.

¢ Management’s estimate of the Commission’s proportionate share of PERA’s net pension liability
and related deferred inflows and outflows is based on guidance from GASB Statement No. 68,
and the plan’s allocation table. The plan’s allocation table allocates a portion of the plan’s net
pension liability based on the Commission’s contributions during the plan’s fiscal year as a
percentage of total contributions received for the related fiscal year by the plan.
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Board of Commissioners
Shakopee Public Utilities Commission
Page 2

Financial statement disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. There were no particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties encountered in performing the audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Uncorrected misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than
those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management did not identify and we did not notify them of any uncorrected financial statement
misstatements.

Corrected misstatements

None of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were
material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with management

For purposes of this communication, a disagreement with management is a disagreement on a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be
significant to the financial statements or the auditors’ report. No such disagreements arose during our
audit.

Management representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated April 27, 2022.

Management consultations with other independent accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application
of an accounting principle to the entity’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditors’
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge,
there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Significant issues discussed with management prior to engagement

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to engagement as the entity’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our engagement.



Board of Commissioners
Shakopee Public Utilities Commission
Page 3

Supplementary information in relation to the financial statements as a whole

With respect to the required supplementary information (RSI) accompanying the financial statements, we
made certain inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the RSI, including whether the
RSI has been measured and presented in accordance with prescribed guidelines, whether the methods
of measurement and preparation have been changed from the prior period and the reasons for any such
changes, and whether there were any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the
measurement or presentation of the RSI. We compared the RSI for consistency with management’s
responses to the foregoing inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge obtained during
the audit of the basic financial statements. Because these limited procedures do not provide sufficient
evidence, we did not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

With respect to the individual fund statements and schedules accompanying the financial statements, on
which we were engaged to report in relation to the financial statements as a whole, we made certain
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period or the reasons for
such changes, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial
statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. We have
issued our report thereon dated April 27, 2022.

The other information accompanying the financial statements, which is the responsibility of management,
was prepared for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements.
Such information was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements, and, accordingly, we did not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Our auditors’ opinion, the audited financial statements, and the notes to financial statements should only
be used in their entirety. Inclusion of the audited financial statements in a document you prepare, such
as an annual report, should be done only with our prior approval and review of the document. You are
responsible to provide us the opportunity to review such documents before issuance.

* % %

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the board of commissioners and
management of Shakopee Public Utilities Commission and is not intended to be, and should not be, used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

W&W s

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
April 27, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
ON MINNESOTA LEGAL COMPLIANCE

Board of Commissioners
Shakopee Public Utilities Commission
Shakopee, Minnesota

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of each major fund, of
Shakopee Public Utilities Commission as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the entity’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 27, 2022.

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that Shakopee
Public Utilities Commission failed to comply with the provisions of the contracting and bidding, deposits
and investments, conflicts of interest, claims and disbursements, and miscellaneous provisions sections
of the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Other Political Subdivisions, promulgated by the
State Auditor pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 6.65, insofar as they relate to accounting matters. However, our
audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had
we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the
entity's noncompliance with the above-referenced provisions, insofar as they relate to accounting
matters.

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance relating to the
provisions of the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Other Political Subdivisions and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on compliance. Accordingly, this report is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Wm% L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
April 27, 2022

A memper ot

@ Nexia

International



CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
~ A CLAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Commissioners and Management
Shakopee Public Utilities Commission
Shakopee, Minnesota

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of each major fund of
Shakopee Public Utilities Commission, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Shakopee Public Ultilities
Commission’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 27, 2022.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Shakopee Public
Utilities Commission’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Shakopee Public Utilities Commission’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of Shakopee Public Utilities Commission’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
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Board of Commissioners and Management
Shakopee Public Utilities Commission
Page 2

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Shakopee Public Utilities Commission’s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Wm% L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
April 27, 2022



SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
SEPARATE ENTERPRISE FUNDS OF THE
CITY OF SHAKOPEE, MINNESOTA
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

WEALTH ADVISORY | OUTSOQURCING
AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

CLAconnect.com




SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
TABLE OF CONTENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

INTRODUCTORY SECTION

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND ADMINISTRATION

FINANCIAL SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

GENERAL EMPLOYEES FUND SCHEDULE OF THE COMMISSION’S
PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

GENERAL EMPLOYEES FUND SCHEDULE OF COMMISSION
CONTRIBUTIONS

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - ELECTRIC UTILITY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - ELECTRIC UTILITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET
POSITION - ELECTRIC UTILITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - ELECTRIC UTILITY
DETAILED STATEMENT OF OPERATING REVENUES - ELECTRIC UTILITY

SCHEDULE OF PLANT IN SERVICE - ELECTRIC UTILITY

19

21

22

24

39

40

41

44

46

47

49

50



SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - WATER UTILITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - WATER UTILITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET
POSITION — WATER UTILITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS — WATER UTILITY
DETAILED STATEMENT OF OPERATING REVENUES - WATER UTILITY

SCHEDULE OF PLANT IN SERVICE — WATER UTILITY

51

53

54

56

57



INTRODUCTORY SECTION



SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND ADMINISTRATION
DECEMBER 31, 2021

| Officials Position Term Expires |
Kathi Mocol President/MMPA Alternate Rep March 31, 2022
Kayden Fox Vice President March 31, 2023

Jody Brennan

Justin Krieg

Benedict Letourneau

Commissioner

Commissioner

Commissioner

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2024

|Administration

Greg Drent
Jean McGann

Kelley Willemssen

General Manager/MMPA Rep
Contracted Director of Finance

Director of Finance and
Administration

(1



FINANCIAL SECTION



CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
~ A CLAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Commissioners
Shakopee Public Utilities Commission
Shakopee, Minnesota

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each major fund of the Shakopee Public
Utilities Commission, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes to the

financial statements, which collectively comprise the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of each major fund of the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission, as of
December 31, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Shakopee Public Utilities
Commission and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

The Shakopee Public Utilities Commission’s 2020 financial statements were previously audited by other
auditors and they expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in their
report dated June 1, 2021. The summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2021, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial
statements from which it has been derived.

A memper ot

@ Nexia

International

)



Board of Commissioners
Shakopee Public Utilities Commission

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Shakopee Public Utilities
Commission’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement
date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:
o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Shakopee Public Utilities Commission’s internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Shakopee Public Utilities Commission’s ability to continue as
a going concern for a reasonable period of time.
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Board of Commissioners
Shakopee Public Utilities Commission

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, general employees fund schedule of commission’s
proportionate share of net pension liability, and general employees fund schedule of commission
contributions be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission’s basic financial statements. The
individual fund financial statements and schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the individual fund financial
statements and schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other
information comprises the introductory section but does not include the basic financial statements and
our auditors’ report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other
information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.
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Board of Commissioners
Shakopee Public Utilities Commission

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 27,
2022, on our consideration of the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not
to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission’s internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Shakopee Public Utilities
Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Wm% L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
April 27, 2022
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

The management of the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission (electric and water utilities) offers all
persons interested in the financial position of the utilities an objective, easy to read overview, and
analysis of the utilities' financial performance during the years ended December 31, 2021. You are
invited to read this narrative in conjunction with the Utilities’ financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The electric utility's net position increased $4,091,909 to $93,531,708 in 2021, an increase of
4.6%. Total assets increased by $4,680,626 due to increases in net capital assets of
$2,329,776, increases in accounts receivable of $2,778,354 and other assets of $287,949.
Deferred outflows of resources increased $1,009,319 reflecting Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) 68 pension reporting. Total liabilities decreased by $136,501 due to a
decrease in net pension liability of $1,200,520, customer deposits of $715,453, partially offset
by an increase in accounts payable of $1,356,293 and customer advances of $609,235 driven
by development projects. Deferred inflows of resources decreased $1,734,537 (see Table 1).

The electric utility's operating revenues, generated mostly by user fees, increased by
$5,654,724 or 12.0%, driven by increased kWh sales and an increase in power cost adjustment
revenue, driven by higher sales and higher purchased power costs per kilowatt hour. Total kWh
sales volume increased 2.9%. The electric utility added 275 new customers in 2021, an
increase of 1.48% (see Table 3).

The electric utility's operating expenses in 2021 increased $5,179,367 or 12.5%, due to
increases in purchased power costs of $5,235,544 driven by higher sales and an increase in
purchased power costs per kWh and an increase in depreciation expense of $61,982.

The water utility's net position increased $7,723,868 to $86,647,273 in 2021, an increase of
9.8%. Total assets increased by $8,661,072 due to an increase in net capital assets of
$5,470,268, increase of $1,875,965 in cash and investments, increase of $1,064,786 in the
connection account, and an increase in the water reconstruction account of $821,736, slightly
offset by a decrease in accounts receivable of $762,269 and customer deposits of $5,413.
Deferred outflows of resources increased $498,593 reflecting the GASB 68 pension reporting
activity. Total liabilities increased $641,680 due to increase in current liabilities of accounts
payable $487,275, increase in customer advances of $316,754 and decrease in net pension
liability of $156,936. Deferred inflows of resources increased $794,117 due to GASB 68 pension
reporting activity (see Table 2).

The water utility's 2021 operating revenues, generated mostly by sales of water, increased
$1,078,259, or 19.5% due to an increase in water gallons sold. The water utility added 112 new
customers in 2021, an increase of 1.0% (see Table 4).

The water utility's operating expenses in 2021 increased $668,688 or 13.9% reflecting an
increase in operating expenses of $624,125, driven by higher water gallon sales and an
increase in pumping expenses. Total gallons pumped increased 15.7%.

Nonoperating revenues for the utilities decreased from 2020 to 2021 by $348,799 due to lower
investment income and a decrease in rental and miscellaneous income.

Capital contributions for the utilities increased from 2020 to 2021 by $3,836,893 due to
increases in water connection fee activity and trunk fees, offset by decreases in developer
capital contributions in electric and water.
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The electric and water utilities are self-supporting entities and separate enterprise funds of the City of
Shakopee. The utilities provide electric and water service to properties within the City of Shakopee and
some areas outside the municipality. Water service is provided within the corporate limits of the City of
Shakopee. The electric utility service territory is a matter of state law, which became effective in 1975
and is supported by official maps. The areas generally served are the City of Shakopee, Townships of
Jackson and Louisville, and part of the City of Prior Lake lying north of Prior Lake and abutting the City
of Shakopee.

The electric and water utility is managed by a utilities commission and operates under Minnesota
Statutes 453. The Commission has, and continues to establish, rates and charges without approval,
review, or veto authority of the City Council. The Commission also establishes the policies and service
rules that guide the administration and management of the Shakopee Public Utilities. The City Council
created the utility commission in the mid- 1950s.

The current utility commission is made up of five members having authority under the Power Agency
Law, Minnesota Statutes 453, adopted by the State Legislature in 1976. The Power Agency Law
replaces the original empowerment authority and provides the legal platform for the Commission to
operate as the governing body of the "electric utility" and join other utilities to solve the issues of
generation and transmission.

This annual report consists of two parts: Management's Discussion and Analysis and the financial
statements as well as the Independent Auditors’ Report.

An analysis of the utilities' financial position begins with a review of the statement of net position and
the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net fund position. These two statements report
the Ultilities' Net Position and changes therein. The Utilities' Net Position, the difference between assets
and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, are important in
measuring the financial health of the Utility. Over time, increases or decreases in the net position value
are an indicator of whether the financial position is improving or deteriorating. However, it should be
noted that the financial position may also be affected by other non-financial factors, including economic
conditions, customer growth, climate conditions, and new regulations.

UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The Statement of Net Position includes all of the Utilities' assets and deferred outflows of resources
and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources and provides information about the nature and amount
of investments in resources and the obligations to creditors. This Statement provides the basis for
evaluating the capital structure and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the Utilities.

A summary of the Utilities' Statement of Net Position is presented in Tables 1 and 2.
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

UTILITY FINANICAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

TABLE 1
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - ELECTRIC UTILITY
2021 2020 Change
ASSETS
Current and Other Assets $ 54,059,243 $ 51,708,393 $ 2,350,850
Net Capital Assets 49,358,575 47,028,799 2,329,776
Total Assets 103,417,818 98,737,192 4,680,626
DEFERRRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 1,359,667 350,348 1,009,319
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows
of Resources $ 104,777,485 $ 99,087,540 $ 5,689,945
LIABILITIES
Net Pension Liability $ 1,866,526 $ 3,067,046 $ (1,200,520)
Other Liabilities 7,337,384 6,273,365 1,064,019
Total Liabilities 9,203,910 9,340,411 (136,501)
DEFERRRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 2,041,867 307,330 1,734,537
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 49,358,575 47,028,799 2,329,776
Unrestricted 44,173,133 42,411,000 1,762,133
Total Net Position 93,531,708 89,439,799 4,091,909
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources, and Net Position $ 104,777,485 $ 99,087,540 $ 5,689,945

As can be seen from the table above, the electric utility net position increased $4,091,909 to
$93,531,708 in 2021, an increase of 4.6%. Total assets increased by $4,680,626 due to increases in
net capital assets of $2,329,776, increases in accounts receivable of $2,778,354 and other assets of
$287,949, offset by a decrease in customer deposits of $715,453. Deferred outflows of resources
increased $1,009,319 reflecting an increase in GASB 68 pension reporting activity.

Total liabilities decreased by $136,501 due to a decrease in net pension liability of $1,200,520,
customer deposits of $715,453, partially offset by an increase in accounts payable of $1,356,293 and
customer advances of $609,235 driven by development projects. Deferred inflows of
resources decreased $1,734,537 reflecting changes in GASB 68 pension reporting activity.
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

TABLE 2
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION — WATER UTILITY
2021 2020 Change
ASSETS
Current and Other Assets $ 30,103,489 $ 26,912,685 $ 3,190,804
Net Capital Assets 59,237,730 53,767,462 5,470,268
Total Assets 89,341,219 80,680,147 8,661,072
DEFERRRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 612,580 113,987 498,593
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows
of Resources $ 89,953,799 $ 80,794,134 $ 9,159,665
LIABILITIES
Net Pension Liability $ 840,938 $ 997,874 $ (156,936)
Other Liabilities 1,627,722 829,106 798,616
Total Liabilities 2,468,660 1,826,980 641,680
DEFERRRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 837,866 43,749 794,117
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 59,237,730 53,767,462 5,470,268
Restricted 17,775,005 15,792,234 1,982,771
Unrestricted 9,634,538 9,363,709 270,829
Total Net Position 86,647,273 78,923,405 7,723,868
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources, and Net Position $ 89,953,799 $ 80,794,134 $ 9,159,665

As can be seen from the table above, the water utility net position increased by $7,723,868 to
$86,647,273 in 2021, an increase of 9.8%. Total assets increased by $8,661,072 due to an increase in
net capital assets of $5,470,268, increase of $1,875,965 in cash and investments, increase of
$1,064,786 in the connection account, and an increase in the water reconstruction account of
$821,736, slightly offset by a decrease in accounts receivable of $762,269 and customer deposits of
$5,413. Deferred outflows of resources increased $498,593 reflecting the GASB 68 pension reporting
activity. Total liabilities increased $641,680 due to increase in current liabilities of accounts payable
$487,275, increase in customer advances of $316,754 and decrease in net pension liability of
$156,936. Deferred inflows of resources increased $794,117 due to GASB 68 pension reporting
activity.

The restricted portion of net position includes accounts that are limited by bond covenants. Listed below
are restricted assets:

Customer Deposit Account - Restricted resources from customers required to deposit monies before
the utility will begin service. These deposits are subject to repayment when the customer leaves the
utility's service area.

Connection and Trunk Water Accts - Restricted resources, per enabling legislation, to be used for
future water production and trunk distribution facility acquisitions.
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The specific nature or source of these changes becomes more evident in the statement of revenues,
expenses, and changes in fund net position as shown in Tables 3 and 4.

The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net position provide an indication of the
utilities’ financial health.

TABLE 3

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET
POSITION - ELECTRIC UTILITY

2021 2020 Change
OPERATING REVENUES $ 52,853,012 $ 47,198,288 $ 5,654,724
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation, Customer, and Administrative 44,127,945 39,010,560 5,117,385
Depreciation Expense 2,482,092 2,420,110 61,982
Total Operating Expenses 46,610,037 41,430,670 5,179,367
OPERATING INCOME 6,242,975 5,767,618 475,357
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 120,106 736,617 (616,511)
Capital Contributions 98,931 527,653 (428,722)
Transfers to Municipality (2,370,103) (2,167,882) (202,221)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 4,091,909 4,864,006 (772,097)
Net Position - Beginning of Year 89,439,799 84,575,793 4,864,006
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 93,531,708 $ 89,439,799 $ 4,091,909

As can be seen in Table 3, the electric utility's operating revenues increased in 2021 by $5,654,724 or
12.0% from 2020, driven by an increase in total kWh sales volume of 2.9% and an increase in power
cost adjustment revenue driven by higher purchased power costs and higher sales. Operating
expenses increased $5,179,367 or 12.5%, primarily due to an increase in purchased power costs of
$5,235,544 driven by higher kWh sales. Purchased power costs totaled $37,965,029 in 2021, an
increase of 16.0% from 2020. Purchased power is the single largest expense item in the electric system
operating budget. Nonoperating income decreased $616,511 due to lower investment income of
$764,120, partially offset by an increase in rentals and miscellaneous income of $94,654 and gains on
disposition of property $21,983. Capital contributions decreased $428,722 due to decreases in
developer capital contributions year to year. Municipal contributions expenses to the City of Shakopee
increased $202,221 from $2,167,882 to $2,370,103 driven by higher electric sales revenue.
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Comparison of Electric Revenue

435,000,000 (without bad debt including penalty revenue)
$30,000,000
$25,000,000
$20,000,000
$15,000,000
$10,000,000
$5,000,000
. R —
Residential Commercial and Other

Industrial Service

W 2015 m2016 2017 m2018 m 2019 2020 m 2021

Year Residential Commercial and Industrial Service Other

2015 $ 16,120,599 $ 25,957,296 $ 1,029,814
2016 16,889,535 28,283,314 1,094,571
2017 16,496,838 29,341,945 1,100,006
2018 17,891,566 31,414,834 1,158,891
2019 17,314,820 31,261,142 1,135,968
2020 18,032,655 28,553,793 870,373
2021 19,996,991 31,752,298 1,022,634

Residential, Commercial, Industrial, and other sales of electricity increased in 2021 by $5,315,102 or
11.2%. Warmer than average temperatures contributed to dry conditions which impacted customer
usage and sales both in electric and water utilities. Power cost adjustment revenue increased because
of increased kWh sales.

Total kWh purchased in 2021 was 463,906,473 as compared to 449,885,399 in 2020, reflecting an
increase of 3.1% year over year. Total kWh sold in 2021 was 443,409,817 as compared to 430,760,233
in 2020, reflecting an increase of 2.9% for the year 2021. Electric operating revenues totaled
$52,853,012 in 2021 compared to $47,198,288 in 2020, an increase of $5,654,724 or 12.0% driven by
higher kWh sales, and higher power cost adjustment revenue due to increased sales and increased
costs of power per kWh.

The utility purchases power from MMP A and joined MMP A as a full member in 2004, with a long-term
Purchase Power Agreement extending to 2050.
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The following is the total cost of kilowatt-hours purchased, total kilowatt-hours purchased, system peak

demand, and total kilowatt-hours delivered for the past ten years.

Historical Power and Energy Requirements

Energy (kWh)

Total kWh Cost of kWh System Peak Total kWh
Year Purchased Purchase Demand Delivered
2021 463,906,473 $ 37,956,344 108,103 443,409,817
2020 449,885,399 32,729,485 100,447 431,784,931
2019 459,120,703 34,198,101 104,661 446,158,441
2018 469,262,264 35,555,031 102,853 454,234,398
2017 452,309,391 33,180,393 99,725 429,261,118
2016 449,534,290 32,282,815 100,501 426,048,194
2015 425,268,243 29,939,985 92,605 406,459,331
2014 417,376,994 29,426,606 93,549 401,272,664
2013 413,119,096 28,499,899 95,148 394,596,477
2012 416,558,417 27,338,777 96,369 399,828,851

Kilowatt (kWh) Hours

METERED ELECTRIC CUSTOMERS

The following are the number of metered connections for the past ten years.

Year Meters

2021 18,837
2020 18,562
2019 17,960
2018 17,575
2017 17,126
2016 17,084
2015 16,885
2014 16,700
2013 16,508
2012 16,398
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

UTILITY FINANICAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

TABLE 4
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET

POSITION - WATER UTILITY

OPERATING REVENUES $

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation, Customer, and Administrative
Depreciation Expense

Total Operating Expenses

OPERATING INCOME

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Capital Contributions
Transfers to Municipality

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Net Position - Beginning of Year

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $

2021 2020 Change
6,610,535 $ 5,532,276 $ 1,078,259
3,686,439 3,062,314 624,125
1,777,894 1,733,331 44,563
5,464,333 4,795,645 668,688
1,146,202 736,631 409,571
144,827 493,626 (348,799)
6,685,954 2,849,061 3,836,893
(253,115) (216,722) (36,393)
7,723,868 3,862,596 3,861,272
78,923,405 75,060,809 3,862,596
86,647,273 $ 78,923,405 $ 7,723,868

In 2021 the water utility's operating revenues increased by $1,078,259 or 19.5% from $5,532,276 in
2020 to $6,610,535. The increase in operating revenues is the result of an increase in water gallons
sold of 19.0%, and an increase of water reconstruction funds of $131,178. Operating expenses
increased $668,688 or 13.9%. The increase in expenses is the result of an increase in operation,
customer, and administrative expenses of $624,125 and an increase in depreciation expense of
$44,563. Nonoperating income decreased $348,799 from $493,626 to $144,827 reflecting a decrease
in investment income of $311,501, a decrease in miscellaneous income of $38,610. Capital
contributions increased $3,836,893 primarily due to increases in developer constructed water main of
$3,230,615, water connection fees of $160,185 and trunk water fees of $444,748. Municipal
contributions expenses to the City of Shakopee increased $36,393 from $216,722 to $253,115 driven

by higher water sales revenue from year to year.
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Comparison of Water Revenues
(without bad debt and including penalty revenue)

$4,000,000

$3,500,000
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Residential Commercial Industrial Other
and Industrial
m 2015 m2016 m2017 ®m2018 m2019 m2020 m2021

Year Residential Commercial and Industrial Industrial Other
2015 $ 2,420,817  $ 1,124593 $ 227314 % 516,124
2016 2,560,074 1,173,447 248,672 591,120
2017 2,804,902 1,380,349 281,240 718,998
2018 3,043,443 1,496,789 306,868 759,531
2019 2,844,970 1,322,398 268,467 433,911
2020 3,257,458 1,358,234 259,951 706,486
2021 3,684,101 1,769,298 304,968 846,419

Sales of water (without bad debt) increased in 2021 by $1,022,656 or 18.3%. The increase in operating
revenues is the result of an increase in water gallons sold of 19.0%. The water utility added 112 new
customers in 2021, an increase of 1.0%.

Water gallons pumped in 2021 totaled 2,080,182 thousand gallons as compared to 1,798,367 thousand
gallons in 2020, reflecting an increase of 15.7% for the year 2021 from 2020. Water gallons sold
including hydrant sales in 2021 totaled 1,961,462 thousand gallons as compared to 1,643,045
thousand gallons in 2020, reflecting an increase of 19.4% for the year 2021 from 2020. Water operating
revenues excluding reconstruction fees totaled $5,788,799 in 2021 as compared to $4,482,318 in 2020,
an increase of 19.5%.
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

WATER DEMAND

The following is the average daily demand and peak daily demand for the past ten years.

Peak Daily

Demand Demand
Year (MGD) (MGD)
2021 5.699 14.655
2020 4.927 12.810
2019 4.559 11.149
2018 5.054 11.122
2017 4.873 13.234
2016 4.792 11.582
2015 4.556 9.936
2014 4.631 10.878
2013 4.987 13.379
2012 5.948 16.257

WATER METERS/PRODUCTION
The following shows the number of meters and production for the water utility for the past ten years.

Average Total
Daily Water Service Service Residential Non-Residential
Year Pumped (Gallons) Population* Connections Usage Usage
2021 5,699,129 39,592 11,853 61 39
2020 4,927,033 38,506 11,741 64 34
2019 4,559,496 38,506 11,567 60 40
2018 5,053,767 38,519 11,438 59 41
2017 4,873,381 37,643 11,299 59 41
2016 4,792,447 37,254 11,277 60 40
2015 4,555,603 37,254 11,170 60 40
2014 4,631,167 35,300 11,085 62 38
2013 4,987,855 35,120 10,956 62 38
2012 5,948,063 34,652 10,872 60 40

*Total City Population per Metropolitan Council estimates less population served by private and

community wells.
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The statement of cash flows reports the cash provided and used by operating activities, as well as other
cash sources such as investment income and cash payments for repayment of bonds and capital
additions.

TABLE 5
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - ELECTRIC UTILITY
2021 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM:

Operating Activities $ 6,866,651 $ 8,334,359

Noncapital Financing Activities (2,138,358) (1,215,137)

Capital and Related Financing Activities (4,714,315.00) (3,088,317)

Investing Activities (1,451,237) 536,098
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,437,259) 4,567,003
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 1,683,342 (2,883,661)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 246,083 $ 1,683,342

TABLE 6
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - WATER UTILITY
2021 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM:

Operating Activities $ 4,787,465 $ 795,551

Noncapital Financing Activities (200,000) (144,522)

Capital and Related Financing Activities (815,324) (284,207)

Investing Activities (748,840) 403,520
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,023,301 770,342
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 1,303,491 533,149

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 4326,792 $ 1,303,491
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
TABLE 7
CAPITAL ASSETS - ELECTRIC UTILITY

2021 2020
CAPITAL ASSETS
Distribution $ 59,836,793 $ 57,706,211
General 18,826,212 18,370,989
Total Capital Assets 78,663,005 76,077,200
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (33,113,187) (30,703,485)
Construction in Progress 3,808,757 1,655,084
Net Capital Assets $ 49,358,575 $ 47,028,799

The electric utility's net capital assets increased $2,329,776 or 5.0% from 2020. Capital assets
increased $2,130,582 due to investment in new underground construction and transformation driven by
new development, substation improvements, and other infrastructure and equipment. These increases
were offset by increases in accumulated depreciation of $2,409,702 and increases in construction in
progress of $2,153,673.

TABLE 8
CAPITAL ASSETS — WATER UTILITY
2021 2020

CAPITAL ASSETS
Distribution $ 77,079,402 $ 72,470,596
General 1,910,454 1,851,079
Total Capital Assets 78,989,856 74,321,675
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (24,703,991) (22,926,096)
Construction in Progress 4,951,865 2,371,883
Net Capital Assets $ 59,237,730 $ 53,767,462

During 2021, the water utility's net capital assets increased by $5,470,268 or 10.2% from 2020.
Distribution and other assets increased by $4,668,181. In addition, construction in progress increased
$2,579,982. These increases in the value of assets were offset by accumulated depreciation of

$1,777,895.

Please refer to the notes to the financial statements for further detail of the utilities' capital assets.
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

LONG-TERM DEBT

The electric and water utilities have no bonds outstanding as of December 31, 2021. The Shakopee
Public Utilities Commission approved defeasance of the remaining bond issue outstanding consisting of
$7,590,000 Crossover Refunding Net Revenue Bonds, Series 2006 as of February 1, 2018.

If the commission were to issue bonds, they would be payable from and secured by a pledge of income
and revenue to be derived from the operation of the electric and water utilities and are primarily issued
for various infrastructure projects. Expansion of the water and electric utilities is dependent on (1) cash
flow from operations (after expenses) for the electric utilities, (2) special water connection and trunk
charges for the water utilities, and (3) the ability to access the capital markets to borrow funds. Bonds
are issued only on an as needed basis and for projects described within the capital improvement
program approved annually by the Commission.

Issued Bonds are limited obligations of the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission, payable solely from
net revenues of the Commission. The Bonds are not general obligations of the Commission, and
neither the full faith and credit nor the taxing powers of the City of Shakopee, the County.

CURRENTLY KNOWN FACTS/ECONOMIC CONDITIONS

The City of Shakopee is located approximately 25 miles southwest of downtown Minneapolis.
Shakopee is the county seat of Scott County. The City was organized in 1870 and became a statutory
city, Plan A, in April 1975. It is organized under a mayor/council form of government as outlined in
Minnesota Statutes 412. A Mayor is elected for a four-year term and four City Council Members are
elected to staggered four-year terms. The community is served by US No. 169 and Scott County
Highway No. 101; US No. 169 connects Scott County with Hennepin County and the Metro Center of
Minneapolis-Saint Paul.

The City Council has the obligation to appoint the members to the Shakopee Public Utilities
Commission.

CONTACTING UTILITY MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our customers, investors, and creditors with a general
overview of the utilities' finances. If you have questions about this report, or need additional financial
information, contact the Director of Finance and Administration, Post Office Box 470, 255 Sarazin
Street, Shakopee, Minnesota 55379.

General information relating to the Shakopee Public Utilities can be found at the Utility web site: https:/
/www.spucweb.com.
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2021

(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Emergency Repairs
Accrued Interest Receivable
Customer Accounts Receivable
Allowance for Uncollectible Amounts
Other Accounts Receivable
Due from City of Shakopee
Due from Other Fund
Inventory
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Assets:
Customer Deposit Accounts
Connection Account
Water Reconstruction Account
Capital Assets:
Plant in Service
Accumulated Depreciation
Construction in Progress
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

DEFERRRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension Related Amounts

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows

Resources

2021 2020

Electric Water Total Total
44,204,443 $ 11,334,850 $ 55,539,293 $§ 53,777,043
100,000 - 100,000 100,000
35,322 14,655 49,977 95,672
4,234,201 392,448 4,626,649 4,350,964
(80,663) (32,540) (113,203) (314,837)
2,385,045 340,576 2,725,621 1,186,855
81,577 27,192 108,769 112,674
- 200,000 200,000 -
1,440,219 31,753 1,471,972 1,035,945
56,629 19,550 76,179 64,943
52,456,773 12,328,484 64,785,257 60,409,259
1,602,470 96,249 1,698,719 2,419,585
- 15,774,600 15,774,600 14,709,814
- 1,904,156 1,904,156 1,082,420
78,663,005 78,989,856 157,652,861 150,398,875
(33,113,187) (24,703,991) (57,817,178) (53,629,581)
3,808,757 4,951,865 8,760,622 4,026,967
50,961,045 77,012,735 127,973,780 119,008,080
103,417,818 89,341,219 192,759,037 179,417,339
1,359,667 612,580 1,972,247 464,335
$ 104,777,485 $ 89,953,799 $ 194,731,284 $ 179,881,674

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2021
(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020)

2021 2020
Electric Water Total Total
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 4,152,391 $ 972,528 $ 5124919 $ 3,272,040
Due to City of Shakopee 220,448 52,309 272,757 531,745
Due to Other Fund 200,000 - 200,000 -
Other Current Liabilities 266,986 131,471 398,457 533,011
Total Current Liabilities 4,839,825 1,156,308 5,996,133 4,336,796
LIABILITIES PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED
ASSETS CUSTOMER DEPOSITS 1,602,470 96,249 1,698,719 2,419,585
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Unearned Revenues - - - 1,825
Customer Advances 895,089 375,165 1,270,254 344,265
Net Pension Liability 1,866,526 840,938 2,707,464 4,064,920
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 2,761,615 1,216,103 3,977,718 4,411,010
Total Liabilities 9,203,910 2,468,660 11,672,570 11,167,391
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Regulatory Collections to Cover Future Costs 182,161 - 182,161 172,863
Pension Related Amounts 1,859,706 837,866 2,697,572 178,216
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,041,867 837,866 2,879,733 351,079
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 49,358,575 59,237,730 108,596,305 100,796,261
Restricted - 17,775,005 17,775,005 15,792,234
Unrestricted 44,173,133 9,634,538 53,807,671 51,774,709
Total Net Position 93,531,708 86,647,273 180,178,981 168,363,204
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position $ 104,777,485 $ 89,953,799 $ 194,731,284 $ 179,881,674

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020)

OPERATING REVENUES
Sales

OPERATING EXPENSES

Operation, Customer and Administrative

Depreciation of Capital Assets
Total Operating Expenses

OPERATING INCOME

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Rentals and Miscellaneous

Interdepartmental Rent from Water

Investment Income
Interest Expense

Gain (Loss) on Disposition of Property
Total Nonoperating Revenues

(Expenses)

Income Before Contributions

and Transfers

Capital Contributions
Municipal Contributions

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Net Position - Beginning of Year

NET POSTION - END OF YEAR

2021 2020

Electric Water Total Total
$ 52,853,012 6,610,535 $ 59,463,547 $ 52,730,564
44,127,945 3,686,439 47,814,384 42,072,874
2,482,092 1,777,894 4,259,986 4,153,441
46,610,037 5,464,333 52,074,370 46,226,315
6,242,975 1,146,202 7,389,177 6,504,249
171,815 164,655 336,470 280,426
90,000 - 90,000 90,000
(168,812) (19,643) (188,455) 887,166
(3,954) (185) (4,139) (36,423)
31,057 - 31,057 9,074
120,106 144,827 264,933 1,230,243
6,363,081 1,291,029 7,654,110 7,734,492
98,931 6,685,954 6,784,885 3,376,714
(2,370,103) (253,115) (2,623,218) (2,384,604)
4,091,909 7,723,868 11,815,777 8,726,602
89,439,799 78,923,405 168,363,204 159,636,602
$ 93,531,708 $ 86,647,273 $ 180,178,981 $ 168,363,204

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020)

2021 2020
Electric Water Total Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers and Users $ 50,952,596 $ 7,854,564 $ 58,807,160 $ 51,711,069
Payments to Employees (4,039,994) (1,451,518) (5,491,512) (7,091,142)
Payments to Suppliers (40,045,951) (1,615,581) (41,661,532) (35,490,017)
Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities 6,866,651 4,787,465 11,654,116 9,129,910
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments to City of Shakopee (2,370,103) - (2,370,103) (2,242,120)
Proceeds from Sale of Assets 31,745 - 31,745 882,461
Transfers Between Funds 200,000 (200,000) -
Net Cash Used by
Noncapital Financing Activities (2,138,358) (200,000) (2,338,358) (1,359,659)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest Paid on Debt - - - (36,423)
Acquisition of Capital Assets (4,714,315) (4,027,468) (8,741,783) (5,941,967)
Installation Fees - 83,098 83,098 81,753
Connection Charges - 2,517,163 2,517,163 2,356,978
Trunk Charges - 611,883 611,883 167,135
Net Cash Used by Capital
and Related Financing Activities (4,714,315) (815,324) (5,529,639) (3,372,524)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of Investments (1,323,544) (733,773) (2,057,317) (53,462)
Interest and Dividends Received (127,693) (15,067) (142,760) 993,080
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Investing Activities (1,451,237) (748,840) (2,200,077) 939,618
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,437,259) 3,023,301 1,586,042 5,337,345
Cash and Cash Equivalents -
Beginning of Year 1,683,342 1,303,491 2,986,833 (2,350,512)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS -
END OF YEAR $ 246,083 $§ 4,326,792 $§ 4572875 $ 2,986,833

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020)

2021 2020
Electric Water Total Total
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
TO NET CASH FLOWS OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Operating Income $ 6359288 § 1,146,202 $ 7,505490 $§ 6,504,249
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating
Income to Cash Provided by Operating
Activities:
Free Electric Service to City
of Shakopee (116,313) - (116,313.00) (114,758)
Nonoperating Revenues 257,861 164,470 422,331.00 370,426
Depreciation Expense 2,482,782 1,777,895 4,260,677.00 4,153,441
Pension Related Activity (484,600) 138,588 (346,012.00) (103,591)
Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts - (21,375) (21,375.00) 264,205
Change in Assets and Liabilities
Customer Accounts Receivable (451,453) (4,491) (455,944.00) (307,759)
Other Accounts Receivable (2,326,901) 788,135 (1,538,766.00) (996,010)
Due from City of Shakopee 3,369 536 3,905.00 99,183
Inventory (437,922) 1,895 (436,027.00) 371,656
Prepaid Items (8,230) (3,006) (11,236.00) (3,114)
Accounts Payable 1,356,293 496,586 1,852,879.00 (751,197)
Customer Deposits 715,453 (5,413.00) 710,040.00 55,293
Unearned Revenue (1,825) - (1,825.00) (3,385)
Customer Advances (106,218) 316,754.0 210,536.00 (386,690)
Due to City of Shakopee (283,571) 24,583.0 (258,988.00) (74,847)
Other Liabilities (100,660) (33,894) (134,554.00) 52,808
Total Adjustments 498,065 3,641,263 4,139,328 2,625,661
Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities $ 6857353 § 4,787,465 $ 11,644,818 $§ 9,129,910
RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS TO THE STATEMENT
OF NET POSITION
Customer Deposits Account $ 1602470 $ 96,249 $ 1698719 $ 2,419,585
Emergency Repairs Account 100,000 - 100,000 100,000
Connection Account - 15,774,600 15,774,600 14,709,814
Water Reconstruction Account - 1,904,156 1,904,156 1,082,420
Cash and Investments 44,204,443 11,334,850 55,539,293 53,777,043
Total 45,906,913 29,109,855 75,016,768 72,088,862
Less: Long-Term Investments (45,660,830) (24,783,063) (70,443,893) (69,102,029)
Total Cash and Cash
Equivalents $ 246,083 _$ 4,326,792 $ 4572875 _$ 2,986,833
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Contributions of Capital Assets from the
Municipality and Developers $ 98,931 §$ - 3 98,931 §$ 527,653
Free Electric Service to City of Shakopee 116,313 - 116,313 114,758

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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NOTE 1

SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

REPORTING ENTITY

The electric and water utilities of the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission (the
"Commission") are self-supporting entities and collectively comprise separate enterprise
funds of the City of Shakopee (the "City"). The Commission provides electric and water
operations to properties within the City as well as electric distribution to certain other areas
outside of the City. The Commission accounts for the costs of electric and water operations
on a continuing basis and is managed by the Commission. The Commission consists of five
members who serve three-year terms.

Customer and service rates are established by the Commission.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business or where the governing body has decided that the
determination of revenues earned, costs incurred, and net income is necessary for
management accountability.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION

The financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and
exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.

DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS
Proprietary Funds:

e Electric Fund - This fund accounts for the operations of the Commission's electric
utility.
e Water Fund - This fund accounts for the operations of the Commission's water utility.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations.
The principal operating revenues of the Electric and Water Enterprise Funds are charges to
customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost
of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues
and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Commission's
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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NOTE 1

SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURNCES, AND
NET POSITION OR EQUITY

1.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments include balances from all funds that are combined and
invested to the extent available in various securities as authorized by state law.
Earnings from the pooled investments are allocated to the individual funds based on
the average of month-end cash and investment balances.

The Commission's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand,
demand deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months
or less from the date of acquisition.

Minnesota Statutes authorizes the Commission to invest in obligations of the U.S.
Treasury, agencies and instrumentalities, shares of investment companies whose
only investments are in the aforementioned securities, obligations of the State of
Minnesota or its municipalities, bankers' acceptances, future contracts, repurchase
and reverse repurchase agreements, and commercial paper of the highest quality
with a maturity of no longer than 270 days and in the Minnesota Municipal
Investment Pool.

Certain investments for the Commission are reported at fair value as disclosed in
Note 2. The Commission categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair
value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The
Hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the
asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2
inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 79, the Minnesota Municipal Investment
Pool securities are valued at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. There
are no restrictions or limitations on withdrawals from the 4M Liquid Asset Fund.
Investments in the 4M Plus must be deposited for a minimum of 14 calendar days.
Withdrawals prior to the 14-day restriction period will be subject to a penalty equal to
seven days interest on the amount withdrawn. Seven days' notice of redemption is
required for withdrawals of investments in the 4M Term Series withdrawn prior to the
maturity date of that series. A penalty could be assessed as necessary to recoup the
Series for any charges, losses, and other costs attributable to the early redemption.

RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Activity between funds that are representative of lending or borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the year are referred to as advances to/from other funds.
All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as due to/from other
funds. Any residual balances outstanding between the Commission and other funds
of the City are reported as receivables from or payables to the City. An allowance for
uncollectible accounts is used to account for delinquent customer balances greater
than 120 days overdue as of December 31, 2021. Bad debts are expensed annually
when deemed uncollectible.
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NOTE 1

SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURNCES, AND
NET POSITION OR EQUITY (CONTINUED)

3.

INVENTORY, PREPAID ITEMS, AND OTHER ASSETS

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods
and are recorded as prepaid items in the financial statements.

Inventory is valued at average cost and using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.

Other assets include the Emergency Repairs Account, and the asset and related
amortization relating to the Electric Plant Acquisition.

RESTRICTED ASSETS

Customer Deposit Account - Restricted resources from customers required to
deposit monies before the Commission will begin electric or water service. These
deposits are subject to repayment when the customer leaves the Commission's
service area.

Connection Account - Restricted resources, per enabling legislation, to be used for
future expansion of the water system.

Water Reconstruction Account - Restricted resources to be used for future water
reconstruction projects.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets,
are reported in the proprietary fund financial statements. Capital assets are defined
as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $3,000 and an estimated useful
life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
acquisition value at the date of donation. Major outlays for capital assets are
capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred (net of interest earned on
invested proceeds during the construction phase) is reflected in the capitalized value
of capital assets constructed.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Property, plant, and equipment of the Commission are depreciated using a half year
convention the first year with the straight-line method over the remaining estimated
useful lives.

Years
Electric
Distribution 10 -40
General 4-20
Water
Distribution 20-75
General 4-40
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NOTE 1

SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURNCES, AND
NET POSITION OR EQUITY (CONTINUED)

6.

10.

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a future
period(s) and so wil not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until that time. The Commission has one item that qualifies for
reporting in this category. The Commission presents deferred outflows of resources
on the Statement(s) of Net Position for deferred outflows of resources related to
pensions for various estimate differences that will be amortized and recognized over
future years.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position and fund financial
statements will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net
assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The Commission has one item that qualifies for
reporting in this category. The Commission presents deferred inflows of resources on
the Statement(s) of Net Position for deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

ELECTRIC PLANT ACQUISITION

The Commission acquired a plant from Minnesota Valley Electric Cooperative,
including legal, engineering, and plant costs, which was amortized over 25 years
using the straight-line method and is shown net of the accumulated amortization and
depreciation on the Statement of Net Position. The electric plant became fully
amortized in 2015.

CUSTOMER ADVANCES FOR CONSTRUCTION
This account represents customer advances for construction which may be
refundable in part or in whole.

CUSTOMER DEPOSITS
This account represents required deposits to be used to guaranty electric and water
utility billings.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Commission employees earn vacation time based on years of Commission service.
Employees also can earn compensatory time for hours worked above 80 hours per
pay period. A liability has been recorded in the Statement of Net Position for accrued
vacation and compensatory pay. Employees also earn sick leave; however, this is
not paid out upon separation, so no liability exists for this benefit.

(27)



NOTE 1

SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURNCES, AND
NET POSITION OR EQUITY (CONTINUED)

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

PENSIONS

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of
resources, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) and additions to/deductions from
PERA's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by PERA except that PERA's fiscal year end is June 30. For this purpose,
plan contributions are recognized as of employer payroll paid dates and benefit
payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term debt and other obligations are reported as liabilities in the Statement of
Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method.

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Cash and capital assets are contributed to the Commission from customers, the
municipality, or external parties. The value of property contributed to the utility is
reported as revenues on the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund
net position.

MUNICIPAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Municipal contributions include the contribution in lieu of taxes to the municipality and
free service to the municipality for streetlights.

NET POSITION

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of
resources, and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources in the financial
statements. Net position invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance
of any long-term debt used to build or acquire the capital assets. Net Position is
reported as restricted in the financial statements when there are limitations on their
use through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or
regulations of other governments.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expense
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURNCES, AND
NET POSITION OR EQUITY (CONTINUED)

17. COMPARATIVE DATA

The basic financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative
information in total but not at the level of detail required for a presentation in
conformity with GAAP. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction
with the Commission’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020,
from which the summarized information was derived. Certain comparative
information has been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

NOTE2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash balances of the Commission's funds are combined (pooled) and invested to the extent
available in various investments authorized by Minnesota Statutes. Each fund's portion of
this pool (or pools) is displayed in the financial statements as "cash and cash equivalents" or
"investments". For purposes of identifying risk of investing public funds, the balances and
related restrictions are summarized as follows.

In accordance with applicable Minnesota Statutes, the Commission maintains deposits at
depository banks authorized by the Commission Board.

A. Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits: This is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
Commission's deposits may not be returned to it. The Commission has a deposit policy
that requires the Commission's deposits to be collateralized as required by Minnesota
Statutes 118.03 for an amount exceeding FDIC, SAIF, BIF, FCUA, or other federal
deposit coverage. As of December 31, 2021, the Commission's bank balance was not
exposed to custodial credit risk because it was insured and fully collateralized with
securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent and in the
Commission's name.

The Commission's deposits had a book balance as follows:

2021
Checking $ 4,571,174
CDARS 5,634,143
Money Market 237,944
Total Deposits $ 10,443,261
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

B. Investments
As of December 31, 2021, the Commission had the following investments:

Years to Maturity

Less than 1-5 Over 5 No
Rating Total Value 1 Year Years Years Maturity

U.S. Agencies AAA $ 3,620,565 $ 783,660 $ 2,836,905 $ -3
U.S. Treasuries N/A 37,223,204 3,924,656 33,298,548
Commercial Paper N/A 12,973,818 12,973,818 - -
4M Fund NR 359,878 - - 359,878
4M Plus Fund NR 8,008,785 - - - 8,008,785
Money Market NR 2,385,557 - - - 2,385,557

Total $ 64,571,807 $ 17,682,134 $ 36,135453 § - $ 10,754,220

The Commission has the following recurring fair value measurements as of
December 31, 2021:

Fair Value Measurement Using

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Investments by Fair Value Level
U.S. Agencies $ 3,620,565 $ - $ 3620565 $
U.S. Treasuries 37,223,204 37,223,204 -
Commercial Paper 12,973,818 - 12,973,818
Total 53,817,587 $ 37,223,204 $ 16,594,383 §
Investments Measured at Amortized Cost 10,754,220
Total Investments $ 64,571,807

The Commission has a formal investment policy in place as of December 31, 2021, to
address the following risks:

Credit Risk - This is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will
not fulfill its obligations. Minnesota Statutes 118A.04 and 118A.05 limit investments
that are in the top two ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical rating
organizations. The Commission's policy states to ensure safety, it is the policy of the
Shakopee Public Utilities Commission that when considering an investment, all
depositories under consideration be cross-checked against existing investments to
make certain that funds in excess of insurance limits are not made in the same
institution unless collateralized as outlined below. Furthermore, the Shakopee Public
Utilities Commission will approve all financial institutions, brokers, and advisers with
which the Shakopee Public Utilities Commission will do business.

Concentration of Credit Risk — Investments - This is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty, the Commission will not be able to recover the value of its
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The
Commission's policy states they will minimize risk by only purchasing investments
that are held in safekeeping with a Federal Reserve bank, United States Bank with
corporate trust powers, a primary reporting dealer to the Federal Reserve Bank of
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

B. Investments (Continued)

New York, or a broker dealer having its principal executive office in Minnesota, and
that designated brokers have insurance through the SIPC (Securities Investor
Protection Corporation).

As of December 31, 2021, the Commission was not exposed to concentration of credit
risk. U.S. Treasuries and investments in external investment pools and money markets
are excluded from this requirement.

Interest Rate Risk - This is the risk that market values of securities in a portfolio
would decrease due to changes in market interest rates. The Commission's policy
states it will minimize interest rate risk by structuring the investment portfolio so that
securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations, thereby
avoiding the need to sell securities on the open market prior to maturity.

Custodial Credit Risk- Investments - This is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
the counterparty, the Commission will not be able to recover the value of its
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The
Commission's policy states they will minimize risk by only purchasing investments
that are held in safekeeping with a Federal Reserve bank, United States Bank with
corporate trust powers, a primary reporting dealer to the Federal Reserve Bank of
New York, or a broker dealer having its principal executive office in Minnesota and
that designated brokers have insurance through the SIPC (Securities Investor
Protection Corporation).

Deposits and Investments
Summary of cash, deposits, and investments as of December 31, 2021:

Deposit (Note 2.A) $ 10,443,261
Investments (Note 2.B.) 64,571,807
Petty Cash 1,700

Total Deposits $ 75,016,768

Deposits and investments are presented in the December 31, 2021, basic financial
statements as follows:

Statement of Net Position
Current Assets
Cash and Investments $ 55,539,293
Noncurrent Assets
Restricted Assets

Customer Deposit Account 1,698,719

Connection Account 15,774,600

Water Reconstruction Account 1,904,156
Other Assets

Emergency Repairs Account 100,000

Total $ 75,016,768

P T s R
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NOTE 3

SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

CAPITAL ASSETS

Electric capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2021 is as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
CAPITAL ASSETS NOT BEING
DEPRECIATED
Land and Land Rights $ 4,381,196 $ - $ - 8 4,381,196
Construction in Progress 1,655,084 3,622,563 (1,468,890) 3,808,757
Total Capital Assets
Not Being Depreciated 6,036,280 3,622,563 (1,468,890) 8,189,953
CAPITAL ASSETS BEING
DEPRECIATED
Distribution 56,876,344 2,142,764 (12,182) 59,006,926
General 14,819,660 518,614 (63,391) 15,274,883
Total Capital Assets
Being Depreciated 71,696,004 2,661,378 (75,573) 74,281,809
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (30,703,485) (2,482,782) 73,080 (33,113,187)
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated, Net 40,992,519 178,596 (2,493) 41,168,622
Capital Assets, Net $ 47,028,799 $ 3,801,159 $ (1,471,383) $ 49,358,575

Water capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2021 is as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
CAPITAL ASSETS NOT BEING
DEPRECIATED
Land and Land Rights $ 1,948,506 $ - 8 - 3 1,948,506
Construction in Progress 2,371,883 3,310,530 (730,548) 4,951,865
Total Capital Assets
Not Being Depreciated 4,320,389 3,310,530 (730,548) 6,900,371
CAPITAL ASSETS BEING
DEPRECIATED
Distribution 70,522,090 4,608,806 - 75,130,896
General 1,851,079 59,375 - 1,910,454
Total Capital Assets
Being Depreciated 72,373,169 4,668,181 - 77,041,350
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (22,926,096) (1,777,895) - (24,703,991)
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated, Net 49,447,073 2,890,286 - 52,337,359
Capital Assets, Net $ 53,767,462 $ 6,200,816  $ (730,548) $ 59,237,730

Depreciation expense for 2021 for Electric and Water totaled $2,482,782 and $1,777,895,
respectively.
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE4 MUNICIPAL RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND CONTRIBUTIONS

Amounts receivable from and payable to the City of Shakopee as of December 31, 2021,
are as follows:

Receivable Fund/Municipality Payable Fund/Municipality Amount

Electric Fund City of Shakopee $ 81,577
City of Shakopee Electric Fund 220,448
Water Fund City of Shakopee 27,192
City of Shakopee Water Fund 52,309

The receivables and payables generally represent billing expenses, general operating
expenses, and capital projects.

The composition of municipal contributions as of December 31, 2021, was as follows:

Contributions To Contributions From Amount
City of Shakopee Electric Fund $ 2,370,103
City of Shakopee Water Fund 253,115
Total $ 2,623,218

Contributions were made from the Water and Electric Funds to the City for contributions in
lieu of taxes and for free service to the City.

NOTE 5 DEFINED-BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - STATEWIDE

A. Plan Description

The Commission participates in the following cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plans administered by the Public Employees Retirement Association of
Minnesota (PERA). PERA’s defined benefit pension plans are established and
administered in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 353 and 356. PERA’s
defined benefit pension plans are tax qualified plans under Section 401(a) of the Internal
Revenue Code.

1. General Employees Retirement Fund

All full-time and certain part-time employees of the Commission are covered by the
General Employees Plan. General Employees Plan members belong to the
Coordinated Plan. Coordinated Plan members are covered by Social Security.
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 5 DEFINED-BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - STATEWIDE (CONTINUED)

B. Benefits Provided

PERA provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are
established by state statute and can only be modified by the state Legislature. Vested,
terminated employees who are entitled to benefits, but are not receiving them yet, are
bound by the provisions in effect at the time they last terminated their public service.

1.

General Employees Plan Benefits

General Employees Plan benefits are based on a member’s highest average salary
for any five successive years of allowable service, age, and years of credit at
termination of service. Two methods are used to compute benefits for PERA’s
Coordinated Plan members. Members hired prior to July 1, 1989, receive the higher
of Method 1 or Method 2 formulas. Only Method 2 is used for members hired after
June 30, 1989. Under Method 1, the accrual rate for Coordinated members is 1.2%
for each of the first 10 years of service and 1.7% for each additional year. Under
Method 2, the accrual rate for Coordinated members is 1.7% for all years of service.
For members hired prior to July 1, 1989 a full annuity is available when age plus
years of service equal 90 and normal retirement age is 65. For members hired on or
after July 1, 1989, normal retirement age is the age for unreduced Social Security
benefits capped at 66.

Benefit increases are provided to benefit recipients each January. The
postretirement increase is equal to 50% of the cost-of-living adjustment (COLA)
announced by the SSA, with a minimum increase of at least 1% and a maximum of
1.5%. Recipients that have been receiving the annuity or benefit for at least a full
year as of the June 30 before the effective date of the increase will receive the full
increase. Recipients receiving the annuity or benefit for at least one month but less
than a full year as of the June 30 before the effective date of the increase will receive
a reduced prorated increase. For members retiring on January 1, 2024, or later, the
increase will be delayed until normal retirement age (age 65 if hired prior to July 1,
1989, or age 66 for individuals hired on or after July 1, 1989). Members retiring under
Rule of 90 are exempt from the delay to normal retirement.

C. Contributions

Minnesota Statutes Chapter 353 sets the rates for employer and employee contributions.
Contribution rates can only be modified by the state Legislature.

1.

General Employees Fund Contributions

Coordinated Plan members were required to contribute 6.50% of their annual
covered salary in fiscal year 2021 and the Commission was required to contribute
7.50% for Coordinated Plan members. The Commission’s contributions to the
General Employees Fund for the year ended December 31, 2021, were $359,999.
The Commission’s contributions were equal to the required contributions as set by
state statute.
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NOTE 5 DEFINED-BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - STATEWIDE (CONTINUED)

D. Pension Costs

1.

General Employees Fund Pension Costs

At December 31, 2021, the Commission reported a liability of $2,707,464 for its
proportionate share of the General Employees Fund’s net pension liability. The
Commission’s net pension liability reflected a reduction due to the State of
Minnesota’s contribution of $16 million. The State of Minnesota is considered a
nonemployer contributing entity and the state’s contribution meets the definition of a
special funding situation. The State of Minnesota’'s proportionate share of the net
pension liability associated with the Commission totaled $82,761.

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date. The Commission’s proportion of the net pension liability
was based on the Commission’s contributions received by PERA during the
measurement period for employer payroll paid dates from July 1, 2020 through
June 30, 2021, relative to the total employer contributions received from all of
PERA’s participating employers. The Commission’s proportion was .0634% at the
end of the measurement period and .0678% for the beginning of the period.

Commission's Proportionate Share of the

Net Pension Liability $ 2,707,464

State of Minnesota's Proportionate Chare of the
Net Pension Liability Associated with the Commission 82,761
Total $ 2,790,225

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Commission recognized pension
expense of ($587) for its proportionate share of the General Employees Plan’s
pension expense.

At December 31, 2021, the Commission reported its proportionate share of the
General Employees Plans’ deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Description Resources Resources
Differences Between Expected and Actual Economic
Experience $ 16,635 $ 82,857
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 1,653,121 59,891
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings
on Pension Plan Investments - 2,344,778
Changes in Proportion and Differences Between
Commission Contributions and Proportionate
Share of Contributions 124,225 210,046
Commission Contributions Subsequent to the
Measurement Date 178,266 -
Total $ 1,972,247 $ 2,697,572
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NOTE 5 DEFINED-BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - STATEWIDE (CONTINUED)

D. Pension Costs (Continued)

$178,266 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from
Commission contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending December 31, 2022. Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will
be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Pension
Expense
Year Ending June 30, Amount
2022 $ (130,604)
2023 (45,449)
2024 (87,994)
2025 (639,544)

E. Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2021, actuarial valuation was determined using
an individual entry-age normal actuarial cost method. The long-term rate of return on
pension plan investments used in the determination of the total liability is 6.5%. This
assumption is based on a review of inflation and investments return assumptions from a
number of national investment consulting firms. The review provided a range of return
investment return rates deemed to be reasonable by the actuary. An investment return
of 6.5% was deemed to be within that range of reasonableness for financial reporting
purposes.

Salary growth assumptions in the General Employees Plan range in annual increments
from 10.25% after one year of service to 3.0% after 29 years of service and 6.0% per
year thereafter.

Mortality rates for the General Employees Plan are based on the Pub-2010 General
Employee Mortality Table. The table is adjusted slightly to fit PERA’s experience.

Actuarial assumptions for the General Employees Plan are reviewed every four years.
The most recent four-year experience study for the General Employees Plan was
completed in 2019. The assumption changes were adopted by the Board and became
effective with the July 1, 2020 actuarial valuation

The following changes in actuarial assumptions occurred in 2021 for the General
Employees Fund:

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions:

o The investment return and single discount rates were changed from 7.50% to
6.50%, for financial reporting purposes.

e The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale MP-2019 to Scale
MP-2020.

Changes in Plan Provisions:

o There were no changes in plan provisions since the previous valuation.
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NOTE 5 DEFINED-BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - STATEWIDE (CONTINUED)

F. Long-Term Expected Return on Investments

The State Board of Investment, which manages the investments of PERA, prepares an
analysis of the reasonableness of the long-term expected rate of return on a regular
basis using a building-block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future
rates of return are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce an expected long-term rate of return by weighting the expected future rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentages. The target allocation and best
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized

below:

Long-Term
Expected
Target Real Rate
Asset Class Allocation of Return

Domestic Equity 33.5 % 5.10 %
International Equity 16.5 5.30
Fixed Income 25.0 0.75
Private Markets 25.0 5.90

Totals 100.0 %

G. Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability in 2021 was 6.5%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and
employer contributions will be made at rates set in Minnesota Statutes. Based on these
assumptions, the fiduciary net position of the General Employees Fund was projected to
be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.

H. Pension Liability Sensitivity

The following presents the Commission’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
for all plans it participates in, calculated using the discount rate disclosed in the
preceding paragraph, as well as what the Commission’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate one percentage point
lower or one percentage point higher than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease in Current 1% Increase in
Description Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
General Employees Fund Discount Rate 5.50 % 6.50 % 7.50 %
Commission's Proportionate Share of the
General Employees Fund Net Pension
Liability $ 5521,845 $ 2,707464 $ 398,093
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NOTE 6

NOTE 7

SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

DEFINED-BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - STATEWIDE (CONTINUED)
I. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in a
separately-issued PERA financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. That report may be obtained on the Internet at
www.mnpera.org.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, or
destruction of assets, errors and omissions, workers compensation, and health care of its
employees. These risks are covered through the purchase of commercial insurance, with
minimal deductibles.

There were no significant reductions in insurance from the previous year or settlements in
excess of insurance coverage for any of the past three years.

The Commission's workers' compensation insurance policy is retrospectively rated. With this
type of policy, final premiums are determined after loss experience is known. The amount of
premium adjustment for 2020 is estimated to be immaterial based on workers' compensation
rates and salaries for the year.

At December 31, 2021, there were no other claims liabilities reported in the fund based on
the requirements of GASB Statement No. 10, which requires a liability for claims be reported
if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates it is probable a
liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss
can be reasonably estimated.

COMMITMENTS
The Commission has in process various multi-year construction projects which were not

completed in the current fiscal year. As of December 31, 2021, outstanding commitments for
these multi-year projects total approximately $1,165,263.
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NEW STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET IMPLEMENTED

The following are accounting standards which have been issued by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board but have not been implemented and may have a significant
impact on the Commission.

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, establishes a single model for lease accounting based on
the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset.
Under this statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible
right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a
deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of
information about governments' leasing activities. This statement will be effective for the
year ending December 31, 2022.

GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements,
provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based
information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government and users (governments).
The standards included in GASB Statement No. 96 are based on the standards established
in GASB Statement No. 87 noted above. The requirements of this statement are effective for
fiscal year 2023 for the Commission.
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
GENERAL EMPLOYEES FUND SCHEDULE OF THE COMMISSION’S
PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Measurement Date June 30,

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Commission's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.0634 % 0.0678 % 0.0639 % 0.0645 % 0.0644 % 0.0621 % 0.0608 %
Commission's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability $ 2,707,464 $ 4,064920 $ 3,532,888 $ 3,578,196 $ 4,111,253 $ 5,042,212 $ 3,150,972
State's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability Associated
with the Commission 82,761 125,364 109,829 117,344 51,656 65,842 -
Total $ 2,790,225 $ 4,190,284 $ 3,642,717 $ 3695540 $ 4,162,909 $ 5,108,054 $ 3,150,972
Commission's Covered Payroll $ 4553229 $ 3,516,627 $ 3,854,427 § 4145653 $ 4,333,280 $ 3,854,427 $ 3,516,627
Commission's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability as
a Percentage of Its Covered Payroll 59.46 % 115.59 % 91.66 % 86.31 % 94.88 % 130.82 % 89.60 %
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 87.00 % 79.06 % 80.23 % 79.53 % 75.90 % 68.91 % 78.19 %

The Amounts Presented for Each Fiscal Year were determined as of 6/30.
Ten years of data is not yet available, but years will be added going forward until ten years are present.
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
GENERAL EMPLOYEES FUND SCHEDULE OF COMMISSION CONTRIBUTIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Fiscal Year Ended December 31,

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Statutorily Required Contribution $ 359999 ¢$ 360,080 $ 350,018 $ 339,188 $§ 315791 $§ 299473 § 277,221
Contributions in Relation to the Statutorily Required Contribution (359,999) (360,080) (350,018) (339,188) (315,791) (299,473) (277,221)
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ - $ - $ -3 - $ - $ - $ -
Commission's Covered Payroll $ 4,799,987 $ 4,801,067 $ 4,666,907 $ 4,522,507 $ 4,210,547 $ 3,992,973 $ 3,696,280
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%

Ten years of data is not yet available, but years will be added going forward until ten years is present.
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

CHANGES IN SIGNIFICANT PLAN PROVISIONS, ACTUARIAL METHODS, AND ASSUMPTIONS

General Employees Fund

2021 Changes:
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions:

The investment return and single discount rates were changed from 7.50% to 6.50%, for
financial reporting purposes.
The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale MP-2019 to Scale MP-2020.

Changes in Plan Provisions:

There were no changes in plan provisions since the previous valuation.

2020 Changes:
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions:

The price inflation assumption was decreased from 2.50% to 2.25%.

The payroll growth assumption was decreased from 3.25% to 3.00%.

Assumed salary increase rates were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019
experience study. The net effect is assumed rates that average 0.25% less than previous
rates.

Assumed rates of retirement were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019
experience study. The changes result in more unreduced (normal) retirements and slightly
fewer Rule of 90 and early retirements.

Assumed rates of termination were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019
experience study. The new rates are based on service and are generally lower than the
previous rates for years 2-5 and slightly higher thereafter.

Assumed rates of disability were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019
experience study. The change results in fewer predicted disability retirements for males and
females.

The base mortality table for healthy annuitants and employees was changed from the RP-
2014 table to the Pub-2010 General Mortality table, with adjustments. The base mortality
table for disabled annuitants was changed from the RP-2014 disabled annuitant mortality
table to the PUB-2010 General/Teacher disabled annuitant mortality table, with adjustments.
The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale MP-2018 to Scale MP-2019.

The assumed spouse age difference was changed from two years older for females to one
year older.

The assumed number of married male new retirees electing the 100% Joint and Survivor
option changed from 35% to 45%. The assumed number of married female new retirees
electing the 100% Joint and Survivor option changed from 15% to 30%. The corresponding
number of married new retirees electing the Life annuity option was adjusted accordingly.

Changes in Plan Provisions:

Augmentation for current privatized members was reduced to 2.0% for the period July 1,
2020 through December 31, 2023 and 0.0% after. Augmentation was eliminated for
privatizations occurring after June 30, 2020.
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

CHANGES IN SIGNIFICANT PLAN PROVISIONS, ACTUARIAL METHODS, AND ASSUMPTIONS
(CONTINUED)

General Employees Fund (Continued)
2019 Changes:
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions:

* The morality projection scale was changed from MP-2017 to MP-2018.
Changes in Plan Provisions:

« The employer supplemental contribution was changed prospectively, decreasing from $31.0
million to $21.0 million per year. The State’s special funding contribution was changed
prospectively, requiring $16.0 million due per year through 2031.

2018 Changes:
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions:

* The morality projection scale was changed from MP-2015 to MP-2017.
* The assumed benefit increase was changed from 1.00% per year through 2044 and 2.50%
per year thereafter to 1.25% per year.

Changes in Plan Provisions:

» The augmentation adjustment in early retirement factors is eliminated over a five-year period
starting July 1, 2019, resulting in actuarial equivalence after June 30, 2024.

* Interest credited on member contributions decreased from 4.00% to 3.00%, beginning July
1, 2018.

* Deferred augmentation was changed to 0.00%, effective January 1, 2019. Augmentation
that has already accrued for deferred members will still apply.

« Contribution stabilizer provisions were repealed.

+ Postretirement benefit increases were changed from 1.00% per year with a provision to
increase to 2.50% upon attainment of 90.00% funding ratio to 50.00% of the Social Security
Cost of Living Adjustment, not less than 1.00% and not more than 1.50%, beginning
January 1, 2019.

* For retirements on or after January 1, 2024, the first benefit increase is delayed until the
retiree reaches normal retirement age; does not apply to Rule of 90 retirees, disability
benefit recipients, or survivors.

» Actuarial equivalent factors were updated to reflect revised mortality and interest
assumptions.

2017 Changes:
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions:

+ The combined service annuity (CSA) loads were changed from 0.80% for active members
and 60.00% for vested and nonvested deferred members. The revised CSA load are now
0.00% for active member liability, 15.00% for vested deferred member liability, and 3.00%
for nonvested deferred member liability.
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

CHANGES IN SIGNIFICANT PLAN PROVISIONS, ACTUARIAL METHODS, AND ASSUMPTIONS
(CONTINUED)

General Employees Fund (Continued)
2017 Changes (Continued):
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions (Continued):

* The assumed postretirement benefit increase rate was changed for 1.00% per year for all
years to 1.00% per year through 2044 and 2.50% per year thereafter.

Changes in Plan Provisions:

« The State’s contribution for the Minneapolis Employees Retirement Fund equals
$16,000,000 in 2017 and 2018, and $6,000,000 thereafter.

* The Employer Supplemental Contribution for the Minneapolis Employees Retirement Fund
changed from $21,000,000 to $31,000,000 in calendar years 2019 to 2031. The state’s
contribution changed from $16,000,000 to $6,000,000 in calendar years 2019 to 2031.

2016 Changes:
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions:

+ The assumed postretirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00% per year
through 2035 and 2.50% per year thereafter to 1.00% per year for all years.

* The assumed investment return was changed from 7.90% to 7.50%. The single discount
rate changed from 7.90% to 7.50%.

» Other assumptions were changed pursuant to the experience study June 30, 2015. The
assumed future salary increases, payroll growth, and inflation were decreased by 0.25% to
3.25% for payroll growth and 2.50% for inflation.

Changes in Plan Provisions:
* There have been no changes since the prior valuation.

2015 Changes:
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions:

*+ The assumed postretirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00% per year
through 2030 and 2.50% per year thereafter to 1.00% per year through 2035 and 2.50% per
year thereafter.

Changes in Plan Provisions:

* On January 1, 2015, the Minneapolis Employees Retirement Fund was merged into the
General Employees Fund, which increased the total pension liability by $1.1 billion and
increased the fiduciary plan net position by $892 million. Upon consolidation, state and
employer contributions were revised; the State’s contribution of $6.0 million, which meets
the special funding situation definition, was due September 2015.
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - ELECTRIC UTILITY
DECEMBER 31, 2021
(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Emergency Repairs
Accrued Interest Receivable
Customer Accounts Receivable
Allowance for Uncollectible Amounts
Other Accounts Receivable
Due from City of Shakopee
Inventory
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Assets:
Customer Deposit Accounts
Capital Assets:
Plant in Service
Accumulated Depreciation
Construction in Progress
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

DEFERRRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Related Amounts

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows
Resources

2021 2020
$ 44,204,443 $ 44,318,158
100,000 100,000
35,322 76,441
4,234,201 3,963,007
(80,663) (260,922)
2,385,045 58,144
81,577 84,946
1,440,219 1,002,297
56,629 48,399
52,456,773 49,390,470
1,602,470 2,317,923
78,663,005 76,077,200
(33,113,187) (30,703,485)
3,808,757 1,655,084
50,961,045 49,346,722
103,417,818 98,737,192
1,359,667 350,348

$ 104,777,485 $ 99,087,540
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - ELECTRIC UTILITY (CONTINUED)

DECEMBER 31, 2021
(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020)

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Due to City of Shakopee
Due to Other Fund
Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

LIABILITIES PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED
ASSETS CUSTOMER DEPOSITS

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Unearned Revenues
Customer Advances
Net Pension Liability
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Regulatory Collections to Cover Future Costs
Pension Related Amounts

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position

2021 2020
$ 4,152,391 $ 2,796,098
220,448 504,019
200,000 -
266,986 367,646
4,839,825 3,667,763
1,602,470 2,317,923
- 1,825
895,089 285,854
1,866,526 3,067,046
2,761,615 3,354,725
9,203,910 9,340,411
182,161 172,863
1,859,706 134,467
2,041,867 307,330
49,358,575 47,028,799
44,173,133 42,411,000
93,531,708 89,439,799
$ 104,777,485 $ 99,087,540
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND NET POSITION - ELECTRIC UTILITY
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020)

OPERATING REVENUES
Sales

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation, Customer and Administrative
Depreciation of Capital Assets
Total Operating Expenses

OPERATING INCOME

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Rentals and Miscellaneous
Interdepartmental Rent from Water
Investment Income
Interest Expense
Gain (Loss) on Disposition of Property
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Income Before Contributions and Transfers

Capital Contributions
Municipal Contributions

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Net Position - Beginning of Year

NET POSTION - END OF YEAR
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2021 2020
$ 52,853,012 $ 47,198,288
44,127,945 39,010,560
2,482,092 2,420,110
46,610,037 41,430,670
6,242,975 5,767,618
171,815 77,161
90,000 90,000
(168,812) 595,308
(3,954) (34,926)
31,057 9,074
120,106 736,617
6,363,081 6,504,235
98,931 527,653
(2,370,103) (2,167,882)
4,091,909 4,864,006
89,439,799 84,575,793
$ 93,531,708 $ 89,439,799




SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - ELECTRIC UTILITY
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers and Users

Payments to Suppliers

Payments to Employees
Net Cash Flows Provided by
Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments to City of Shakopee
Proceeds from Sale of Assets
Transfers Betweeen Funds
Net Cash Flows Provided by
Noncapital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

Interest Paid on Debt

Acquisition of Capital Assets
Net Cash Flows Used by Capital
and Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of Investments
Interest and Dividends Received

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR
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2021 2020
$ 50,952,596 $ 46,946,832
(4,039,994) (5,274,011)
(40,045,951) (33,338,462)
6,866,651 8,334,359
(2,370,103) (2,053,124)
31,745 837,987
200,000 -
(2,138,358) (1,215,137)

- (34,926)

(4,714,315) (3,053,391)
(4,714,315) (3,088,317)
(1,323,544) (48,396)
(127,693) 584,494
(1,451,237) 536,098
(1,437,259) 4,567,003
1,683,342 (2,883,661)

$ 246,083 $ 1,683,342




SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS — ELECTRIC UTILITY (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020)

2021 2020
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH FLOWS
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income $ 6,359,288 $ 5,767,618
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Free Electric Service to City of Shakopee (116,313) (114,758)
Nonoperating Revenues 257,861 167,161
Depreciation Expense 2,482,782 2,420,110
Pension Related Activity (484,600) (60,629)
Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts - 220,089
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Customer Accounts Receivable (451,453) (225,324)
Other Accounts Receivable (2,326,901) 45,875
Due from City of Shakopee 3,369 10,062
Inventory (437,922) 373,865
Prepaid Items (8,230) (2,028)
Accounts Payable 1,356,293 (55,101)
Customer Deposits 715,453 49,801
Unearned Revenue (1,825) (3,385)
Customer Advances (106,218) (400,977)
Due to City of Shakopee (283,571) 105,595
Other Liabilities (100,660) 36,385
Total Adjustments 498,065 2,566,741
Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities $ 6,857,353 $ 8,334,359
RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Customer Deposits Account $ 1,602,470 $ 2,317,923
Emergency Repairs Account 100,000 100,000
Cash and Investments 44,204,443 44,318,158
Total 45,906,913 46,736,081
Less: Investments (45,660,830) (45,052,739)
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 246,083 $ 1,683,342
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Contributions of Capital Assets from the Municipality and Developers $ 98,931 $ 527,653
Free Electric Service to City of Shakopee 116,313 114,758
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

DETAILED STATEMENT OF OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES - ELECTRIC UTILITY
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020)

OPERATING REVENUES
Sales of Electricity:
Residential
Commercial
Uncollectible Accounts
Total Sales of Electricity

Forfeited Discounts
Free Service to City of Shakopee
Conservation Program

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and Maintenance:
Purchased Power
Distribution Operation Expenses
Distriution System Maintenance
Maintenance of General Plant
Total Operation and Maintenance

Customer Accounts:
Meter Reading
Customer Records and Collection
Energy Conservation
Total Customer Accounts

Administrative and General:
Administrative and General Salaries
Office Supplies and Expense
Outside Services Employed
Insurance
Employee Benefits
Miscellaneous General

Total Administrative and General

Total Operation, Customer, and
Administrative Expenses

Depreciation of Capital Assets
Total Operating Expenses

Total Operating Income

2021 2020
$ 19,996,991 $ 18,032,655
31,752,298 28,553,792
81,089 (258,532)
51,830,378 46,327,915
134,686 60,835
116,313 114,758
771,635 694,780
52,853,012 47,198,288
37,965,029 32,729,485
437,040 553,702
779,450 653,225
261,657 274,843
39,443,176 34,211,255
133,206 127,450
635,858 575,336
771,634 693,297
1,540,698 1,396,083
571,493 644,190
152,169 136,544
621,638 428,140
141,380 129,545
1,351,876 1,773,389
305,515 291,414
3,144,071 3,403,222
44,127,945 39,010,560
2,482,092 2,420,110
46,610,037 41,430,670
$ 6,242,975 $ 5767618
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF PLANT IN SERVICE - ELECTRIC UTILITY

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

CAPITAL ASSETS

Distribution:
Land and Land Rights
Structures and Improvements
Station Equipment
Station Battery
Poles, Towers, and Fixtures
Overhead Conductors and Devices
Underground Conduit
Underground Conductors and Devices
Line Transformers
Services
Meters

Total Distribution

General:
Land and Land Rights
Structures and Improvements
Office Furniture and Equipment
Computer Equipment
Transporation Equipment
Tools, Shop, and Garage Equipment
Laboratory Equipment
Power Operated Equipment
Communication Equipment

Total General

Total Plant in Service

Balance Retirements/ Balance
12/31/2020 Additions Adjustments 12/31/2021
$ 829,867 $ - $ - $ 829,867

460,701 - - 460,701
23,037,208 - - 23,037,208
1,857 - - 1,857
527,824 - - 527,824
3,048,389 12,579 - 3,060,968
906,281 - - 906,281
21,479,888 1,405,719 12,182 22,873,425
5,811,014 624,723 - 6,435,737
50,643 - - 50,643
1,552,539 99,743 - 1,652,282
57,706,211 2,142,764 12,182 59,836,793
3,551,329 - - 3,551,329
9,248,411 206,583 - 9,454,994
1,200,247 16,277 - 1,216,524
786,650 198,443 - 985,093
2,433,139 93,162 63,391 2,462,910
194,999 4,149 - 199,148
20,041 - - 20,041
579,052 - - 579,052
357,121 - - 357,121
18,370,989 518,614 63,391 18,826,212
$ 76,077,200 $ 2,661,378 $ 75,573 $ 78,663,005
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - WATER UTILITY

DECEMBER 31, 2021

(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Accrued Interest Receivable
Customer Accounts Receivable
Allowance for Uncollectible Amounts
Other Accounts Receivable
Due from City of Shakopee
Due From Electric Fund
Inventory
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Assets:
Customer Deposit Accounts
Connection Account
Water Reconstruction Account
Capital Assets:
Plant in Service
Accumulated Depreciation
Construction in Progress
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

DEFERRRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Related Amounts

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows Resources

(61)

2021 2020

$ 11,334,850 9,458,885
14,655 19,231
392,448 387,957
(32,540) (53,915)
340,576 1,128,711
27,192 27,728

200,000 -
31,753 33,648
19,550 16,544
12,328,484 11,018,789
96,249 101,662
15,774,600 14,709,814
1,904,156 1,082,420
78,989,856 74,321,675
(24,703,991) (22,926,096)
4,951,865 2,371,883
77,012,735 69,661,358
89,341,219 80,680,147
612,580 113,987
$ 89,953,799 $ 80,794,134




SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION — WATER UTILITY (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2021

(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020)

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Due to City of Shakopee
Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

LIABILITIES PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED
ASSETS CUSTOMER DEPOSITS

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Customer Advances
Net Pension Liability
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Related Amounts

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position

(52)

2021 2020
$ 972,528 $ 475,942
52,309 27,726
131,471 165,365
1,156,308 669,033
96,249 101,662
375,165 58,411
840,938 997,874
1,216,103 1,056,285
2,468,660 1,826,980
837,866 43,749
59,237,730 53,767,462
17,775,005 15,792,234
9,634,538 9,363,709
86,647,273 78,923,405
$ 89,953,799 $ 80,794,134




SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND NET POSITION — WATER UTILITY

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020)

OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation, Customer and Administrative
Depreciation of Capital Assets
Total Operating Expenses

OPERATING INCOME
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Rentals and Miscellaneous
Investment Income
Interest Expense
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Income Before Contributions and Transfers

Capital Contributions
Municipal Contributions

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Net Position - Beginning of Year

NET POSTION - END OF YEAR

(83)

2021 2020
6,610,535 5,532,276
3,686,439 3,062,314
1,777,894 1,733,331
5,464,333 4,795,645
1,146,202 736,631
164,655 203,265
(19,643) 291,858
(185) (1,497)
144,827 493,626
1,291,029 1,230,257
6,685,954 2,849,061
(253,115) (216,722)
7,723,868 3,862,596
78,923,405 75,060,809
$ 86,647,273 $ 78,923.405




SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS — WATER UTILITY
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020)

2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers and Users $ 7,854,564 $ 4,764,237
Payments to Suppliers (1,451,518) (1,817,131)
Payments to Employees (1,615,581) (2,151,555)
Net Cash Flows Provided by
Operating Activities 4,787,465 795,551
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments to City of Shakopee - (188,996)
Proceeds from Sale of Assets - 44,474
Transfers Betweeen Funds (200,000) -
Net Cash Flows Provided by
Noncapital Financing Activities (200,000) (144,522)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Interest Paid on Debt - (1,497)
Acquisition of Capital Assets (4,027,468) (2,888,576)
Installation Fees 83,098 81,753
Connection Charges 2,517,163 2,356,978
Trunk Charges 611,883 167,135
Net Cash Flows Used by Capital
and Related Financing Activities (815,324) (284,207)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purcahses of Investments (733,773) (5,066)
Interest and Dividends Received (15,067) 408,586
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities (748,840) 403,520
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,023,301 770,342
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 1,303,491 533,149
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 4,326,792 $ 1,303,491
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS — WATER UTILITY (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020)

2021 2020

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH FLOWS
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income $ 1,146,202 $ 736,631
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating
Income to Cash Provided by Operating

Nonoperating Revenues 164,470 203,265
Depreciation Expense 1,777,895 1,733,331
Pension Related Activity 138,588 (42,962)
Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts (21,375) 44,116

Change in Assets and Liabilities

Customer Accounts Receivable (4,491) (82,435)
Other Accounts Receivable 788,135 (1,041,885)
Due from City of Shakopee 536 89,121
Inventory 1,895 (2,209)
Prepaid Items (3,006) (1,086)
Accounts Payable 496,586 (696,096)
Customer Deposits (5,413) 5,492
Customer Advances 316,754 14,287
Due to City of Shakopee 24,583 (180,442)
Other Liabilities (33,894) 16,423
Total Adjustments 3,641,263 58,920
Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities $ 4,787,465 $ 795,551

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Customer Deposits Account $ 96,249 $ 101,662

Connection Account 15,774,600 14,709,814
Water Reconstruction Account 1,904,156 1,082,420
Cash and Investments 11,334,850 9,458,885
Total 29,109,855 25,352,781
Less Investments (24,783,063) (24,049,290)
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,326,792 $ 1,303,491
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SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
DETAILED STATEMENT OF OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES — WATER UTILITY

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

(WITH SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020)

OPERATING REVENUES
Sales of Water
Forfeited Discounts
Uncollectible Accounts
Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and Maintenance:
Pumping and Distribution Operation
Pumping and Distribution Maintenance
Power for Pumping
Maintenance of General Plant
Total Operating and Maintenance

Customer Accounts:
Meter Reading
Customer Records and Collection
Energy Conservation
Total Customer Accounts

Administrative and General:
Administrative and General Salaries
Office Supplies and Expense
Outside Services Employed
Insurance
Employee Benefits
Miscellaneous General

Total Administrative and General

Total Operation, Customer, and
Administrative Expenses

Depreciation of Capital Assets
Total Operating Expenses

Total Operating Income
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2021 2020
6,592,104 $ 5,578,527
12,682 3,602
5,749 (49,853)
6,610,535 5,632,276
608,725 612,055
578,202 396,702
328,995 284,744
47,251 53,307
1,563,173 1,346,808
73,395 69,539
196,524 166,593
4,155 1,481
274,074 237,613
379,982 421,797
45,631 45,321
320,973 183,196
47,127 43,182
874,443 615,013
181,036 169,384
1,849,192 1,477,893
3,686,439 3,062,314
1,777,894 1,733,331
5,464,333 4,795,645
1,146,202 $ 736,631




SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF PLANT IN SERVICE — WATER UTILITY

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

CAPITAL ASSETS

Distribution:
Land and Land Rights
Wells
Electric Pumping Equipment
Towers and Pump Houses
Distribution system
Meters

Total Distribution

General:

Office Furniture and Equipment
Computer Equipment
Transporation Equipment
Tools, Shop, and Garage Equipment
Laboratory Equipment
Power Operated Equipment
Communication Equipment
Scada Equipment
Building Improvements

Total General

Total Plant in Service

Balance Retirements/ Balance
12/31/2020 Additions Adjustments 12/31/2021
$ 1,948,506 $ - $ - $ 1,948,506
4,405,137 170,118 - 4,575,255
8,502,094 166,209 - 8,668,303
7,631,469 41,773 - 7,673,242
46,978,718 4,112,046 - 51,090,764
3,004,672 118,660 - 3,123,332
72,470,596 4,608,806 - 77,079,402

149,647 1,530 - 151,177
215,910 12,030 - 227,940
459,278 - - 459,278
22,396 - - 22,396
64,427 - - 64,427
10,268 - - 10,268
22,480 - - 22,480
555,342 45,815 - 601,157
351,331 - - 351,331
1,851,079 59,375 - 1,910,454
$ 74,321,675 $ 4,668,181 $ - $ 78,989,856
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